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STRATEGIC REPORT

Himalayan Distillery Limited (HDL), a landmark name in the alcoholic 

beverage industry of Nepal has prominently placed itself as the market 

leader with an astounding market share of approximately above 70% 

market share in the 40UP whisky segment. HDL has been able to stand 

strong in the ever-competitive liquor industry of Nepal. This can be 

attributed to a series of factors including but not limited to higher 

degree of compliance with and implementation of international 

standard quality benchmarks, uncompromised adherence to corporate 

governance, continuous product innovation and upgradation, state-

of-the-art automation and better scalability of its manufacturing 

processes to further enhance its operational efficiency and productivity 
and not to forget a highly involved and customer-oriented, competitive 

and a robust sales and distribution team. 
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One	of	the	core	strengths	of	HDL	is	the	fact	
that	it	has	always	maintained	relentless	
commitment	when	it	comes	to	adherence	
to	various	national	and	international	
manufacturing,	operational	and	
statutory	and	regulatory	requirements.	
The	Company	has	in	place	a	competent	
and	dedicated	team	of	internal	as	well	
as		external	auditors.	This	team	not	only	
minutely	observes	and	scrutinizes	HDL’s	
each	and	every	business	transactions	but	
also	ensures	utmost	financial	discipline	
and	transparency	in	these	operations.	The	
Company’s	manufacturing	plant	produces	
a	range	of	high	quality	products	as	per	the	
requirements	demarcated	by	the	Excise	
Act,	Regulations,	Guidelines,	Liquor	Act,	
and	Rules	and	Regulations	and	under	the	
supervision	of	the	Excise	Inspector.	In	
addition	to	this,	HDL	has	in	place	stringent	
and	codified	internal	control	mechanisms	
in	each	of	the	functional	areas	throughout	
the	organization.

A	key	driver	of	HDL’s	growth	and	
sustainability	lies	in	its	team	of	dedicated,	
competent,	vibrant	and	enthusiastic	staff	
members	who	have	put	their	relentless	
efforts	to	further	enhance	HDL’s	scalability	
and	efficiency	in	all	of	its	functional	areas	
including	but	not	limited	to	management,	
operations,	production,	finance	and	
investment,	brand	management,	sales	
and	distribution	to	name	a	few.	The	
Company’s	well	defined	and	vigorous	
human	resources	management	policy	and	
guidelines	have	empowered	it	to	onboard	
and	retain	a	team	of	efficient	and	capable	
staff	members.	In	addition	to	this,	HDL	has	
in	place	a	system	of	continuous	training	
and	capacity	enhancement	of	its	staff	

members	across	all	organizational	levels	
to	enhance	their	technical	and	non-
technical	skills	to	enable	them	to	stay	on	
top	of	their	game	in	the	ever-competitive	
and	dynamic	liquor	industry	of	the	
country.	

HDL	has	always	placed	utmost	
emphasis	on	continuous	product	
innovation,	automation,	state-of-the-art	
manufacturing	practices	and	procedures	
and	most	important	of	all	comparatively	
higher	standards	of	corporate	
governance	and	business	ethics.	This	has	
empowered	the	Company	to	command	
a	higher	customer	confidence	for	its	
unique	blend	of	high-quality	spirits	and	
they	have	played	a	pivotal	role	in	further	
strengthening	and	enhancing	its	market	
leadership	with	more	than	70	percent	
market	share	in	the	Nepalese	beverages	
industry.	

Apart	from	manufacturing	products	as	
demanded	by	the	market,	the	company	
has	equally	prioritized	creation	and	
strengthening	of	its	brand	equity	as	well	
as	its	price	leadership	and	at	the	same	
time,	also	been	able	to	successfully	
be	the	first	choice	of	its	diverse	set	of	
customers	and	suppliers.	It	has	also	been	
able	to	maintain	an	uncompromised	
focus	on	onboarding	larger	number	of	
newer	customers	as	result	of	its	varied	
product	categories	and	distinct,	customer	
oriented	and	effective	market	expansion	
initiatives.	

All	these	thoughtful	business	initiatives	
implemented	by	HDL	are	expected	
to	enable	the	Company	to	generate	
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higher	shareholders’	value	and	establish	
itself	as	a	responsible	corporate	citizen	
contributing	back	to	the	society	through	
impactful	corporate	social	responsibility	
initiatives	especially	in	the	areas	of	a	green	
and	sustainable	economy,	environmental	
conservation,	health	and	social	wellbeing	
and	basic	livelihood	services	to	the	
socially	and	economically	marginalized	
communities	and	individuals	of	the	
country.	

PRODUCTS & SERVICES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INVESTOR'S RELATIONSHIP DISTRIBUTION NETWORK



AN OVERVIEW 

Himalayan Distillery Ltd. (HDL) is a 

dominant and revered name in the 

Nepalese manufacturing industry that 

has been delivering exemplary products 

and performance each year. This has 

been possible only because of the 

Company’s high priority and investment 

in areas of research and development, 

manufacturing and operations, finance 
and investment and marketing and 

branding of its international quality 

alcoholic beverages while strictly abiding 

by the principles of fair competition, 

higher standards of corporate governance 

and business ethics and above all an 

uncompromised financial accountability 
and transparency. 

HDL,	came	into	existence	on	July	24,	1985	as	a	private	
company	registered	under	Company	Act	2021	and	ever	
since	its	initial	days	it	has	been	changing	and	enhancing	
the	rules	of	the	game	in	the	highly	competitive	Nepalese	
liquor	industry	came	into	existence.	HDL	was	converted	
into	a	Public	Limited	Company	on	November	3,	2000	
and	has	been	a	valuable	investment	opportunity	in	the	
Nepalese	secondary	share	market	throughout	these	years.

HDL	is	highly	committed	to	ensure	value	for	excellence	
which	traces	back	to	its	inherited	legacy	of	Jawalakhel	
Distillery	Pvt.	Ltd.	which	is	not	only	HDL’s	legacy	company	
but	also	the	largest	player	in	current	Nepalese	liquor	
industry.	HDL	is	infact	a	perfectionist’s	dream	of	building	
a	unique	distillery	company	to	outperform	its	competitors	
in	all	aspects	of	business	coming	true	in	context	of	Nepal.	
This	actualization	has	been	further	strengthened	and	
enhanced	by	its	stellar	performance	over	the	years	clearly	
signaling	HDL’s	commitment	to	become	a	long-term	
market	leader.	

HDL’s	distinctive	market	edge	comes	from	its	assortment	
of	international	standard	alcoholic	beverages	
manufactured	through	internationally	benchmarked	
hi-tech	and	high-end	manufacturing	processes	and	
practices.	The	company	has	recently	received	capacity	
increment	permission	from	Department	of	Industry	with	
annual	production	capacity	of	12	million	LP	liter	of	blended	
liquor,	9,000	KL	of	ENA/RS	and	3,000	KL	of	Malt	Spirit.	
This	factory	is	an	example	of	excellence	in	iteslef	and	has	
strong	adherence	to	the	international	best	manufacturing	
practices	that	have	enabled	it	to	produce	high-quality	
products	for	HDL’s	diverse	and	demading	customer	
segments.
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VISION

To	be	the	most	respected	liquor	
company	in	Nepal	in	terms	of	profit	
and	shareholders	value.

MISSION

Research,	develop,	manufacture	and	
market	quality	alcoholic	products	
profitably	in	a	responsible	manner	
through	continuous	improvement	
and	professionalism.

STRATEGIC DIRECTION 

HDL	aims	to	achieve
above	75%	market
share	in	the	segment,
guided	by	the	following
strategies:
  

n Remain competitive 

with	a	balanced	
portfolio	in	a	
stagnating	industry.

n	Build	on	the	equity	

of	existing	brands	
to	ensure	HDL	
continues	producing	
the	brands	of	first	
choice	of	consumers	
and maintain price 

leadership,	and
n	 Ensure	our	efforts	
trade	in	consumers	
from	other	
segments.

CORE VALUES

n	Focus	on	
customer	
satisfaction.

n Committed to 

stringent	quality	
control.

n	Diligent,	
innovative,	
and creative in 

achieving	our	
goals.	Work	with	

uncompromising	
integrity,	
teamwork	and	
competitiveness.

n Foster an 

atmosphere	
of	openness,	
motivation,	and	
respect	for	each	
other.

Our 
Objectives

Code of 
Conduct

Operational 
Highlights

HDL’s	objectives	have	been	
highlighted	as	follows:
n	 Attain	efficiencies	in	

production	and	marketing	
through	automation	and	
consumer-focused	business	
operations.

n	 Comply	with	existing	laws	
and	continue	to	advocate	
for	enhancing	the	business	
environment

n	 Ensure	transparent	
operations and 

accountability,	respect	
competition	and	stay	ahead	
with	fair	marketing	practices	

n	 Enhance	employee	
experience	through	
continuous	employee	
development	and	a	strong	
focus	on	health	and	safety,	
and

n	 Increase	profitability	and	
share	value.

HDL	has	unfettered	adherence	to	
its	stringent	and	comprehensive	
Code	of	Conduct	and	this	is	taken	to	
heart	by	all	its	staff	and	suppliers.	
This	Code	demarcates	the	minimum	
acceptable	behavior	standards	for	
its	employees,	stakeholders,	and	
market.	In	addition	to	this,	it	also	
puts	in	place	a	consistent	behavioral	
approach	for	all	of	its	staff	members	
so	that	they	are	empowered	with	the	
right	set	of	guidelines	to	maintain	
and	further	enhance	HDL’s	goodwill.	
Apart	from	this,	it	also	aims	to	
foster	healthy	professional	working	
relationships	within	the	company	
and	eventually	create	a	respectful	
and	harassment-free	(including	
sexual	harassment)	workplace	for	
its	diverse	staff	members.	HDL	
leaves	no	stone	unturned	when	it	
comes	to	the	investigation	of	any	
major	or	minor	non-compliance	
with	the	Code	of	Conduct	and	does	
not	step	back	from	much-needed	
disciplinary	actions	and	corrective	
measures	as	well	as	disciplinary	
action	even	up	to	the	extent	of	
termination	of	employment.

Himalayan	Distillery	
Limited	(HDL)	boasts	a	
significant	advantage	
due	to	its	advanced	
manufacturing	and	
distillation	facilities,	
which	allow	it	to	produce	
internationally	recognized	
alcoholic	beverages.	
Its	distillation	plant,	
designed	by	KATZEN	
(USA),	has	a	capacity	
of	30	KLPD	and	can	
produce	6	million	liters	
of	Extra	Neutral	Alcohol	
(ENA).	Additionally,	HDL	
has	recently	invested	
in	a	cutting-edge	Malt	
Distillation	Plant	to	reduce	
reliance	on	expensive	
imports	of	Malt	spirits. 

The	company	maintains	
rigorous	quality	control	
laboratories,	reflecting	its	
steadfast commitment to 

quality	and	consistency	
across	its	product	range.	
Despite	challenges	

posed	by	the	economic	
slowdown,	HDL	is	on	a	
recovery	path	and	aims	
to	exceed	its	previous	
production	capacities. 

Furthermore,	HDL	excels	
in	its	distribution	and	
sales	network,	which	is	
crucial	for	manufacturing	
success.	Its	strategic	
network	of	distributors	
and	wholesalers,	
along	with	marketing	
intermediaries	throughout	
Nepal,	has	strengthened	
its	market	position.	
Currently,	J.G.I	Distribution	
Pvt.	Ltd.	manages	HDL's	
sales	and	distribution	
with	a	dedicated	team	
of	over	85	experienced	
professionals	led	by	the	
Chief	Sales	Officer.
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 PARTICULARS 2019-20   2020-21   2021-22   2022-23   2023-24 

Sales	(Cases)	 549,940		 	642,612		 	682,689		 	470,557		 	359,673	
Net	Sales	 2,404,628		 	3,699,668		 	4,059,120		 	2,970,514		 	2,081,497	
COGS	 	1,169,575		 	1,474,723		 	1,572,365		 	1,201,050		 	858,208	
Gross	Profit	 	1,235,053		 	2,224,945		 	2,486,755		 	1,769,463		 	1,223,289		
Indirect	Expenses	 	528,942		 	821,459		 	1,015,374		 	830,936		 	740,059	
EBITDA	 		706,112		 	1,403,486		 	1,471,381		 	938,527		 	483,230	
Non	Operating	Income	 	959		 	72,955		 	5,339		 	10,508		 	66,384	
Depreciation	 	49,689		 	51,090		 	54,829		 	50,488		 	52,193	
EBIT	 657,381		 	1,425,351		 	1,421,891		 	898,548		 	497,421	
Financial	Expenses	 	30,288		 	17,226		 	2,157		 	4,510		 	1,344	
EBT	 	627,094		 	1,408,125		 	1,419,735		 	894,037		 	496,077	
Tax	 	160,177		 	366,728		 	362,794		 	233,514		 	131,029	
Net	Profit	 	466,917		 	1,041,397		 	1,056,940		 	660,524		 	365,049	
Share	Capital	 578,468		 	867,702		 	1,518,479		 	2,429,567		 	2,672,523	
Retained	Earnings	 673,964		 	1,136,893		 	1,326,131		 	925,237		 	682,894	
Non-Current	Borrowings	 	1,956		 	12		 	-				 	-				 	-			
Non-Current	Lease	Payables	 	-				 	-				 	9,139		 	1,743		 	12,405	
Deferred	Tax	Liabilities	 29,587		 	35,621		 	32,398		 	29,822		 	28,951	
Property,	Plant	and	Equipment	 557,371		 	513,856		 	497,484		 	458,612		 	484,888	
Capital	Work	in	Progress	 -				 	-				 	-				 	35		 	311,431	
Intangible	Assets	 874		 	451		 	867		 	1,006		 	1,060	
Right	to	use	assets	 -				 	-				 	11,477		 	2,116		 	12,635	
Other	Non-Current	Assets	 	32,921		 	23,431		 	20,193		 	42,809		 	43,715	
Investment	 20,000		 	69,000		 	101,100		 	101,100		 	111,100	
Deferred	Tax	Assets	 	-				 	-				 	-				 	-				 	-			
Inventory	 	426,105		 	164,954		 	207,327		 	447,224		 	326,155	
Account	Receivables	 911,577		 	517,130		 	1,150,583		 	1,962,177		 	216	
Cash	and	Cash	Equivalents	 12,137		 	909,119		 	1,064,422		 	469,591		 	1,239,203	
Other	Bank	Balances	 	-				 	-				 	51,847		 	76,456		 	1,000,000	
Other	Current	Assets	 34,631		 	111,714		 	87,088		 	108,182		 	101,861	
Current	Borrowings	 	150,396		 	1,470		 	-				 	-				 	-			
Current	Liabilities	 	561,245		 	267,956		 	306,243		 	282,939		 	235,490	
Net	Current	Assets/Working	Capital	 672,810		 	1,433,490		 	2,255,025		 	2,780,691		 	2,431,945	
Total	Assets	 	1,995,616		 	2,309,655		 	3,192,389		 	3,669,308		 	3,632,263	
Total	Capital	&	Liabilities	 	1,995,616		 	2,309,655		 	3,192,389		 	3,669,308		 	3,632,263	
Capital	Employed	 	1,404,784		 	2,006,078		 	2,844,610		 	3,354,804		 	3,355,418	
Net	Worth	 	1,252,432		 	2,004,595		 	2,844,610		 	3,354,804		 	3,355,418	
Gross	Profit	Margin	 51%	 60%	 61%	 60%	 59%
Operating	Profit	Margin	 29%	 38%	 36%	 32%	 23%
Net	Profit	Margin	 19%	 28%	 26%	 22%	 18%
Dividend	Per	Share	(Cash)	 	50		 	25		 	10		 	15		 	5	
Dividend	Per	Share	(Bonus)	 	50		 	75		 	60		 	10		 	15	
Dividend	Per	Share	(Interim)	 	-				 	-				 	-				 	-				 	-			
Share	Price	Per	Share	(End	of	FY)	 	1,599		 	5,512		 	3,410		 	2,248		 	1,384	
Earning	Per	Share	 81		 	120		 	70		 	27		 	14	
Price	Earning	Ratio	 20		 	46		 	49		 	83		 	101	
Net	Worth	Per	Share	 	217		 	231		 	187		 	138		 	126	
Return	on	Equity	 37%	 52%	 37%	 20%	 11%
Return	on	Capital	Employed	 47%	 71%	 50%	 27%	 15%
Return	on	Total	Assets	 23%	 45%	 33%	 18%	 10%
Current	Ratio	 	1.95		 	6.32		 	8.36		 	10.83		 	11.33	
Debt	to	Equity	Ratio	 0.11		 	0.00		 	-				 	-				 	-			

Financial Overview (5 years)
Amount in Rs. '000
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Operational Overview (5 years)

2019-20

n Growth	affected	
due	to	COVID-19	
pandemic		during	
the	peak	season.

n 34%	decrease	in	
sales	quantity,	24%	
decrease	in		revenue	
and	13%	decrease	in	
net	profit

n Distributed	cash	
dividend	of	50%	and	
50%		bonus	shares	
maintaining	100%	
dividend	for		the	
second	consecutive	
year.

2020-21

n 1	million	cases	of	
Golden	Oak	(GO)	
sold	for	the	2nd  time 

in	a	fiscal	year
n Started contract 

bottling	of	GO	in	
another	company

n 147%	Growth	in	the	
sales	of	Black	Oak

n Launched	a	
premuim	brand	
in	40	UP	segment:	
Blue	Oak

n Revenue	growth	by	
54%

n Net	profit	growth	by	
123%	

n Distributed	cash	
dividend	of	25%	and	
75%	bonus		shares	
maintaining	100%	
dividend	for	third	
year	in	a	row.

2021-22

n 1	million	cases	
of	Golden	Oak	
(GO)	sold	for	
the		3rd time in a 

fiscal	year.
n 33%	Growth	
in	the	sales	of	
Black	Oak

n 76%	Growth	in	
the	sales	of	Blue	
Oak

n Revenue	
growth	by	10%

n Net	profit	
growth	by	1.49%

n Distributed	
cash	dividend	
of	10%	and	60%	
bonus	shares.

2022-23

n Introduced	
new	closure	
imported from 

Ukraine	in	
750ml	Products	
of	Oak	Series	
and	new	bottle	
in	Black	Oak	
750	ml	to	add	
premiumness.

n Silver Award in 

"Best presented 

National	
Annual	Reports	
2022"	in	
manufacturing	
category	by	
ICAN.

n Distributed	final	
cash	dividend	
of	15%	and	
bonus	share	of	
10%

2023-24

n Launched	a	new	
product	Silver 
Oak	in	40	UP	
Vodka	segment	
in	the	month	of	
December	2023.

n Impact of 

continued	
economic 

slowdown	
in	Net	sales	
revenue	with	a	
decrease	of	30%	
than	Last	Year,	
thus	decreasing	
PAT	by	45%.

n Gold Award in 

"Best presented 

National	Annual	
Reports	2023"	in	
manufacturing	
category	by	
ICAN.

n Distributed	final	
cash	dividend	of	
5%	and	bonus	
share	of	15%
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This	higher	inflation	in	the	domestic	economy	can	be	
attributed	to	various	national	and	international	factors	
namely	the	unpredictability	of	global	fuel	prices,	disruptions	
in	the	supply	chain,	and	the	ongoing	and	often	unfavorable	
impacts	of	the	Global	Geo-political	instability.	In	the	review	
period	of	2023-24,	there	have	been	slight	improvements	in	
the	liquidity	condition	of	the	Nepalese	economy	as	compared	
to	the	previous	year.	However,	the	country’s	financial	sector	
is	not	free	from	the	myriad	of	effects	resulting	from	the	
tightened	banking	policies	as	well	as	the	slow	economic	
recovery.

In	the	review	period,	one	can	see	ongoing	financial	
transitions	in	the	domestic	economy,	although	the	merger	
of	Nepalese	commercial	banks	progressed	in	a	positive	light.	
in	the	corresponding	period,	the	businesses	operating	in	
the	country	had	to	feel	strained	as	a	result	of	the	operational	
challenges	created	by	stringent	tax	collection	policies	and	
shifting	regulations.	Despite	these	several	challenges,	Nepal	
a	country	has	remained	optimistic	which	can	be	attributed	
to	its	growing	young	population,	which	holds	promising	
potential	for	long-term	growth	of	the	country.

In	the	year	2023-24,	the	alcohol	industry	of	Nepal	also	
witnessed	some	shifts	in	the	overall	consumer	behavior.	
Similar	to	the	previous	year,	customers	continued	to	
prioritize	the	purchase	of	essential	commodities	for	their	
livelihood	as	compared	to	premium	purchases.	As	a	result	of	
this,	the	liquor	industry,	particularly	the	premium	segment	
of	liquors,	was	affected	since	consumers	continued	to	shift	
towards	amore	affordable,	fast-moving	brand	so	that	they	
can	manage	both	their	need	for	alcoholic	beverages	without	
further	straining	their	finances.

5.44% 

As per Macroeconomic and 
Financial Report of Nepal Rastra 
Bank (NRB) Nepal’s GDP witnessed 
a growth rate of 3.87 % while the 
inflation rate stood at 

in the FY 2023/24.

The	overall	liquor	industry	of	Nepal,	including	Himalayan	
Distillery,	had	to	undergo	several		challenging	global	and	local	
economic	conditions	in	the	year	2023.	However,	it	is	to	be	
noted	that	despite	the	short-term	setbacks	resulting	from	the	
national	and	international	economic	crises,	they	also	brought	
with	them	different	opportunities	for	strategic	adaptation.	
Abiding	by	this	fact,	HDL	continuously	refined	its	business	
approaches	which	enabled	it	to	leverage	market	trends	for	
sustainable	growth.

At	the	beginning	of	the	review	period,	HDL’s	initial	growth	
projections	for	the	liquor	market	indicated	a	growth	of	5%	

Business Review 
of HDL for the year 
2023-24

The	downturn	in	the	Nepalese	economy	in	the	review	
period	also	had	broader	impacts	across	several	industries.	
Specifically,	the	automobile	sector	witnessed	some	traces	
of	recovery	but	still	had	to	undergo	a	40%	decline	in	overall	
sales	for	the	year.	On	the	other	hand,	Nepal’s	logistics	sector,	
which	suffered	a	70%	drop	last	year	rebounded	slightly	in	the	
corresponding	period,	though	its	recovery	stood	at	only	30%.	

In	contrast	to	several	other	industries,	Nepal’s	tobacco	
industry	experienced	a	meager	loss	of	5%	in	its	premium	
segment	when	its	overall	regular	market	grew	by	10%.	In	
contrast,	the	Nepalese	noodle	industry	experienced	an	
overall	decline	of	10%,	primarily	in	the	premium	segment,	
which	shrunk	by	12%,	while	the	economy	segment	grew	
by	15%.	Similarly,	in	the	personal	care,	sector	the	country	
increased	its	overall	revenue	despite	reduced	sales	volumes	
but	increased	revenue	due	to	higher	prices	for	essential	
products.

MACRO-ECONOMIC	
OUTLOOK:	A 
COMPARATIVE INSIGHT 
OF THE YEAR 2023-24 
In the year 2023, the estimated real GDP growth 

rate for the Nepalese economy stood at 3.87%, 

signaling an increase from preceding year’s GDP 

growth rate of 1.95%. The country's annual average 

inflation rate was recorded at 5.44%,  
down from 7.74% during the same  

period in the previous year.
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for	the	first	quarter,	with	expectations	rising	to	6%	for	the	
second	quarter.	As	such	a	growth	of	5-6%	growth	in	the	liquor	
market	was	projected	for	the	first	half	of	the	review	period.	
Although	these	numbers	are	comparatively	lower	than	the	
preceding	fiscal	year,	they	act	as	crucial	benchmarks	for	
HDL	enabling	it	to	effectively	adjust	to	the	current	economic	
environment	and	seize	emerging	opportunities	to	charter	a	
path	of	sustainability	and	growth.

Some	of	the	major	trends	which	have	affected	HDL’s	overall	
business	performance	in	the	review	period	have	been	
highlighted	below:

EXTENDED ECONOMIC CRISIS
n	Cause:
In	the	review	period,	the	ongoing	global	economic	instability,	
fueled	by	the	Russia-Ukraine	war,	led	to	fluctuating	fuel	and	
gas	prices	which	further	impacted	the	status	of	inflation	
in	Nepal.	In	addition	to	this,	the	Government	of	Nepal	
also	imposed	import	restrictions,	restricted	operations	
of	cooperative	organizations,	and	all	these	unfavorable	
economic	challenges	further	fueled	to	the	ever	rising	
permanent	migration	of	Nepalese	youths.

n	Impact	on	the	Industry:
The	economic	challenges	of	the	year	2023-24	led	to	rising	
cases	of	default	payments	and	difficulties	in	collecting	funds	
for	the	entire	liquor	industry	and		HDL	was	no	exception	to	
this.	As	such,	the	liquidity	issues	affected	both	the	retail	and	
wholesale	sectors,	which	ultimately	drove	the	consumers	
to	opt	for	more	budget-friendly	alternatives	such	as	70	
UP	brands	and	homemade	spirits.	This	shift	in	consumer	
behavior	eventually	led	to	8%	of	consumers	trading	down	
from	premium	products	to	more	affordable	offerings,	making	
it	harder	for	high-end	brands	to	retain	their	existing	market	
share.

STRICT BANKING NORMS
n	Cause:
The	Nepalese	banking	sector	continued	to	face	challenges	
from	the	high	levels	of	non-performing	assets	(NPA),	slow	
fund	rotation,	and	a	prolonged	liquidity	crunch	due	to	
elevated	loan	interest	rates.	All	of	these	factors	adversely	
impacted	businesses	across	several	industries,	including	the	
liquor	sector,	making	it	challenging	for	companies	to	secure	
funding	and	maintain	liquidity	for	business	growth.

n	Impact	on	the	Industry:
HDL’s	retailers	and	distributors	also	focused	on	fast-moving	
brands,	often	cutting	margins	to	stay	competitive	in	the	
market.	This	aggressive	price-cutting	became	a	common	
industry	practice,	especially	in	the	economy	segment	to	
sustain	the	cash	flow.	In	the	review	period,	on-premise	

consumption	of	alcoholic	drinks	also	dropped	significantly,	
as	consumers	reduced	their	spending	on	non-essential	items	
and	favored	essential	purchases	for	their	livelihood.	The	
economic	cncerns	of	individual	consumers	highly	subdued	
festivities	throughout	the	year	and	as	a	result	of	this,	the	
entire	industry	witnessed	decline	in	high-end	liquor	sales.

NEW COMPETITION
n	Cause:
In	the	review	period,	the	economic	downturn	of	the	
Nepalese	economy	also	led	many	companies	to	take	risks	
by	diversifying	into	new	segments	of	the	liquor	market.	
Despite	tough	economic	and	market	conditions,	a	total	of	
12	new	brands	were	introduced	in	the	year	2023	in	which	
the	core	focus	was	towards	affordable	categories	to	cater	to	
comparatively	highly	price-sensitive	consumers.

n	Impact	on	the	Industry:
New	product	launches	across	the	whisky	and	vodka	
categories	created	increased	competition	for	established	
brands,	including	Himalayan	Distillery	in	the	corresponding	
period.	Overall	12	new	products	were	launched	by	
competitors	during	the	year.	In	the	whisky	category,	brands	
like	Royal	Blue	(40	UP),	Imperial	Blue,	Grey	Wolf,	and	AMS	
Himalayas	made	their	market	entry.	Similarly,	brands	such	
as		8848	Rye	Vodka,	Yeti	Vodka,	and	Berries	&	Blue	(40	
UP)	entered	the	vodka	segment.	In	addition	to	this,	locally	
produced	rums	such	as		Karda	Rum	and	Makalu	Rum,	also	
gained	popularity	as	consumers	sought	for	more	affordable	
alternatives.

These	new	brands,	especially	in	the	economy	segment,	
have	captured	significant	consumer	attention	especially	
the	consumers	who	are	highly	price-conscious.	This	shift	
in	consumer	mindset	and	purchasing	behavior	has	driven	
strong	sales	for	economy	brands,	while	premium	offerings	
have	struggled	to	maintain	their	market	share.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

One of the key strengths of Himalayan Distillery Limited (HDL) lies in 

the fact that the Company operates based on a stringent, robust and 

comprehensive governance framework encompassing various essential 

components of the business. The Company boasts a well-structured 

Board of Directors, uncompromised adherence to several national and 

international legal and ethical and corporate governance standards, 

robust risk management mechanism, transparent and accurate 

financial reporting, responsible shareholders engagement, sustainable 
business practices, state-of-the-art quality control practices, equitable 

employee relations, active community involvement, robust cybersecurity 

safeguards, thoughtful succession planning, effective internal 
controls, well-defined and effective capital allocation strategies, sound 
management of possible conflict of interest, and above all a dedicated 
commitment to agility and continuous improvement. 
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HDL’s	overarching	approach	towards	
corporate	governance	has	not	only	assisted	
it	to	guarantee	lawful	and	ethical	operations	
but	also	in	upholding	its	market	credibility,	
financial	stability,	and	long-term	prosperity,	
all	while	championing	responsible	business	
practices	in	the	dynamic	alcoholic	beverage	
industry	of	Nepal.

Himalayan	Distillery	Limited	(HDL)’s	commitment	
to	robust	and	responsible	governance	is	distinctly	
evident	in	its	series	of	essential	policy	documents	
governing	diverse	facets	of	its	overall	operations.	

The	Company’s	Procurement	Manual	clearly	
demarcates	stringent	procedures	for	acquiring	
goods	and	services	for	the	Company	while	highly	
emphasizing	transparency	and	cost-effectiveness	
in	the	its	procurement	processes	no	matter	what	
the	scale	of	procurement	is.	

Similarly,	there	is	in	place	a	well	defined	HR	and	
Administration	Manual	that	efficiently	establishes	
fair	and	consistent	practices	for	human	resources	
management	and	administrative	functions	and	
has	enabled	HDL	to	create	a	conducive	work	
environment	for	its	valued	staff	members.	

HDL	has	in	place	a	robust	IT	Manual	with	utmost	
emphasis	on	data	security,	access	controls,	
and	network	management	which	has	enabled	
the	organization	to	ensure	the	integrity	of	
information	and	compliance	with	national	and	
international	legal	parameters	in	the	context	of	an	
increasingly	digital	landscape.

HDL’s	Internal	CSR	Guideline	has	helped	the	
company	to	reinforce	its	dedication	to	contribute	
back	to	the	society	via	several	well	thought	
corporate	social	responsibility	initiatives	while		
guiding	HDL’s	efforts	in	the	areas	including	
but	not	limited	to	sustainability,	community	
engagement,	and	ethical	business	practices.	

As	a	whole,	all	of	these	governance	policies	have	
provided	the	Company	with	a	comprehensive	
framework	that	has	empowered	it	to	maintain	
ethical,	transparent,	and	responsible	operations	
and	are	in	close	alignment	with	HDL’s	
commitment	to	excellence	and	corporate	social	
responsibility.

Governance 
Policies
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Board of Directors

FROM LEFT TO RIGHT

Santoo Shrestha, 

Director 

Shanker Raj Pandey,

Director

Narendra Kumar Basnyat, 

Director 

Akhileshwar Prasad Singh, 

Chairperson

Prakash Mani Ghimire,  

Independent Director

Yangkila (Sherpa) Ruit, 

Director
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Profile of Directors

Akhileshwar Prasad Singh
CHAIRPERSON

Mr.	Singh's	tenure	with	the	
company	began	in	2006	when	
he	became	a	Board	member.	
His	progression	led	to	his	
appointment	as	Chair	in	2017,	a	
position	he	retained	after	being	
selected	in	the	AGM	held	in	2022	
as	the	Chairperson.	Notably,	his	
background	includes	serving	as	
a	former	Zonal	Commissioner	
and	active	involvement	as	a	social	
activist.	His	diverse	background	
includes	valuable	experience	
collaborating	with	governmental	
and	non-governmental	entities,	
emphasizing	the	enhancement	of	
governance	structures.

DIRECTOR

Narendra Kumar Basnyat

Mr.	Basnyat	was	instrumental	
to	HDL	Board	as	the	Former	
Chairperson	and	has	had	a	
longstanding	affiliation	with	the	
company	for	over	two	decades.	His	
diverse	business	engagements	
include	Founding	Chairperson	
of	the	Nepal	USA	Chamber	of	
Commerce	&	Industries	and	holding	
the	position	of	Former	Chair	at	the	
Bank	of	Kathmandu.	His	extensive	
experience extends to serving as a 

Former	Member	of	the	Executive	
Committee	of	the	Federation	of	
Nepali	Chambers	of	Commerce	
and	Industries	(FNCCI),	President	
of	the	Confederation	of	Nepalese	
Industries	(CNI).	Furthermore,	
he	has	contributed	as	the	Former	
Executive	Director	of	the	Economic	
Liberalization	Project,	a	venture	
funded	by	USAID.

Shanker Raj Pandey
DIRECTOR

Mr.	Pandey	has	been	in	the	
HDL	board	since	2009.	He	is	a	
development	professional	with	
wide	experience	in	both	the	public	
and	private	sector	of	the	economy	
especially	in	areas	of	commerce	
&	industries,	health,	energy,	
and	economic	development.	He	
is	also	associated	with	several	
not-for-	profit	organizations	
that	are	working	in	the	field	of	
education	and	mental	health.	He	
is	a	graduate	of	Xavier	University	
and	Georgetown	University	and	
was	also	a	Humphrey	Fellow	at	
American	University	in	1997-98.
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Santoo Shrestha
DIRECTOR

Mr.	Shrestha	has	been	in	the	HDL	
board	since	2009.	He	holds	a	
Bachelor’s	degree	in	International	
Business	Management	from	
University	of	Maryland.	He	is	also	
the	former	Director	of	Kumari	Bank	
Ltd.	He	is	also	the	Vice-Chairperson	
of	Rosebud	School,	Joint	Managing	
Director	Soorya	Holdings	Pvt.	Ltd.	
and	Director	of	Yeti	Originals	Pvt.	
Ltd.

DIRECTOR

Yangkila (Sherpa) Ruit

Ms.	Ruit	joined	the	HDL	board	in	
the	year	2020.	She	is	a	tourism	
entrepreneur	who	has	won	various	
awards	and	accolades	for	her	
contribution.	She	is	the	former	
State	Minister	of	the	Government	
of	Nepal	(2005/06)	and	Parliament	
Member	(2001-2007).	She	has	
also	been	the	former	President	
of	the	Federation	of	Woman	
Entrepreneurs	of	Nepal	(FWEAN)	
and	Trekking	Agents	Association	
of	Nepal	(TAAN).	She	is	a	recipient	
of	the	Abraham	Conservation	
Award	from	the	World	Wildlife	
Fund	(WWF)	and	the	Priyadarshani	
Award	as	Outstanding	Woman	
Entrepreneur	of	Nepal	(1999)	from	
the	Federation	of	International	
Women	Entrepreneurs	(2000).

Prakash Mani Ghimire
DIRECTOR	(INDEPENDENT)

Mr.	Ghimire	has	been	serving	as	an	
independent	director	at	HDL	since	
2011.	He	has	extensive	experience	
in	various	Agri-based	businesses.	
He	is	also	the	former	General	 
Manager	of	Bhrikuti	Pulp	&	Paper	
Nepal	Limited.
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Progress Through Unity

Respected Shareholders, Honorable Guests, Journalists, 

Friends from Security forces, and our dear staff members 
I am immensely delighted and grateful to be able to 

welcome you all to today’s 24th Annual General Meeting of 

Himalayan Distillery Limited. 

PRODUCTS & SERVICES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INVESTOR'S RELATIONSHIP DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

As	the	Chairperson	of	the	Board	of	
Directors,	I	would	like	to	extend	my	
sincere	appreciation	to	each	one	of	you	
present	here	for	graciously	accepting	
our	invitation	and	for	blessing	us	with	
your	valuable	time	by	attending	this	
remarkable	gathering.

Like	any	other	business	organization	
in	Nepal,	HDL	had	its	fair	share	of	fair	
share	of	challenges	and	achievements	
throughout	its	several	years	of	operations.	
Yet	amidst	all	those	uncertainties	and	
disruptions,	your	unwavering	support	and	
goodwill	has	enabled	us	to	overcome	all	
these	tests	and	trials	of	time	and	carve	our	
unique	oath	of	sustainability,	growth	and	
success.	

In	the	review	period	of	2023-24,	the	
economic	environment	of	the	country	
posed	significant	challenges	for	our	
business.	We	faced	a	slowdown	in	overall	
domestic	economic	activities,	steep	

inclination	in	prices	of	petroleum	
products,	rising	costs	of	various	raw	
materials,	spike	in	rates	of	excise	duties,	
intense	and	often	unhealthy	market	
competition,	and	a	steady	decline	in	
disposable	income	of	our	consumers	
and	all	of	these	factors	jointly	and	
adversely	affected	our	business	growth	
and	revenue	streams.	we	are	sure	that	
we	will	continue	facing	many	such	
challenges	in	the	coming	days	as	well.	Yet	
we	are	confident	that	your	unwavering	
guidance	and	uncompromised	support	
shall	continue	to	be	indispensable	for	
HDL’s	growth,	success,	and	sustainability	
and	we	are	confident	to	receive	your	
cooperation	in	the	days	to	come.

In	past	few	years,	additional	contingent	
variables	including	but	not	limited	to	
the	overarching	effects	of	COVID-19	
pandemic	and	the	dengue	outbreak,	
along	with	several	global	geopolitical	
uncertainties,	fulctuating	fuel	prices,	
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and	disruptions	in	the	raw	material	
supply	chain,	have	created	further	
challenges	for	the	Company.	In	addition	
to	this,	increasing	foreign	exchange	
rates,	transportation	costs,	and	alarming	
prices	of	imported	raw	materials	and	
packaging	have	driven	up	HDL’s	overall	
production	and	operational	overheads.	
Furthermore,	the	annual	increments	
in	excise	duties	on	liquor	products	
imposed	by	the	Government	of	Nepal	
have	pressured	our	product	prices	leading	
to	price	adjustments	that	coincide	with	
continuously	declining	purchasing	
capacity	of	our	consumers.	This	mismatch	
is	clearly	evident	in	the	decline	of	our	
annual	business	transactions.

To	address	these	challenges	and	
ensure	sustainable	growth,	HDL	has	
developed	and	implemented	several	
strategic	initiatives.	Some	of	such	major	
interventions	have	been	highlighted	as	
follows:	

n	 Establishment	of	a	Malt	Spirit	
Production	Unit	to	diversify	and	
enhance	production	capacity.

n	Conversion	of	grain	sludge	generated	
during	spirit	production	into	dry	cakes	

RETURN ON 
EQUITY

11%

for	sale,	promoting	efficiency	and	
environmental	sustainability.

n	Automation	of	plant	operations	to	
enhance	productivity	and	quality	of	
spirits	production	and	reduction	in	
overall	production	costs.

Once	these	projects	are	completed	and	
fully	operational,	we	anticipate	a	notable	
reduction	in	our	aggregate	production	
overheads	as	well	as	enhancement	
in	quality	along	with	an	overall	
improvement	in	our	environmental	
sustainability	practices.	We	are	also	
aimed	at	further	upgrading	our	product	
quality	and	for	this,	we	have	initiated	
spirit	maturation	processes	at	our	
factory	site.	In	addition	to	this,	ew	have	
also	acquired	land	outside	our	factory	
to	develop	maturation	facilities	under	
high	Himalayan	temperatures	and	I	am	
delighted	to	let	you	know	that	we	have	
already	made	significant	progresses	in	
this	front.

HDL’s	continued	resilience	and	growth	
has	been	possible	only	because	of	our	
esteemed	shareholders,	distributors,	
wholesalers,	retailers,	consumers,	
management	team,	staff	members,	and	
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GROSS PROFIT  
MARGIN

59%

various	government	nd	regulatory	bodies.	
We	remain	extremely	thankful	and	deeply	
grateful	to	all	of	you	for	your	invaluable	
contributions	and	unwavering	support	for	
the	Company	and	we	look	forward	to	your	
continued	cooperation	in	the	days	ahead.

As	we	navigate	through	the	myriad	
of	challenges	resulting	from	intense	
competition,	maintaining	and	further	
expanding	our	sales	and	distribution	
channels	remains	as	our	top	priority.	I	
have	already	shared	with	you	all	that	we	
are	adopting	new	technologies	to	produce	
high-quality	spirits,	malt	spirits,	and	
related	by-products	to	effectively	address	
these	challenges.

For	this	fiscal	year,	we	have	proposed	a	5%	
cash	dividend	(inclusive	of	dividend	tax)	
and	a	15%	bonus	share	from	the	company’s	
profits	for	our	valuable	shareholders.
We	are	confident	that	your	valuable	
insights	and	unmatched	guidance	will	
help	empower	us	to	shape	the	future	
direction	of	Himalayan	Distillery	Limited.	
I	would	also	like	to	express	my	sincere	
gratitude	to	the	Office	of	the	Company	
Registrar,	Nepal	Securities	Board,	Nepal	

Stock	Exchange,	Department	of	Industry,	
Inland	Revenue	Department,	Inland	
Revenue	Offices,	Labor	and	Employment	
Office,	as	well	as	various	financial	
institutions	and	regulatory	bodies	for	
their	invaluable	support	and	guidance	
throughout	these	years.

As	I	conclude,	I	extend	my	heartfelt	
thanks	to	HDL’s	management	team,	
employees,	workers,	shareholders,	and	
well-wishers	for	their	dedication,	hard	
work,	and	contributions	to	the	Company’s	
success.	I	hope	for	your	continued	trust	
and	support	as	we	move	forward.
Once	again,	I	warmly	welcome	all	
shareholders	to	this	24th	Annual	General	
Meeting	and	invite	you	to	engage	in	
meaningful	discussions	and	approve	the	
proposals	listed	in	today’s	agenda	for	the	
success	and	sustainable	growth	of	our	
company.

Thank	you.

Akhileshwar Prasad Singh

Chairperson, Board of Directors
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Business Innovation  
Re-Engineered

HDL faced one of its most challenging period in the fiscal 
year 2080/81. It had to undergo through adverse impacts 

of both global and local economic downturns which led 

to a reduction in consumer spending, leaving an indelible 

adverse impact on the company’s sales. 

Dear	Valued	Shareholders,
I	feel	deeply	honored	and	privileged	to	
be	able	to	address	you	once	again	in	this	
meeting	where	we	look	back	to	another	
year	filled	with	remarkable	achievements.	
Our	journey	has	been	marked	with	
unmatched	growth,	resilience	and	
innovation	throughout	these	years	and	I	
am	happy	to	be	sharing	with	our	valued	
shareholders	that	we	have	been	able	to	
continue	our	exemplary	performance	in	
the	fiscal	year	2080/81	as	well.	The	year	
2080/81	was	marked	with	undeniable	
economic	challenges;	despite	all	the	
adversities,	HDL	stood	steadfast	in	
its	commitment	to	deliver	value	to	its	
stakeholders,	maintain	its	leadership	in	
the	ever-competitive	alcohol	industry	of	
Nepal,	and	while	doing	all	this,	charter	a	
sustainable	path	for	the	future.

I	would	like	to	take	this	opportunity	to	
share	with	you	an	in-depth	overview	
of	our	performance	in	the	FY	2080/81	

along	with	the	key	action	points	that	we	
undertook	to	overcome	the	myriad	of	
challenges	that	came	our	way	along	with	
our	future	plans,	and	most	importantly,	
our	unwavering	commitment	to	create	
and	deliver	long-term	value	for	our	dear	
shareholders.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW: FY 2080/81
HDL	faced	one	of	its	most	challenging	
period	in	the	fiscal	year	2080/81.	It	had	to	
undergo	through	adverse	impacts	of	both	
global	and	local	economic	downturns	
which	led	to	a	reduction	in	consumer	
spending,	leaving	an	indelible	adverse	
impact	on	the	company’s	sales.	Our	
Sales	Revenue	decline	by	30	percent	as	
compared	to	the	preceding	fiscal	year	
and	stood	at	an	amount	of	Rs.	208	crores	
while	our	Profit	after	Tax	witnessed	a	
decline	of	45	percent	in	comparison	to	
last	year	and	stood	at	an	amount	of	Rs.	
36.50	crores.
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Despite 

these	figures	
indicating	the	
derogatory 

effects	of	the	
recession,	it	is	

noteworthy	that	HDL	demonstrated	its	
organizational	resilience	by	successfully	
maintaining	its	profitability	and	efficiently	
managing	its	costs.	This	resilience	is	
also	the	result	of	the	company’s	robust	
operational	strategies	and	undoubtedly,	
the	undeterred	commitment	and	
dedication	of	entire	HDL	team.
In	addition	to	this,	HDL	continued	to	
benefit	from	its	zero-leverage	financial	
model	and	a	cash	balance	of	more	than	
NPR	2	billion	as	on	31’st	Asadh	2081,	
ensuring	financial	stability	as	well	as	its	
capacity	to	invest	in	future	growth	of	the	
company.

STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS  

FOR LONG-TERM GROWTH
Despite	operating	in	a	very	challenging	
environment,	HDL	was	able	to	double	
down	on	its	strategic	investments	which	
were	aimed	at	reinforcing	its	market	
leadership	as	well	as	carving	the	path	
ahead	for	sustainable	returns.	Some	of	the	
major	strategic	investments	done	by	the	
company	are	highlighted	below:

1. Malt Distillation Unit

HDL	took	a	proactive	approach	by	
investing	in	a	state-of-the-art	Malt	
Distillation	Unit	as	a	recognition	of	
the	international	trend	of	alcohol	
manufacturing	companies	shifting	
towards	premium	products.	This	strategic	
initiative	aims	to	produce	malt	spirits	that	
will	also	be	matured	in	the	Everest	Region,	
leveraging	the	unique	climatic	conditions	

to	create	a	premium	product	with	
unmatched	character	and	premiumness.

This	investment	is	also	a	part	of	the	
company’s	broader	vision	to	position	
HDL	as	a	renowned	global	name	in	the	
category	of	premium	aged	spirits.	HDL	
plans	to	launch	the	first	batches	of	this	
premium	product	in	the	coming	years.	
We	are	confident	that	the	launch	of	this	
premium	product	will	empower	the	
company	to	significantly	enhance	its	
product	portfolio	as	well	as	its	overall	
brand	equity.

2. Technological Advancements in 

Distillation

The	Company	has	also	invested	in	
cutting-edge	distillation	automation	
technologies	with	the	intention	of	
ensuring	consistency	and	maintaining	
its	market	leadership	in	Extra	Neutral	
Alcohol	(ENA)	production.	These	
upgrades	has	also	enabled	the	company	
to	meet	the	growing	demand	for	its	
product	offerings	while	ensuring	the	
highest	quality	standards.

3. Sustainable Practices with DDGS Dryer

HDL’s	commitment	to	sustainability	
has	been	clearly	demonstrated	
through	its	investment	in	the	dryer	
system	for	Distillers	Dried	Grains	with	
Solubles	(DDGS).	This	initiative	not	only	
eliminates	the	need	for	traditional	wet	
sludge	disposal	but	also	reduces	the	
environmental	impact	of	its	production	
process	eventually	contributing	to	a	
cleaner	and	greener	ecosystem.

4. Renewable Energy Initiatives

The	Company	is	proactively	exploring	
solar	energy	solutions	to	address	
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the	demands	of	its	internal	power	
consumption	with	plans	to	sell	any	surplus	
energy	generated	from	these	initiatives	to	
the	national	grid.	As	part	of	this	initiative,	
HDL	is	closely	evaluating	the	feasibility	of	
agrivoltaics,	which	is	a	mechanism	that	
combines	renewable	energy	production	
with	agricultural	activities	and	also	
enables	efficiency	maximization	of	land	
use	efficiency.

PRODUCT PORTFOLIO EXPANSION

In	the	Fy	2080/81,	HDL	continued	
its commitment to diversifying and 

strengthening	its	product	portfolio	to	
effectively	address	the	ever-evolving	
preferences	of	its	diverse	customer	base:

1. New Product Lines

It	is	delightful	news	that	HDL’s	Oak	Series,	
featuring	the	promising	Silver	Oak,	has	
already	gained	traction	in	the	market.	
However,	the	company	believes	in	the	
need	to	continuously	nurture	this	product	
line	for	the	upcoming	2-3	years	through	
innovative	marketing	and	consumer	
engagement strategies and initiatives so 

that	Silver	Oak	is	able	to	unlock	its	full	
potential.

2. Premium and Deluxe Categories
HDL	has	plans	to	launch	new	products	
in	the	category	of	whisky,	vodka,	rum,	
gin,	liqueurs,	and	ready-to-drink	(RTD)	
beverages	to	fill	the	existing	gaps	in	the	
premium	and	deluxe	segments	in	the	
market.	HDL	believes	that	these	categories	
hold	significant	potential,	and	as	such	it	
is	committed	to	creating	offerings	that	
resonate	with	its	demanding	consumers.

3. Strategic Partnerships

The	Company	is	also	exploring	potential	

partnerships	with	various	multinational	
companies	so	that	it	is	able	to	bring	
internationally	recognized	products	to	
Nepal.	This	strategic	collaboration	is	also	
expected	to	further	strengthen	HDL’s	
market	position	and	thereby	enable	it	
to	offer	a	broader	range	of	premium	
offerings	to	suit	the	unique	needs	of	its	
diverse	customers.

EXPLORING NEW BUSINESS VENTURES

HDL	has	not	only	been	expanding	its	
core	operations,	but	it	is	also	exploring	
suitable	and	profitable	opportunities	
in	adjacent	industries	so	that	it	is	able	
to	further	diversify	its	existing	revenue	
streams:

1. Fisheries Project

HDL	is	also	venturing	into	the	fisheries	
business	with	the	help	of	a	subsidiary,	
where	it	plans	to	utilize	its	vacant	land	to	
produce	and	supply	fresh,	high-quality	
fish	to	the	market.	This	project	is	also	
an	effective	representation	of	HDL’s	
innovative	diversification	strategy	while	
ta	the	same	time	addressing	the	demands	
of	the	local	market	and	enhancing	
its	contributions	to	the	Nepalese	
agricultural	scenario.

2. Merger and Acquisitions

The	Company	is	also	stringently	
evaluating	possibilities	of	potential	
mergers	and	acquisitions	of	Distillery	
to	further	solidify	its	product	portfolio,	
increase	its	market	share,	and	thereby,	
achieve	economies	of	scale.

3. Investment Plan

In	the	future,	HDL	aims	to	create	a	
platform	for	strategic	investments	in	the	
high-growth	sectors	through	optimum	
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utilization	of	its	available	resources	so	
that	it	is	able	to	ensure	maximum	returns	
fits	valued	shareholders.	This	initiative	is	
in	close	alignment	with	HDL’s	long-term	
vision	to	achieve	sustainable	growth	and	
value	creation.	As	such,	it	is	evaluating	
various	options	for	the	best	investment	
opportunities	for	the	Company.	

MARKETING CHALLENGES AND 

CREATIVE SOLUTIONS

The	Nepalese	alcohol	industry	has	
always	faced	the	wrath	of	the	country’s	
restrictive	advertising	policies	for	liquor	
products	and	this	one	factor	has	always	
remained	as	a	persistent	challenge	
for	alcohol	manufacturing	industries.	
Though	HDL’s	direct	communication	with	
consumers	has	been	affected	by	these	
limitations,	its	teams	are	continuously	and	
rigorously	developing	various	innovative	
yet	compliant	marketing	strategies	to	
enhance	brand	visibility	and	engagement	
of	its	series	of	product	offerings	as	well	as	
the	overall	corporate	brand.
The	Company	has	been	able	to	establish	
meaningful	connections	with	its	diverse	
set	of	consumers	through	maximum	
leveraging	of	different	digital	platforms,	
experiential	marketing,	and	creative	
storytelling.	

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE AND DIGITAL 

TRANSFORMATION

To	support	the	Company’s	growth	
ambitions,	HDL	is	continuously	enhancing	
its	operational	capabilities	with	the	help	of	
a	more	efficient	ERP	system.	This	system	
will	also	assist	HDL	to	further	streamline	
its	processes,	improve	its	transparency,	
and	enable	data-driven	decision-making.	

All	this	will	ultimately	help	the	company	
to	ensure	that	it	remains	agile	and	
competitive	in	the	dynamic	market	
landscape.	

COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE SOCIAL 

RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
HDL	is	fully	aware	of	its	roles	and	
responsibilities	as	a	responsible	
corporate	citizen	and	as	a	result	of	this,	
it	has	always	prioritized	giving	back	to	
the	community.	The	Company’s	CSR	
initiatives are spread across a myriad 

of	areas	including	but	not	limited	to	
education,	healthcare,	environmental	
conservation,	and	community	
development.	HDL	strongly	abides	by	the	
fact	that	a	strong	and	prosperous	society	
is	essential	for	sustainable	business	
growth	and	has	been	implementing	
various	CSR	initiatives	throughout	the	
country	for	the	same.

EMPLOYEE VALUE AND RECOGNITION

HDL	is	well	aware	of	the	fact	that	its	true	
strength	lies	in	its	team	of	competent	
and	dedicated	employees.	It	has	place	its	
utmost	emphasis	on	fostering	a	culture	of	
inclusivity,	innovation,	and	collaboration	
in	the	organization.	At	the	same	time,	it	
has	also	placed	recognition	and	reward	
of	employee	contributions	as	an	integral	
component	of	its	core	values	and	as	a	
result	of	this,	the	Company	has	been	
continuously	invest	in	the	growth	and	
well-being	of	its	employees.

FY 2081/82: A PROMISING START
It	fills	me	with	immense	pride	and	
pleasure	to	share	with	you	all	that	HDL	
has	been	able	to	register	double-digit	
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growth	in	both	Sales	Revenue	and	Profit	
after	Tax	in	the	first	quarter	of	FY	2081/82.	
This	remarkable	achievement	is	a	strong	
testament	to	the	resilience	of	HDL’s	
innovative	and	robust	strategies	and	
the	dedication		and	hard	work	of	its	staff	
members.	

THE ROAD AHEAD

As	we	look	to	the	future,	our	roadmap	
is	clear.	Our	path	looks	very	promising	
with	some	of	the	major	strategies	that	we	
believe	will	assist	us	to	deliver	exemplary	
performances	in	the	days	to	come	as	well:
n		Premium	Product	Leadership:	we	plan	
to	complete	the	Malt	Distillation	Unit	
and	launch	world-class	aged	spirits	
under	the	HDL	banner.

n		Diversification:	we	aim	to	further	
diversify	our	business	by	expanding	
into	newer	and	promising	areas	such	as	
fisheries,	agrivoltaics,	renewable	energy	
etc.	

n		Portfolio	Expansion:	we	are	geared	up	to	
introduce	new	products	in	the	premium	
and	deluxe	categories	so	that	we	are	to	
capture	untapped	market	potential	and	
reap	benefits	and	value	for	our	company	
and	our	stakeholders.

n		Sustainability:	we	aim	to	reduce	our	
carbon	footprint	through	development	
and	implementation	of	renewable	
energy	initiatives	and	sustainable	
practices.

n		Global	Presence:	we	are	ready	to	further	
explore	viable	export	opportunities	
for	finished	goods	and	surplus	ENA	to	
establish	a	global	footprint	of	HDL.

HDL	is	undeterred	and	steadfast	in	its	
commitment	to	transparency,	compliance,	

and	governance,	ensuring	that	every	
decision	we	make	aligns	with	its	values	
and	the	interests	of	its	stakeholders.
As	I	draw	to	a	close,	I	would	like	to	
reiterate	the	fact	to	our	dear	shareholders	
that	HDL’s	journey	is	a	shared	success	
story.	All	of	our	achievements	are	
based	on	the	strong	foundation	of	
your	trust,	support,	and	belief	in	our	
vision.	The	journey	ahead	will	require	
us	to	navigate	through	a	series	of	
unchartered	challenges	and	seize	
beneficial	opportunities.	I	assure	you	that	
in	the	days	to	come,	HDL	will	continue	
to	prioritize	your	interests,	deliver	
exceptional	returns,	and	build	a	legacy	of	
excellence	as	a	successful,	dependable	
and	sustainable	organization.
We	are	confident	that	we	shall	not	only	
be	able	to	travel	the	path	ahead	that	is	
filled	with	promises	and	dreams,	and	
together	with	your	undoubted	trust	and	
unwavering	support	we	shall	be	able	to	
make	HDL.	not	just	a	national	market	
leader	but	also	a	global	name	that	
resonates	with	quality,	innovation,	and	
sustainability.

I	once	again	express	my	heartfelt	
appreciation	to	each	one	of	you	for	your	
continued	support	and	confidence	and	
I	am	confident	that	HDL	will	continue	
receiving	your	trust	and	assistance	to	
achieve	new	milestones	and	create	
lasting	value	for	generations	to	come.

Niraj Subedi

Chief	Executive	Officer
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Profile of Management Team

Niraj Subedi Amul Ghimire

Prabin Pant

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER SENIOR TECHNICAL MANAGER

CHIEF INTERNAL AUDITOR

Mr.	Subedi	was	appointed	the	Chief	
Executive	Officer	of	HDL	in	July	2023.	
He	is	a	Chartered	Accountant	with	a	
Master’s	degree	in	Economics.	He	is	
also	Law	Graduate	from	Nepal	Law	
Campus	along	with	a	certification	
as	a	Certified	Financial	Manager	
from	the	Centre	for	Financial	
Management	in	India.	With	over	
19	years	of	extensive	experience	in	
Finance	and	Operations	in	the	liquor	
industry,	he	possesses	a	deep	and	
broad	knowledge	based	in	financial	
planning	and	analysis,	supply	chain	
management	and	market	trends,	
along	with	a	deep	understanding	of	
the	production	processes	specific	
to	alcoholic	beverages.	His	tenure	
has	been	marked	by	a	steadfast	
commitment	to	international	quality	
standards,	corporate	governance,	and	
continuous	innovation.

Mr.	Ghimire,	a	B.	Tech	
Graduate	in	Food	Science	and	
Technology,	also	holds	degrees	
in	Physics	and	an	MBA.	With	
over a decade of extensive 

experience	in	manufacturing	
including	Fermentation,	
Quality	assurance,	R&D,	Project	
Management,	and	Operation	
Management	in	State-of-the-
art	Distillery	and	Brewery,	
he	also	has	an	International	
Diploma	in	Brewing	technology	
from	Seibel	Institute	of	
Technology,	USA	&	Domens	
Akademie,	Germany	along	
with	a	Diploma	in	Brewing	
from	Institute	of	Brewing	and	
Distilling	from	London,	UK.

Mr.	Pant,	an	MBA	graduate,	has	
recently	taken	on	the	role	of	Chief	
Internal	Audit	at	HDL.	Before	this,	
he	spent	six	years	with	an	FMCG	
Group,	where	he	was	pivotal	in	
investment management and 

financial	controls.	With	17	years	of	
experience	in	the	banking	sector,	
beginning	at	Standard	Chartered	
Bank	and	advancing	through	
various	commercial	banks	in	
significant	roles,	he	brings	a	
wealth	of	expertise	in	financial	
management	and	compliance.
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Sudesh Poudel
BRAND MANAGER

Mr.	Poudel	has	recently	joined	
HDL	as	a	Brand	Manager.	He	
holds	a	bachelor’s	degree	
and	has	over	21	years	of	
diverse	experience	in	the	
marketing	field	across	various	
organizations.	He	brings	
in	wealth	of	experience	in	
trade	marketing	and	excels	
in	channel	management,	
promotions,	customer	
insights,	and	fostering	retailer	
relationships	to	drive	sales	and	
market	presence.

Jeevan Panday
OPERATION MANAGER

Mr.	Panday,	an	professional	
FCCA	and	MBA	graduate,	
has	been	with	HDL	for	the	
past	four	years.	He	has	
over a decade of extensive 

experience	in	various	
companies	across	the	
manufacturing	and	service	
sectors,	demonstrating	
his	expertise	and	insights	
in	financial	planning,	
budgeting,	project	planning	
and	resource	management.	
He	is	playing	a	pivotal	role	
in	Operation	and	various	
Projects.

Nabin Upadhyaya
FACTORY MANAGER

Mr.	Upadhyaya	has	been	
serving	as	the	Factory	
Manager	at	HDL	for	the	past	
four	years.	He	holds	an	MBA	
degree	and	brings	over	17	
years	of	diverse	professional	
experience	across	various	
organizations.	Additionally,	
he	has	completed	training	
in	Food	Safety	Awareness	
(Standards	in	Manufacturing)	
in	the	United	Kingdom	and	
possesses	extensive	knowledge	
of	production	processes,	
regulatory	compliance,	and	
quality	control	specific	to	the	
liquor	industry.

Netra Prasad Timsina 
LEGAL & COMPLIANCE MANAGER

Mr.	Timsina	holds	a	
bachelor's	degree	and	has	
more	than	two	decades	of	
valuable	experience	in	the	
country's	legal	landscape,	
along	with	ten	years	as	
a company secretary in 

the	liquor	industry.	He	
specializes	in	industrial	laws	
and	regulations	and	has	a	
strong	command	of	both	
national	and	international	
environmental	laws.
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Rajeev Kumar Yadav Alina Shrestha

Anjali Shrestha 

TECHNICAL RESEARCH & 

APPLICATION MANAGER

FINANCE MANAGER

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGER

Mr.	Yadav	joined	HDL's	research	
and	application	department	in	
July	2023,	holding	a	master's	
degree in Fermentation and 

Alcohol	Technology	from	
Kanpur,	India.	In	2023,	he	also	
completed	a	fellowship	in	
Fermentation	Technology.	With	
over ten years of experience 

as	an	Alcohol	Technologist,	
he	specializes	in	product	
development	across	various	
liquor	sectors,	demonstrating	
expertise	in	fermentation,	
distillation,	and	quality	control	
processes.

Ms.	Shrestha,	an	MBA	graduate,	
is	also	a	semi-qualified	
Chartered	Accountant.	She	
has	recently	joined	HDL	and	
is	leading	daily	managerial	
finance	in	the	company	as	well	
as	providing	strategic	inputs	
on	financial	planning.	She	
has	extensive	experience	of	
over	a	decade	in	accounting,	
auditing	and	financial	reporting	
in	manufacturing	as	well	as	
service	industries.

Ms.	Shrestha	has	been	at	the	
helm	of	the	Human	Resource	
Department	at	HDL	for	the	past	
four	years.	She	earned	her	MBA	
from	Kathmandu	University,	
specializing	in	Human	
Resource	Management.	With	
over	seven	years	of	substantial	
experience	in	the	HR	field,	she	
brings	a	wealth	of	expertise	and	
knowledge	to	her	position.
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Nikunj Ghimire
PROCUREMENT MANAGER

Mr.	Ghimire	has	over	18	years	
of progressive experience in 

procurement	across	various	
sectors,	including	development	
and	manufacturing.	He	
is	a	trained	procurement	
professional	with	certifications	
in	ethics	and	an	introductory	
course	on	procurement	
from	UNFPA.	He	possesses	
extensive	knowledge	in	vendor	
negotiation,	evaluation,	
materials	management,	and	
supply	chain	management.

Nisha Niraula
COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms.	Niraula	holds	a	Master's	
Degree	in	Law	and	has	
been	with	HDL	for	the	past	
three	years.	She	also	serves	
as	a	Board	Member	at	the	
Nepal	Institute	of	Company	
Secretaries	(NICS)	and	
has	significant	experience	
in	the	humanitarian	and	
development	sectors.

Shrida Shah
BRAND MANAGER

Ms.	Shah	has	recently	joined	
HDL	as	a	Brand	Manager.	
She	holds	a	master’s	degree	
and	has	over	a	decade	
of diverse experience 

in	the	development	and	
manufacturing	sectors.	With	
expertise	in	public	relations,	
event	management,	and	
brand	marketing,	she	plays	
a	key	role	in	developing	
strategic	and	tactical	plans	
for	all	our	brands.

Amar Maharjan
MIS & SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGER

Mr.	Maharjan,	a	Chartered	
Accountant	with	a	bachelor’s	
degree	in	accounts	and	finance,	
leads	the	MIS	&	Supply	Chain	
department	at	HDL,	a	role	he	
has	held	since	January	2024.	
With	over	five	years	of	diverse	
experience	in	MIS	reporting,	
financial	planning,	analysis,	and	
audit,	he	leverages	his	expertise	
and	knowledge	to	support	data-
driven	management	reporting,	
strategic	decision-making,	
and	efficient	supply	chain	
coordination.

PRODUCTS & SERVICES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INVESTOR'S RELATIONSHIP DISTRIBUTION NETWORK



50 HIMALAYAN DISTILLERY LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RISK REVIEW CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Himalayan	Distillery	Limited	(HDL)’s	
commitment	to	corporate	social	
responsibility	(CSR)	has	been	exemplified	
through	its	governance	framework	which	
heavily	emphasizes	ethical,	sustainable,	
and	community-centric	practices.	The	
Company’s	intense	focus	on	responsible	
shareholder	relations,	sustainability,	fair	
employee	relations,	and	active	community	
engagement	shed	light	on	its	dedication	
not	only	to	profit	generation	and	financial	
growth	but	also	to	the	well-being	of	the	
overall	environment	and	society.	HDL’s	
integrated	approach	has	close	alignment	
with	its	CSR	principles,	showcasing	HDL’s	
efforts	to	minimize	its	environmental	
impact,	support	local	communities,	and	
promote	responsible	practices	within	the	
alcoholic	beverage	industry.	As	a	result,	
HDL’s	governance	structure	is	inextricably	
linked	with	its	CSR	initiatives,	reflecting	
a	holistic	approach	to	business	that	goes	
beyond	profits	and	prioritizes	broader	
social	and	environmental	implications	of	
its	operations.

Himalayan	Distillery	Limited	(HDL)’s	
commitment	to	corporate	social	
responsibility	(CSR)	has	been	exemplified	
through	its	governance	framework	which	
heavily	emphasizes	ethical,	sustainable,	
and	community-centric	practices.	The	
Company’s	intense	focus	on	responsible	
shareholder	relations,	sustainability,	fair	
employee	relations,	and	active	community	
engagement	shed	light	on	its	dedication	
not	only	to	profit	generation	and	financial	
growth	but	also	to	the	well-being	of	the	
overall	environment	and	society.	HDL’s	
integrated	approach	has	close	alignment	
with	its	CSR	principles,	showcasing	HDL’s	
efforts	to	minimize	its	environmental	
impact,	support	local	communities,	and	
promote	responsible	practices	within	the	
alcoholic	beverage	industry.	As	a	result,	
HDL’s	governance	structure	is	inextricably	
linked	with	its	CSR	initiatives,	reflecting	
a	holistic	approach	to	business	that	goes	
beyond	profits	and	prioritizes	broader	
social	and	environmental	implications	of	
its	operations.

Corporate 
Governance 
Overview 

Business ethics, 
compliance, and 
anti-corruption 
measures 
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 S. N. NAME AND REPRESENTED NOS. OF DATE OF DATE OF TAKING MODE OF APPOINTMENT OF  
  ADDRESS OF GROUP SHARES APPOINTMENT OATH AND DIRECTOR 
  DIRECTORS    SECRECY OF  
      THE POST 

	 1	 Mr.	Akhileshwor	Prasad	 General	Public	 110880	 January	12,		 January	12,		 Appointed	by	the	General	 
	 	 Singh,	Sarlahi	 	 	 2022	A.D.	 2022	A.D.	 Meeting	through	election
	 2	 Mr.	Narendra	Kumar		 General	Public	 17235	 January	12,		 January	12,	 Appointed	by	the	General	 
	 	 Basnyat,	Lalitpur		 	 	 2022	A.D.	 2022	A.D.	 Meeting	through	election 

	 	 Metropolitan	City,	 
	 	 Ward	No.	01,	Kupondole		 	 	
	 3	 Mr.	Shanker	Raj	Pandey,	 General	Public	 762	 January	12,		 January	12,		 Appointed	by	the	General 
	 	 Old	Baneshwor,	Kathmandu		 	 2022	A.D.	 2022	A.D.	 Meeting	through	election
	 4	 Mr.	Santoo	Shrestha,		 General	Public	 762	 January	12,	 January	12,		 Appointed	by	the	General 
	 	 KMC-11,	Thapathali	 	 	 2022	A.D.	 2022	A.D.	 Meeting	through	election
	 5	 Mrs.	Yangkila	(Sherpa)		 General	Public	 462	 January	12,		 January	12,	 Appointed	by	the	General 
	 	 Ruit,	KMC	-01,	Naxal	 	 	 2022	A.D.		 2022	A.D.	 Meeting	through	election
	 6	 Mr.	Prakash	Mani	Ghimire,		 Independent		 	 January	26,		 January	26,		 Pursuant	to	rule	6	(a)	of	the 

	 	 Lalitpur	Metropolitan		 	 	 2022	A.D.	 2022	A.D.	 Articles	of	Association 

	 	 City	-03,	Pulchowk	 	 	 	 	 of	the	company.	

 S. N. DATE AND NUMBER OF MEETINGS NUMBER OF HAS THE REQUIRED THE NUMBER OF DATE OF MEETING HELD IN 
  OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS DIRECTORS QUORUM BEEN DIRECTORS WHO PREVIOUS PERIOD  
  CONVENED DURING THIS PERIOD PRESENT REACHED OR NOT? SIGNED THE 
     DECISION OF THE 
     MEETING WITH A 
     DISSENTING VOTE 

	 1.	 September	5,	2023	 5	persons		 Yes	 No	 August	29,	2022
	 2.	 November	26,	2023	 6	persons	 Yes	 No	 November	8,	2022
	 3.	 December	3,	2023	 6	persons	 Yes	 No	 November	24,	2022
	 4.	 January	10,	2024	 4	persons	 Yes	 No	 November	25,	2022
	 5.	 March	11,	2024	 6	persons		 Yes	 No	 January	11,	2022
	 6.	 March	12,	2024	 6	persons		 Yes	 No	 April	4,	2023
	 7.	 May	10,	2024	 5	persons	 Yes	 No	 May	24,	2023
	 8.	 May	29,	2024	 5	persons	 Yes	 No	 May	25,	2023
	 9.	 July	1,	2024	 6	persons		 Yes	 No	 July	7,	2023
	 10.	 July	7,	2024	 4	persons		 Yes	 No
	 11.	 July	12,	2024	 6	persons		 Yes	 No

c)	Details	relating	Board	of	Director:	

d)	Meeting	of	Board	of	Directors	

The	meeting	of	the	Board	of	Directors	convened	this	year	was	not	adjourned	due	to	lack	of	the	quorum.

1.	 Details	relating	Board	of	Directors:

a)	Name	of	the	Chairperson	of	the	Board	of	Directors	and	Date	of	Appointment:	Mr.	Akhileshwor	Prasad	Singh,	date	
January	26,	2022	A.D.

b)	Details	regarding	the	share	structure	of	the	organization	(promoter,	ordinary	public	and	others):	Lock-in	period	of	the	
Company	has	been	completed.	Therefore,	all	the	shares	have	been	listed	by	converting	into	ordinary	share.

Annual compliance report related to corporate governance
{Pursuant to the Governance Guidelines of Listed Body Corporate, 2074 (2017)}

 NAME OF THE LISTED BODY CORPORATE HIMALAYAN DISTILLERY LIMITED

	 Address,	Email	including	Website		 Parsa,	Birgunj	Metropolitan	City,	Ward	No.	21,	Lipanibirta	Parsa,	Liaison	Office	Lalitpur			
	 	 Metropolitan	City,	Ward	No.	05,	Jawalakhel,	Lalitpur
	 	 www.himalayandistillery.com		
Fiscal	year	of	presentation	of	report	 2080/081	(2023/2024)
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 S. N. SUBJECT DATE:  DETAILS OF PLACE OF 
  JULY 7, 2024 A.D. PARTICIPATED DIRECTORS CONDUCT OF TRAINING   

	 1	 Laws,	rules,	policies,	directives		 1)	Mr.	Akhileshwor	Prasad	Singh	 Liaison	Office,	 
	 	 related	to	body	corporate		 2)	Mr.	Narendra	Kumar	Basnyat	 Jawalakhel,	Lalitpur 

	 	 governance,	Internal	Control		 3)	Mr.	Shanker	Raj	Pandey 

	 	 System,	Work	responsibilities	 4)	Mr.	Santoo	Shrestha	 
	 	 of	Board	of	Directors	that	are		 5)	Mr.	Prakash	Mani	Ghimire 

	 	 being	practiced	in	Nepal.	 6)	Ms.	Yangkila	(Sherpa)	Ruit

2. Details relating conduct of Directors and other:

e)	Other	details	relating	meeting	of	Board	of	Directors:

Whether	the	director	and	alternate	director	attended	
the	meeting	of	the	board	of	directors	(if	not,	disclose	the	
reason	along	with	the	date	of	the	meeting):

Having	kept	a	separate	record	of	the	directors	present	
at	the	meeting	of	the	board	of	directors,	the	agenda	
discussed	and	the	details	of	the	resolution	(minute)	
kept	in	that	regard:

The	maximum	gap	between	two	consecutive	meetings	
of	the	Board	of	Directors:

The	date	of	the	annual	general	meeting	regarding	the	
determination	of	the	meeting	allowance	of	the	board	of	
directors:

Board	of	Directors	per	meeting	allowance	Rs.

Total	meeting	allowance	of	Board	of	Directors,	Account	
Committee	and	Other	Committee	for	the	fiscal	year	
2023/2024	

1.	On	September	5,	2023	Director	Yangkila	Sherpa	Ruit	
was	out	of	the	Valley	and	could	nor	attend	the	meeting
2.	On	January	10,	2024	Director	Narendra	Kumar	
Basnyat	could	not	attend	the	meeting	held	on	Birgung	
due	to	health	problem	and	Director	Yangkila	Sherpa	
Ruit	were	out	of	the	country,
3.	On	May	10,	2024	and	May	29,	2024	Director	Yangkila	
Sherpa	Ruit	was	out	of	the	country	and	could	not	attend	
the	meeting	and	Mr.	Santoo	Shrestha	and	Yangkila	
Sherpa	Ruit	cound	not	attend	the	meeting	dated	July	7,	
2024	due	to	personal	household	problem.	

Separate	record	of	minute	has	are	kept.

81	days	

January	10,	2024	A.D.	(23rd	Annual	General	Meeting)

Rs.	25,000.00	for	chairperson
Rs.	20,000.00	for	member	

Rs.	15,95,000.00

Whether	there	is	a	code	of	conduct	of	the	relevant	organization	
regarding	the	conduct	of	the	director	or	not

If	there	is	more	than	one	director	of	a	same	family,	the	relevant	details:

Details	related	to	annual	training	and	refresher	program	of	directors:

The	code	of	conduct	prescribed	by	the	
prevailing	law	has	been	followed.	Separate	
code	of	conducted	has	not	been	formulated.

None	

Advocate	Madhab	Regmi 
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3. Details regarding the organization’s risk management and internal check system: The function of internal control

system has been carried out via Board of Directors and Internal Audit Committee. 

a)	Whether	any	committee	has	been	formed	for	risk	management	or	not,	reason	thereof:	Formed.

b)	Information	about	risk	management	committee:	A	three-member	committee	has	been	formed	under	the	
coordination	of	independent	director	Mr.	Prakashmani	Ghimire,	director	Mr.	Santoo	Shrestha,	and	the	chief	
executive	officer	of	the	company	and	the	committee	has	been	analyzing	risk	and	performing	works	for	minimizing	
them.	

	 (i)	 Structure	of	the	committee	(name	and	designation	of	the	coordinator	and	member):	
	 Mr.	Prakash	Mani	Ghimire		 	 Coordinator	
	 Mr.	Santoo	Shrestha	 	 	 Member
	 Chief	Executive	Officer	 	 	 Member		
 

	 (ii)		Nos.	of	meeting	of	the	committee:	One.
	 (iii)	Summarized	details	of	functions	of	the	Committee	are	prescribed	as	under.

	 1.	 (a)		This	committee	shall	mainly	take	into	account	the	company’s	physical	property	risk,	business	strategic	risk,	 
	 	 legal	governance	risk,	human	resource	risk,	technology	related	risk	and	financial	planning	and		 	
	 	 implementation	related	risk	and	shall	work	to	solve	and	minimize	it.

	 	 (b)	 	To	determine	company’s	risk	management	policy,	make	a	risk	management	plan,	approving	it	and	perform		
	 	 and	caused	to	perform	its	periodic	evaluation,	review	and	assessment.

	 	 (c)		 To	study	the	policy	directives	and	suggestions	received	from	the	regulatory	body,	to	give	or	to	give	the	answer	 
	 	 or	information	to	be	submitted	on	behalf	of	the	company	in	view	of	its	implementation	or	need.

	 	 (d)	 To	develop	and	implement	policies	and	procedures	related	to	risk	management	process,	development	of	risk	 
	 	 control	or	mitigation	structures	and	operational	methods,	periodically	evaluate,	assess	and	review	the	same.

Whether	each	director	has/has	not	provided	the	information	of	the	following	in	
writing	within	15	days	of	being	appointed	or	nominated	to	the	post	of	director	and	
details	of	the	same	if	not:

If	he	or	any	member	of	his	same	family	has	entered	into	or	is	about	to	enter	into	any	
kind	of	agreement	with	the	organization,	the	details	thereof,

Details	of	shares	or	debentures	held	by	him/her	or	any	member	of	his/her	family	in	
the	body	corporate	or	the	main	or	subsidiary	company	of	the	organization,

If	he/her	is	the	basic	shareholder	or	director	of	any	other	body	corporate,	the	details	
thereof,

If	any	member	of	his/her	family	is	working	as	an	officer	or	employee	in	the	
organization,	the	details	thereof,	

If	the	director	has	worked	as	a	director,	salary	officer,	executive	officer	or	employee	
of	a	listed	organization	having	the	same	objectives,	the	details	thereof,

If	any	action	has	been	taken	against	the	director	by	regulatory	bodies	and	other	
bodies,	the	details	thereof:

Provided

None	

No

No

Not	done	

Not	done

No	information	has	been	
found
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	 	 (e)	 To	adopt	and	caused	to	adopt	contingency	fund	mobilization	methods	for	risk	management.
	 	 (f)	 To	identify,	evaluate,	supervise,	review,	control,	set	boundaries,	prepare	reports,	take	appropriate	initiatives	to	 

	 	 manage	the	main	risk	areas,	and	to	frame	and	caused	to	frame	policies	and	procures	in	such	regard	as	per	 
	 	 necessity.

	 	 (g)	 To	work	with	a	plan	to	prevent	and	minimize	the	impact	of	rapidly	developing	information	technology	and	 
	 	 cyber	security	risks.

	 	 (h)	 	To	prepare	the	company’s	governance	methods	and	policies	related	to	risk	management,	formulate	a	risk	 
	 	 management	plan	and	submit	it	for	the	approval	of	the	board	of	directors	if	necessary	and	implement	it.

	 (2)	Whether	there	is	an	internal	check	procedure	or	not:		The	company’s	human	resources	manual	and	financial	 
	 and	accounting	related	manuals,	procurement	manuals	have	been	adopted	and	works	has	been	done	accordingly,		 
	 and	in	addition	independent	internal	auditors	have	been	appointed	and	they	shall	independently	conduct	audits		
	 and	prepare	a	report,	and	the	report	shall	be	discussed	in	the	audit	committee	and	submitted	to	the	board	of		
	 directors	for	discussion	and	the	management	shall	act	according	to	the	direction	of	the	board	of	directors.

	 (3)	If	any	committee	has	been	formed/not	formed	for	the	internal	control	system,	the	reason	thereof:	No	separate	 
	 committee	has	been	formed.

	 (4)	Details	relating	internal	control	system	committee:	No	separate	committee	is	formed.	The	report	prepared	by	the	 
	 independent	internal	auditor	appointed	by	the	Board	of	Directors	after	quarterly	examination	of	the	transactions	 
	 and	internal	control	system	is	discussed	in	the	Audit	Committee	and	then	discussed	by	the	Board	of	Directors.

	 (5)	Whether	there	is	Financial	Administration	by-laws	or	not:	Yes	

 SUBJECT MEDIUM DATE OF PUBLISH

Notice	of	Annual	General	Meting	

Notice	of	Extra	Ordinary	General	
Meeting  

Annual	Report	

Quarterly	report	

Price	sensitive	notice	that	effect	
on	stock	price		

Annual	details

National	level	daily	newspaper	
(Kantipur)

National	level	daily	newspaper	
(Kantipur)

National	level	daily	newspaper	(Arthika	
Abhiyan)

Though	the	letter	of	company	
Decision	of	the	Board	of	Directors	
dated	December	3,	2023	A.D.	relating	
Cash	dividend	and	bonus	share	
allocation	upto	the	fiscal	year	2079/080	
(2022/023)	has	been	uploaded	on	the	
same	day	that	is	December	3,	2203	
A.D.	and	informed	to	Securities	Board	
of	Nepal	and	Nepal	Stock	Exchange	
Limited.			
Annual	General	Meeting	was	held	
on	January	10,	2024	and	decision	of	
the	meeting	was	published	in	Arthik	
Abhiyan	national	daily	newspaper	
dated	February	4,	2024	AD	and	also	
uploaded	in	website	for	information.

Published	on	December	18,	2023	A.D.	at	Kantipur	National	Daily,	
December	19,	2023	A.D.	at	Arthik	Abhiyan	National	Daily	and	in	
Company’s	website	also.
Not	been	called.	

Published	on	December	18	and	19,	2023	A.D.	(Abridged	Financial	
Report	(2022/2023	A.D.)	on	Kantipur	National	Daily,	Arthik	
Abhiyan	National	Daily	respectively	and	in	Company’s	website	
also.
Nov.	10,	2023	A.D.	–	First	quarter
Feb.	11,	2024	A.D.	–	Second	quarter	
May	03,	2024	A.D.	–	Third	quarter	
Aug.	14,	2024	A.D.	–	Fourth	quarter	
Published	in	website	too	and	the	publication	has	been	submitted	
to	SEBON	and	NEPSE.

Informed	to	the	shareholders.	

4. Details relating notice and information flow:
(a)	Details	of	notice	and	information	published	by	the	institution:
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	 (b)	 If	the	information	has	not	been	made	public	or	if	it	has	been	prosecuted	by	the	Securities	Board	and	other	agencies		
	 due	to	other	reasons,	the	information	thereof:	No.

	 (c)	 Date	of	last	annual	and	extra	ordinary	general	meeting:	Twenty-Third	Annual	General	Meeting,	January	10,	2024	A.D.

5.	 Details	relating	Organization	Structure	and	Personnel:	Enclosed	
	 a.	 Whether	there	is	Personnel	Service,	Terms	By-laws	containing	personnel	structure,	vacancy	fulfillment,	career	 

	 development,	training,	salary,	allowances	and	other	facilities,	attendance	and	leave,	code	of	conduct	etc	or	not:	 
 Present 

	 b.	 Enclose	organization	structure:	Enclosed	
	 c.	 Name,	academic	qualifications	and	details	of	experience	of	the	personnel	at	high	level	management:
	 	 1.	Niraj	Subedi,	CA,	19	years
	 	 2.	Netra	Prasad	Timsina,	Law	Graduates,	25	years
	 	 3.	Nabin	Upadhyaya,	MBA,	18	years
	 	 4.	Jeevan	Panday,	FCCA,	12	years
	 	 5.	Anjali	Shrestha,	MBA,	7.5	years
	 	 6.	Nisha	Niraula,	Master’s	Degree	in	Law,	9	years
	 	 7.	Keshav	Sigdel,	Bachelor’s	Degree	in	Law	and	Management,	12	years
	 d.	 Other	details	relating	personnel:	There	are	257	employees	and	workers	till	mid-July.

Whether	vacancy	has	been	fulfilled	according	to	the	
structure	or	not
Procedures	adopting	for	fulfilling	new	personnel	

Total	number	of	employees	(Till	mid-July)
Nos.	of	personnel	under	management
Whether	succession	plan	of	the	personnel	has	been	made	or	
not

Nos.	of	training	given	to	the	personnel	and	nos.	of	personnel	
participated	for	the	fiscal	year	2023/2024	A.D.
Personnel	training	expenditure	for	fiscal	year	2023/2024	A.D.
Percentage	of	personnel	expenditure	in	total	expenditure
Percentage	of	training	expenditure	in	total	personnel	
expenditure		

Done according to necessity 

Advertisement,	done	through	internal	and	external	
human	resource	related	organizations	
257
81
Yes

37	trainings,	364	personnel	

Rs.	866,428.85
11.50
0.46	
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6. Details of Account and Audit of the Institution:

a.	Details	relating	account:

b.	Details	relating	auditing:	

Whether	the	financial	details	of	last	fiscal	year	of	the	
institution	has	been	prepared	according	to	NFRS	or	not,	
if	not,	reason	thereof.	
Date	of	approval	of	latest	financial	details	approved	by	
the	Board	of	Directors	
Date	of	publication	of	quarter	end	financial	details	

Date	of	completion	of	last	final	auditing:
Date	of	approval	of	financial	details	from	the	General	
Meeting

Details	regarding	the	internal	audit	of	the	institution:
	 i)	An	internal	audit	is	done	or	an	external	expert	is		 	
     appointed

	 ii)	Details	of	the	external	expert,	if	appointed
	 iii)	How	often	are	internal	audits	conducted		 	
	 					(quarterly,	quarterly	or	semi-annually)

Prepared 

December	3,	2023	A.D.

Nov.	10,	2023	A.D.
Feb.	11,	2024	A.D	
May	3,	2024	A.D.	
Aug.	14,	2024	A.D.	
December	3,	2023	A.D.
January	10,	2024	A.D.

Done	by	appointing	external	expert	
SAR	&	Associates	(for	fiscal	year	2080/081	(2023/024)

Quarterly	

Name,	designation	and	
qualification	of	coordinator	and	
members	
Date of meeting convened and 

nos.	of	members	present:

Allowance	per	meeting
The	date	on	which	the	Audit	
Committee	submitted	its	report	
of	its	functions	to	the	Board	of	
Directors

Mr.	Shanker	Raj	Pandey,	Chairperson
Mr.	Narendra	Kumar	Basnyat,	Member	
Mr.	Santoo	Shrestha,	Member
September	1,	2023	A.D.,	3	persons	
November	24,	2023	A.D.,	3	persons
December	27,	2023	A.D.,	3	persons	
March	10,	2024	AD,	3	persons
May	29,	2024	A.D.,	3	persons	
Rs.	20,000.00	(Including	tax)
1.	 On	the	date	August	19,	2023	A.D.	decision	made	by	

the	audit	committee	after	reviewing	the	internal	
auditor’s	report	for	the	for	fourth	quarter	period	
of	fiscal	year	2022/2023	are	recommended	to	the	
Board	of	Directors	for	discussion.	Discussion	held	on	
annual	business	plan	of	FY	2023/24	and	new	projects	
such	as	establishment	of	plant	automation,	zero	
liquid	discharge	and	malt	spirit	unit.

2.	 On	November	24,	2023	A.D.,	after	the	review,	directed	
to	submit	the	audited	financial	statements	of	the	
company	including	the	subsidiaries	for	FY	2022/23	to	
the	Board	and	recommended	G.	Poudyal	&	Associates	
as	the	statutory	auditor	for	FY	2023/24	after	
discussion.
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3.	 On	the	date	December	27,	2023	A.D.	decision	made	by	the	
audit	committee	after	reviewing	the	internal	auditor’s	report	
for	the	first	quarter	period	of	fiscal	year	2023/2024	has	been	
submitted	to	the	board	of	directors.	

4.	 On	the	date	March	10,	2024	A.D.	discussion	made	by	the	audit	
committee	after	reviewing	the	internal	auditor’s	report	for	
the	second	quarter	period	of	fiscal	year	2023/2024	has	been	
submitted	to	the	board	of	directors.

5.	 On	May	29,	2024	A.D.	decision	made	by	the	audit	committee	
after	reviewing	the	internal	auditor’s	report	for	third	quarter	
period	of	fiscal	year	2023/2024	has	been	submitted	to	the	
board	of	directors.

7. Other Details:

Whether	the	institution	has	taken	any	credit	or	
borrowings	or	money	in	any	form	from	the	person,	
bank	and	financial	institution	having	financial	interest	
of	the	director	his	family	members.
Whether	any	person,	firm,	company,	employee,	advisor	
or	consultant	having	financial	interest	in	a	listed	
institution	other	than	the	benefits	or	facility	received	
as	a	company	director,	shareholder,	employee,	advisor	
or	consultant	have	use	the	property	of	the	institution	in	
other	manner
Whether	the	directives	issued	by	the	regulatory	body	
while	issuing	license	has	been	complied	or	not
Whether	the	instructions	given	to	the	institution	by	
the	regulatory	body	while	regulating,	inspecting	or	
supervising	the	organization	have	been	followed	or	not
If	there	is	a	court	case	against	the	institution	and	
director,	details	thereof

Not	taken	

None	

Done 

No	direction	has	been	obtained	
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Signature:	
Name	of	the	compliance	Officer:	Netra	Prasad	Timsina
Designation:	Compliance	Officer
Date:	December	8,	2024	AD
Seal	of	the	Institution:	

Report	approved	date	by	the	Board	of	Directors:	December	8,	2024	A.D.

Signature	of	Auditor:	

Seal	of	the	Institution:
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INTERNAL CONTROL MEASURES 

HDL	has	established	a	strong	internal	control	
framework	to	ensure	transparency,	efficiency,	and	
compliance.	Regular	internal	audits	help	identify	
risks	and	improve	operational	processes,	while	
external	audits	provide	independent	reviews	to	
enhance	trust	and	accountability.	The	management	
team	enforces	these	controls,	aligning	them	with	
organizational	goals	and	regulatory	requirements,	
while	the	Board	of	Directors	oversees	governance	
and	risk	management.	Comprehensive	internal	
policies	further	guide	operations,	ensuring	
ethical	standards	and	compliance.	Together,	these	
measures	demonstrate	HDL’s	commitment	to	
operational	excellence	and	accountability.

INTERNAL AUDIT

A	cornerstone	of	HDL’s	success	is	its	robust	control	
system	and	meticulous	internal	audit	framework.	
Conducted	quarterly	by	SAR	Associates	Chartered	
Accountants,	these	audits	are	followed	by	detailed	
discussions	on	the	reports	submitted	by	the	
Internal	Auditor.	The	Audit	Committee	provides	key	
recommendations	and	forwards	them	to	the	Board	
of	Directors	for	review.	The	audits	aim	to	ensure	
the	company’s	processes	are	efficient,	effective,	
and	compliant	with	internal	control	policies	
and	national	and	international	regulations.	The	
internal	audit	function	also	ensures	operational	
and	financial	efficiency,	as	well	as	legal	and	
regulatory	compliance,	supporting	robust	
corporate	governance	and	strong	internal	control.	
This	approach	helps	HDL	proactively	address	
potential	weaknesses,	maintain	high	standards	
of	transparency	and	accountability,	and	enhance	
operational	integrity	and	reputation.

Internal
Control

MARKET AUDIT

Market	audits	involve	an	in-depth	and	independent	
evaluation	of	an	organization’s	market-related	
expenditures.	HDL’s	expansive	and	well-integrated	
network	of	distributors,	wholesalers,	and	retailers	
has	played	a	pivotal	role	in	boosting	the	company’s	
nationwide	sales.	HDL	conducts	comprehensive	
market	audits	to	ensure	accountability	and	
effectiveness.	These	audits	include	systematic	
verification	of	trade	and	promotional	schemes	for	
its	business	partners,	along	with	monthly	checks	of	
their	sales	performance	and	stock	levels.	Moreover,	
market	audits	assess	promotional	activities	for	
HDL’s	brands,	examining	venue	branding,	product	
placement,	use	of	promotional	materials,	and	the	
execution	of	marketing	campaigns.	To	maintain	
a	competitive	edge,	market	auditors	also	carry	
out	detailed	competitor	assessments,	enabling	
HDL	to	monitor	and	respond	effectively	to	market	
dynamics.
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HDL	prioritizes	compliance	with	ISO	(International	
Organization	for	Standardization)	standards,	
viewing	ISO	audits	and	certifications	as	essential	
indicators	of	its	dedication	to	quality,	safety,	
environmental	stewardship,	and	adherence	
to	international	standards.	The	company	
possesses	five	ISO	certifications:	ISO	9001:2015	
(Quality	Management	System),	ISO	14001:2015	
(Environmental	Management	System),	ISO	
45001:2018	(Occupational	Health	and	Safety	
Management	System),	ISO	22000:2018	(Food	
Safety	Management	System),	and	a	Green	Building	
certification.

Furthermore,	HDL	has	consolidated	three	ISO	
standards—QMS,	EMS,	and	OHSMS—into	a	
cohesive	framework	known	as	the	Integrated	
Management	System	(IMS).	This	system	aims	to	
enhance	management	processes	and	ensure	the	
effective	application	of	ISO	standards.	Additionally,	
HDL	has	achieved	certification	for	four	ISO	
standards	through	DNV	(Det	Norske	Veritas),	a	
globally	recognized	independent	certification	
body	renowned	for	its	role	in	facilitating	global	
transformations.

To	maintain	high	compliance	with	ISO	and	Green	
Building	standards,	HDL	regularly	conducts	various	
activities	to	evaluate,	confirm,	and	verify	its	internal	
processes.	Key	activities	include:

n	Annual	Risk	Management
n	Annual	Review	of	Objectives
n	Legal	Compliance	Review
n	Evaluation	of	External	Providers
n	Consultation	and	Participation
n	Customer	Surveys
n	Training	and	Awareness
n	Good	Manufacturing	Practices	Audit
n	Internal	Audit
n Management Review Meetings

n	Performance	Evaluation	and	Review
n	Regular	External	Surveillance	Audits

ISO Audit & 
Certification

GREEN EXISTING BUILDING - GOLD STATUS:
Green	Building	practices	focus	on	creating	sustainable	
construction	that	minimizes	environmental	impact	
while	promoting	occupant	health	and	well-being.	
HDL	has	achieved	Green	Building	standards	(LEED	
V4	BREEAM)	under	the	Green	Existing	O&M	rating	
system	from	Otabu	Certification	Limited	(UK),	
earning	a	Green	Building	Gold	certification.	Key	
activities	supporting	compliance	with	Green	Building	
requirements	include:

n	Efficient	Energy	Usage
n	Efficient	Water	Usage
n	Resource	Conservation
n	Indoor	Environmental	Quality
n	Site	Sustainability
n	Health	and	Well-being
n	Adaptability	and	Resilience
n	Carbon	Footprint	Reduction
n	Waste	Reduction
n	Green	Infrastructure
n	Community	and	Social	Benefits

Green	Existing	Building	Certificate	Information:
Certificate Number:	601010517
Initial Certification Date: May	1,	2017
Validity: March	13,	2024	-	March	13,	2026

QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM ISO 9001:2015:
The	Quality	Management	System	provides	a	
structured	approach	to	ensure	quality	management	
across	all	organizational	operations,	focusing	on	
meeting	and	exceeding	customer	expectations.	Key	
activities	conducted	by	HDL	to	enhance	compliance	
with	ISO	9001:2015	include:

n	Customer	Satisfaction	Surveys
n Process Improvement Initiatives

n	Consistency	and	Standardization	Efforts
n	Legal	and	Regulatory	Compliance	Checks
n	Risk	Management	Strategies
n	Leadership	Commitment	Initiatives
n	Employee	Involvement	Programs
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n	Resource	Optimization	Practices
n	Evidence-based	Decision	Making
n	Continuous	Improvement	Efforts

ISO	9001:2015	Certificate	Information:
Certificate Number:	173250-2015-AQ-IND-RvA
Initial Certification Date:	May	4,	2007
Validity:	May	4,	2024	-	May	3,	2027

FOOD SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM ISO 
22000:2018:
This	standard	provides	a	comprehensive	framework	
for	ensuring	food	safety	throughout	the	supply	
chain,	enabling	HDL	to	strengthen	its	food	
safety	culture.	Key	compliance	activities	for	ISO	
22000:2018	include:

n	Food	Safety	Assurance	Measures
n Contamination Prevention Strategies

n	Legal	Compliance	Efforts
n	Risk	Management	Protocols
n	Traceability	and	Transparency	Initiatives
n	Resource	Optimization	Techniques
n	Operational	Control	through	PRP,	Hazard	Analysis,	
HACCP	Plan,	and	OPRP	Plan
n	Continuous	Improvement	Practices

ISO	22000:2018	Certificate	Information:
Certificate Number:	C619749
Initial Certification Date:	February	27,	2009
Validity: March	19,	2024	-	February	26,	2027

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM ISO 
14001:2015:
This	international	standard	outlines	a	framework	
for	effective	environmental	management,	
aiming	to	minimize	environmental	impact	while	
demonstrating	commitment	to	sustainability.	
Key	activities	for	compliance	with	ISO	14001:2015	
include:

n	Environmental	Performance	Improvement		 	
     Initiatives

n	Legal	Compliance	Checks
n	Pollution	Prevention	Strategies
n	Resource	Efficiency	Measures
n	Stakeholder	Engagement	Efforts
n	Transparency	and	Accountability	Practices
n	Waste	Reduction/Management	Initiatives
n	Continuous	Improvement	Strategies

ISO	14001:2015	Certificate	Information:
Certificate Number:	173756-2015-AE-IND-RvA
Initial Certification Date:	April	16,	2009
Validity:	April	16,	2024	-	April	15,	2027

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY 
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM ISO 45001:2018:
This	standard	provides	a	framework	for	protecting	
employee	health	and	safety	by	identifying	and	
mitigating	risks.	Key	compliance	activities	for	ISO	
45001:2018	include:
n	Occupational	Health	and	Safety	Risk	Management
n	Workplace	Accident	Reduction	Strategies
n	Employee	Well-being	Initiatives
n	Occupational	Illness	Prevention	Measures
n	Stakeholder	Engagement	Activities
n	Legal	Compliance	Efforts
n	Continuous	Improvement	Practices

ISO	45001:2018	Certificate	Information:
Certificate Number:	10000436760-MSC-RvA-IND
Initial Certification Date:	April	16,	2009
Validity: April	16,	2024	-	April	15,	2027
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TREE PLANTATION

This	year,	HDL	planted	an	additional	1,650	trees	at	
its	factory	premises,	adding	to	the	trees	planted	
last	year.	These	trees,	in	various	species,	provide	
multiple	environmental	and	economic	benefits.	
Strategically	placed	trees	reduce	energy	costs	by	
providing	shade,	cutting	down	on	air	conditioning	
needs	in	hot	months.	Expanding	tree	covers	around	
industrial	sites	helps	reduce	carbon	footprints	
and	supports	sustainability	goals.	This	initiative	
contributes	to	climate	regulation	and	strengthens	
the	ecosystem,	benefiting	both	the	environment	
and	the	community.	

INDUSTRIAL WASTE REDUCTION

HDL	is	installing	a	zero	liquid	discharge	(ZLD)	
system	to	better	manage	its	industrial	wastage,	
demonstrating	its	commitment	to	sustainable	
operations.	Sludge	generated	during	the	distillation	
process	will	be	converted	into	dry	cakes,	which	
will	be	sold	at	a	higher	value	than	untreated	
sludge,	contributing	to	an	increased	sales	revenue.	
Additionally,	the	industrial	waste	currently	
processed	through	the	Effluent	Treatment	Plant	
(ETP)	is	targeted	to	be	eliminated.	This	initiative	will	
significantly	enhance	the	industry’s	Environmental	
Performance	Index,	aligning	with	HDL’s	goals	
of	environmental	stewardship	and	operational	
efficiency.

REDUCING GROUND WATER INTAKE

HDL	has	implemented	a	zero	liquid	discharge	(ZLD)	
system,	reinforcing	its	commitment	to	sustainable	
and	efficient	operations.	This	system	enables	the	
recycling	of	water,	which	can	be	reused	in	industrial	
processes	such	as	cooling	towers	and	also	in	the	
gardening	and	plantation,	reducing	groundwater	
intake	by	approximately	40%.	

Sustainability 
Measures

IN PROCESS WASTE RECYCLE

HDL	actively	incorporates	sustainability	into	
its	operations	by	using	recycled	bottles	and	
selling	scrap	materials	to	generate	additional	
revenue.	These	initiatives	not	only	contribute	to	
resource	optimization	but	also	play	a	significant	
role	in	reducing	environmental	pollution.	By	
prioritizing	recycling	and	waste	management,	HDL	
demonstrates	its	commitment	to	environmental	
responsibility	while	creating	economic	value	from	
materials	that	would	otherwise	be	discarded.

GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

HDL	is	dedicated	to	giving	back	to	the	community	
through	a	wide	range	of	Corporate	Social	
Responsibility	(CSR)	initiatives.	These	efforts	focus	
on	key	areas	such	as	education,	health	&	wellness,	
sports,	support	for	religious	&	cultural	activities	
and	so	on.	Through	these	initiatives,	HDL	aims	to	
uplift	communities,	promote	well-being,	and	foster	
holistic	development,	reflecting	its	commitment	
to	social	responsibility	and	sustainable	growth.	
During	the	fiscal	year,	HDL	contributed	about	Rs.	
8.4	million	in	the	CSR	activities.	The	detailed	report	
for	the	CSR	activities	done	during	the	year	can	be	
found	in	the	CSR	section	of	this	report.	
Furthermore,	the	company	
provides	direct	employment	
to	more	than	200	local	people	
on	a	regular	basis	in	addition	to	
the	jobs	provided	indirectly	on	
a	daily	wage	basis.
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03
RISK MANAGEMENT

An organization is exposed to a series of risks 

throughout its business journey. These risk areas 

are spread across a variety of functional areas of the 

organization and they often come with diverse and often 

severe implications. This has made it inevitable for any 

business organization to emphasize risk management 

regarding its business operations. 
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An	organization	is	exposed	to	a	series	of	risks	
throughout	its	business	journey.	These	risk	
areas	are	spread	across	a	variety	of	functional	
areas	of	the	organization	and	they	often	come	
with	diverse	and	often	severe	implications.	
This	has	made	it	inevitable	for	any	business	
organization	to	emphasize	risk	management	
regarding	its	business	operations.	

Risk	management	can	be	defined	as	a	
systematic	process	that	focuses	on	the	
identification,	assessment,	and	prioritization	
of	a	series	of	risks	to	which	an	organization	
is	exposed.	It	involves	the	collaborative	and	
economical	application	of	available	resources	
to	monitor,	minimize,	and	control	the	impact	
of	these	various	categories	of	risks.	Risk	
management	stands	as	one	of	the	crucial	
aspects	of	decision-making	and	planning	for	
any	organization	throughout	the	course	of	its	
business.

HDL,	a	thriving	business	organization	is	
also	exposed	to	various	implicit	and	explicit	
implications	of	risk	management.	As	such,	
the	company	has	undertaken	a	system-based	
approach	to	identify	inherent	and	potential	
risks	within	and	beyond	the	company	and	
implement	mitigation	measures	to	reduce	the	
impact	of	such	risks	on	the	profitability	and	
sustainability	of	the	company.	The	various	
categories	of	risks	that	HDL	is	exposed	to	
along	with	the	mechanisms	to	curtail	them	are	
highlighted	below:

FINANCIAL RISK:

Financial	risk	can	be	defined	as	the	failure	
to	achieve	expected	financial	returns	on	
an	investment	or	in	the	course	of	business	
operations.	It	has	an	organization-wide	impact	
with	a	direct	threat	to	the	sustainability	and	
survival	of	any	organization.

HDL	has	in	place	a	system-based	risk	
management	philosophy	which	acts	as	the	
basis	for	its	policies	and	procedures	and	
internal	financial	controls	that	are	focused	on	
the	identification,	evaluation,	and	management	
of	the	crucial	financial	risks	of	the	company	
including	but	not	limited	to	market	risks,	
credit	risks,	and	liquidity	risks.	These	policies,	
procedures,	and	controls	aim	to	minimize	and	
neutralize	the	probable	consequence	created	
by	the	financial	risk	variables	in	the	company’s	
business	operations	as	well	as	investing	and	
financing	activities.	

In	addition	to	this,	HDL’s	risk	management	
framework	also	prioritizes	ensuring	
uncompromised	and	consistent	management	
of	financial	risks	in	line	with	the	acceptable	and	
approved	risk	parameters	of	the	company	as	
well	as	the	standards	set	aside	by	national	and	
international	regulations.

MARKET RISK: 

Market	risk	refers	to	the	potential	fluctuations	
in	the	fair	value	of	future	cash	flows	from	
financial	instruments	due	to	changes	in	market	
prices,	such	as	interest	rates,	foreign	exchange	
rates,	and	equity	prices.	These	fluctuations	
can	impact	on	the	Group’s	income	or	the	value	
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of	its	financial	holdings.	The	group’s	exposure	
to	changes	in	market	interest	rates	primarily	
stems	from	its	short-term	demand	loans	with	
variable	interest	rates.	At	the	end	of	the	year,	
the	balance	of	term	loans	was	Rs.	Nil	(2079-80:	
Rs.	Nil),	with	short-term	and	demand	loans	also	
at	Rs.	Nil	(2079-80:	Rs.	Nil).	To	manage	interest	
rate	risk,	the	Group	actively	monitors	cash	flows	
and	negotiates	favorable	borrowing	and	deposit	
rates.	If	interest	rates	were	to	rise	or	fall	by	50	
basis	points	while	keeping	all	other	variables	
constant,	the	profit	before	tax	for	the	year	
would	decrease	or	increase	by	Rs.	96	(2079-80:	
Rs.	1,69,306).	Additionally,	the	Group	engages	in	
transactions	primarily	denominated	in	Indian	
Rupees,	which	mitigates	exposure	to	exchange	
rate	fluctuations.	The	Group	does	not	actively	
invest	in	equity	markets.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The	Group’s	current	assets	total	Rs.	
2,66,82,92,295	(2079-80:	Rs.	3,05,99,15,611),	
which	includes	cash	and	cash	equivalents	
along	with	other	bank	balances	amounting	to	
Rs.	2,24,00,60,121	(2079-80:	Rs.	54,65,57,780).	
This	is	against	the	total	current	liabilities	of	Rs.	
23,98,98,292	(2079-80:	Rs.	28,29,84,354),	which	
includes	term	loans	maturing	within	one	year	
totaling	Rs.	Nil	(2079-80:	Rs.	Nil).

Furthermore,	the	Group	has	access	to	undrawn	
borrowing	facilities	from	banks	amounting	

to	Rs.	375,000,000	(2079-80:	Rs.	375,000,000)	as	of	the	
reporting	date.	Given	these	circumstances,	there	is	no	risk	
of	liquidity	that	would	prevent	the	Group	from	meeting	its	
obligations	as	they	come	due.

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

Credit	risk	represents	a	potential	financial	loss	to	the	
Group	if	a	customer	or	counterparty	fails	to	fulfill	their	
contractual	obligations.	This	risk	primarily	arises	from	
trade	receivables.	The	Group	extends	credit	to	its	customers	
based	on	its	business	interests	in	accordance	with	its	
credit	policy.	Any	exceptions	are	managed	and	approved	
by	designated	authorities	after	careful	consideration	of	the	
counterparty’s	credentials	and	financial	capacity	as	well	as	
prevailing	business	conditions.	As	of	the	reporting	date,	the	
Group’s	exposure	net	of	loss	allowance	was	Rs.	Nil	(2079-80:	
Rs.	Nil).	

Additionally,	the	Group	holds	other	financial	assets	such	as	
bank	balances,	other	bank	balances	and	receivables.	Bank	
deposits	are	maintained	with	reputable	commercial	banks	
known	for	their	strong	financial	positions;	therefore,	based	
on	historical	experience	and	current	assessments,	the	
counterparty	risk	associated	with	these	assets	is	deemed	
minimal.
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RISK MANAGEMENT  

AND CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

HDL	has	in	place	well-manned	committees	at	
the	board	of	directors’	level	which	assists	the	
company	in	curtailing	its	exposure	to	various	
forms	of	business,	operational,	financial,	and	
market	risks.	HDL’s	board	of	directors	are	strong	
champion	of	corporate	governance,	business	

ethics,	and	risk	management	practices	which	
has	enabled	the	company	to	have	a	strong	hold	
in	the	competitive	liquor	industry	of	Nepal.

The	following	section	highlights	the	purpose,	
frequency,	and	composition	of	the	Board	
Meetings	and	other	Committee	Meetings	are	
highlighted	below:

MEETING TYPE  ASSET RISK AUDIT BOARD REMARKS 
  LIABILITY MGMT.  COMMITTEE OF  
  COMMITTEE COMMITTEE  DIRECTORS 

Total No. of Meetings  1 1 5 11 

Akhileshwor	Prasad	Singh,	Chairperson	 	 	 	 11	
Narendra	Kumar	Basnyat,	Director	 	 	 5	 10	 Absent	in	1	BOD	Meeting
Shanker	Raj	Pandey,	Director	 	 	 5	 11	
Santoo	Shrestha,	Director	 	 1	 1	 5	 10	 Absent	in	1	BOD	Meeting
Yangkila	Sherpa	Ruit,	Director	 	 	 	 6	 Absent	in	5	BOD	&	an	ALCO	meeting
Prakash	Mani	Ghimire,	Independent	Director	 	 1	 	 11	
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HDL	has	three	Board-level	committees	
each	with	its	own	well-defined	purpose	and	
clearly	demarcated	responsibilities	that	have	
enabled	the	company	to	further	solidify	its	
internal	control	measures	and	to	ensure	
full	compliance	with	various	national	and	
international	regulations	and	standards.	

AUDIT COMMITTEE

HDL’s	Audit	Committee	offers	internal	
financial	management	guidance	to	the	
company	and	conducts	a	thorough	review	
of	its	internal	audits,	oversees	and	evaluates	
the	appointment	of	external	auditors	to	the	
Annual	General	Meeting,	and	Monitors	and	
ensures	legal	and	regulatory	compliance	of	
all	the	audits	of	the	organization.	The	Audit	
Committee	is	composed	of	three	members	as	
follows:

n Mr.	Shanker	Raj	Pandey,	Chairperson
n Mr.	Narendra	Kumar	Basnyat,	Member
n Mr.	Santoo	Shrestha,	Member

The	major	functions,	duties,	and	authority	
of	the	committee	in	accordance	with	the	
Companies	Act,	2006,	Sub-section	(1)	of	
Section	164	are:

n To	review	the	internal	financial	control	
system	and	the	risk	management	system	of	
the	company.

n To	review	the	accounts	and	financial	
statements	of	the	company	and	ascertain	
the	truth	of	the	facts	mentioned	in	such	
statements.

n To	supervise	and	review	the	internal	auditing	
activity	of	the	company.

n To	recommend	the	names	of	potential	
auditors	for	the	appointment	of	the	auditor	of	
the	company,	fix	the	remuneration	and	terms	
and	conditions	of	appointment	of	the	auditor,	
and	present	the	same	in	the	general	meeting	
for	ratification	thereof.

n To	review	and	supervise	whether	the	auditor	
of	the	company	has	observed	such	conduct,	
standards,	and	directives	determined	by	the	
competent	body	pursuant	to	the	prevailing	
law	as	required	to	be	observed	in	the	course	of	
doing	auditing	work.

n Based	on	the	conduct,	standards,	and	
directives	determined	by	the	competent	body	
pursuant	to	the	prevailing	law,	formulate	
the	policies	required	to	be	observed	by	the	
company	with	respect	to	the	appointment	and	
selection	of	the	auditor.	

n To	prepare	the	accounts-related	policy	of	the	
company	and	enforce,	or	cause	the	same	to	be	
enforced.

n Where	any	regulator	body	has	provided	for	
the	long-term	audit	report	to	be	set	out	in	the	
audit	report	of	the	company,	to	comply	with	
the	terms	required	to	prepare	such	report.

n To	perform	other	functions	as	prescribed	
by	the	Board	of	Directors	in	respect	of	the	
accounts,	financial	management,	and	audit	of	
the	company.

Board Level 
Committees
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The	Committee	met	five	times	this	fiscal	year
and	discussed	the	following	activities:
n Review	of	quarterly	internal	audit	reports	
provided	necessary	recommendations	to	the	
management	and	submitted	it	to	the	Board	
for	its	review	and	approval.

n Detailed	discussion	on	the	annual	business	
plan	prepared	by	the	management.	After	
a	detailed	discussion,	the	Committee	
recommended	the	Business	Plan	for	FY	
2023/24	for	submission	to	the	Board	for	its	
approval.	

n Presentation	on	the	annual	financial	report	
and	statutory	audit	report,	which	were	
thoroughly	reviewed	during	the	meeting	and	
were	recommended	for	the	board’s	approval.	

n Recommendation	to	the	Board	for	the	
continuation	of	current	internal	auditors	and	
statutory	auditors	for	the	FY	2023/24.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

HDL	has	in	place	a	dedicated	Risk	Management	
Committee	that	identifies,	minimizes,	and	
eliminates	the	company’s	risk	exposure	
to	diverse	risk	variables	in	areas	like	
physical	assets,	legal	governance,	human	
resources,	technology,	financial	planning,	
and	implementation.	The	Committee	is	
also	responsible	for	the	preparation	and	
implementation	of	a	comprehensive	risk	policy	
and	risk	management	plan.

The	Risk	Management	Committee	has	three	
members:
n Mr.	Prakash	Mani	Ghimire,	Chairperson
n Mr.	Santoo	Shrestha,	Member
n Chief	Executive	Officer,	Member

	Its	functions	are:
n To	work	to	eliminate	and	minimize	potential	
risks	of	the	company	including	the	company’s	
physical	assets	risks,	business	strategic	risks,	
legal	governance	risks,	human	resource	risks,	
technology	risks,	and	financial	planning	and	

implementation	risks.
n To	formulate	the	risk	management	policy	of	
the	company,	to	make	a	risk	management	
plan,	to	approve	it,	and	to	evaluate,	monitor,	
and	review	it	periodically.

n To	study	the	policy	directives	and	suggestions	
received	from	the	regulatory	body,	to	respond	
or	provide	information	to	be	submitted	on	
behalf	of	the	company	depending	on	its	
implementation	or	requirement.

n To	formulate	and	implement	policies	and	
procedures	related	to	the	risk	management	
process,	development,	and	operation	method	
of	risk	control	or	mitigation	structure,	to	
periodically	evaluate,	assess,	and	review	it.

n To	adopt	contingency	fund	mobilization	
methods	for	risk	management.

n To	take	appropriate	initiative	for	the	
identification,	evaluation,	supervision,	review,	
control,	delimitation,	reporting,	etc.	of	the	
main	risk	areas	and	to	formulate	policies	and	
procedures	as	per	the	requirement.

n To	work	with	a	plan	to	prevent	and	minimize	
the	rapidly	developing	information	
technology	and	cyber	security	risks.	To	
prepare	good	governance	methods	and	
policies	for	the	company	regarding	risk	
management,	and

n To	formulatea		risk	management	plan	and	
to	get	approval	as	required,	to	submit	it	for	
the	approval	of	the	Board	of	Directors,	and	to	
ensure	its	implementation.

The	Committee	met	one	time	this	fiscal	year	
and	covered	the	following	activities:
n The	CEO	updated	the	committee	members	on	
the	legal	and	regulatory	compliance	status	of	
the	company	in	the	FY.

n The	committee	members	held	a	
comprehensive	discussion	regarding	the	
potential	risks	and	mitigation	measures	
related	to	legal/regulatory	risks,	operational	
risks,	environmental	risks,	market	risks,	and	
financial	risks.	
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n The	Risk	Management	Committee	reviewed	
all	the	aspects	of	Legal/Regulatory	Risks,	
Operational	Risks,	Environment	Risks,	
Market	Risks,	and	Financial	Risks,	having	
endorsed	the	same,and		recommended	that	
the	same	be	submitted	for	the	Board’s	review.

ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

HDL’s	Asset	&	Liability	Committee	oversees	
sound	inspection,	supervision,	and	
management	of	its	assets	and	liabilities.	The	
Committee	is	also	responsible	for	ensuring	
capital	adequacy	through	the	development	
and	implementation	of	relevant	strategies	
and	courses	of	action	to	mitigate	market	risks,	
including	liquidity	risk.

The	Asset	Management	Committee	is	
composed	of	three	members:
n Mr.	Santoo	Shrestha,	Chairperson
n Ms.	Yangkila	(Sherpa)	Ruit,	Member
n Chief	Executive	Officer,	Member

The	major	functions	of	this	Committee	are	
presented	below:
n  To	properly	manage	the	assets	and	liabilities	
of	the	company	and	contribute	towards	
achieving	the	goal	of	giving	maximum	
return.	To	have	the	assets	and	liabilities	of	
the	company	inspected	and	supervised.

n  To	prepare	or	supervise	the	strategy	
and	procedures	to	be	adopted	by	the	
management	of	the	company	and	the	
policies	to	be	formulated,	focusing	on	the	
achievement	of	the	goals	set	by	the	Board	of	
Directors,	the	level	of	risk	to	be	taken	by	the	
company,	and	the	standard	of	operation.

n  To	manage	and	mobilize	the	capital	required	
to	achieve	the	goals	of	the	company.

n  To	get	the	information	of	income	and	
expenditure	of	the	company	and	to	
supervise	the	statement.

n  To	make	effective	evaluation	and	
monitoring	of	the	risk	and	liquidity	of	

the	company,	to	formulate	policy	regarding	
the	source	and	management	methods	of	
liquidity	risk	management,	and	to	monitor	the	
implementation.

n  To	prepare	for	market	risk	management,	the	
structure	of	the	above-mentioned	information	
system,	periodically	evaluates,	approves,	and	
reviews	the	liquidity	and	fund	management	
policy.

n  To	determine	the	method	of	formulation	and	
operation	of	contingency	fund	plan,	and	to	have	
it	reviewed.

n  To	make	the	operation	of	assets	and	liquidity	
to	fulfill	the	daily	and	contingent	capital	needs	
and	obligations.

The	Committee	met	once	this	fiscal	year	and	
discussed	the	following:
n Review	of	the	assets	and	liability	position	of	the	
company	with	a	major	focus	on	profitability	
and	financial	ratios.	During	the	meeting,	it	
was	highlighted	that	the	current	assets	of	the	
company	covered	more	than	twice	the	current	
liabilities	of	the	company,	indicating	that	the	
company	has	adequate	liquid	assets.	

n A	review	of	contingent	liabilities	of	the	
company	and	the	progress	on	the	litigation	
status	was	also	briefed	by	the	management.	

n Presentation of progress of  investment in 

capital	expenditure	in	the	year	including	
progress	of	new	projects	such	as	Zero	Liquid	
Discharge	&	Plant	Automation	Project	and	
installation	of	Malt	Distillation	Unit.
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04
CORPORATE SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBBILITY

At Himalayan Distillery Limited, building trust and 

ethical corporate behaviors stands at the heart of its 

each and every activities. The strong inclination towards 

trustworthy and ethical business practices have been 

deeply engraved in the Company’s corporate values. The 

company strongly believes in being a good corporate 

citizen by creating a positive impact on society. 
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HDL	has	always	emphasized	on	ensuring	
integrity	and	transparency	in	all	of	its	
interactions	and	relationships	with	its	
customers	and	consumers	by	providing	them	
with	safe,	reliable	and	qualitative	products	and	
services.	It	highly	prioritizes	dissemination	
of	accurate	information	to	its	customers	and	
consumers	so	as	to	assist	them	in	making	
informed	decisions.	HDL	always	makes	sure	
that	its	product	labels,	advertisements	as	well	
as	commercial	messages	are	accurate,	clear,	
and	not	misleading	to	its	customers	as	it	highly	
abides	by	responsible	marketing	of	its	market	
offerings.

HDL	has	always	been	conducting	its	business	
activities in a fair and transparent manner and 

in	due	adherence	with	relevant	national	and	
international,	laws,	regulations	and	guidelines	
with	an	intent	to	abide	by	the	highest	ethical	
standards	of	conducting	business	in	the	
dynamic	alcoholic	beverage	industry	of	Nepal.	
It	not	only	ensures	that	its	corporate	activities	
are	fair	and	transparent	but	also	pays	attention	
to	the	fact	that	the	Company’s	activities	are	
respectful	towards	various	religion,	culture,	
customs	and	traditions	in	all	of	the	countries	
where	it	conducts	its	business	operations.	

HDL	has	highly	emphasized	adherence	to	and	
maintenance	of	the	highest	environmental	
and	safety	standards	with	an	intent	to	
ensure	that	the	Company’s	operations	do	not	
result	in	any	harm	to	the	community	and	its	
surrounding	environment.	

As	a	result	of	this,	HDL	is	on	the	path	of	
embarking	on	a	project	with	the	aim	of	
achieving	Zero	Discharge	from	its	distillation	
plant.	It	is	also	on	the	verge	of	initiating		a	
project	for	complete	Plant	Automation	to	
achieve	improved	efficiency	through	a	data-
driven	decision-making	process	that	has	
comparatively	less	manual	intervention	and	

HDL	does	not	chase	profit	by	resorting	
to	unfair	or	illegal	practices	and	is	highly	
committed	to	conducting	business	
undertakings	based	on	the	principles	of	free	
and	fair	competition.	The	Comoany	has	zero	
tolerance	for	any	form	of	bribery,	corrupt	
practices,	money	laundering	activities	or	
other	illicit	practices	in	our	maneuvers	or	
with	any	person	or	company.	In	addition	
to	this,	HDL	also	diligently	abides	by	all	
applicable	laws	and	regulations	regarding	
gifts,	entertainment,	charitable	donations,	
and	political	contributions.	The	Company	has	
always	prioritized	upholding	and	disclosing	
its	financial	and	business-related	records	as	
per	parameters	and	requirements	demarcated	
by	all	the	applicable	laws	and	regulations	so	
that	it	can	precisely	reflect	the	true	state	of	its	
business	operations.

Focus on 
Customers and 
Consumers

Conduct Business 
with Integrity 
and Fairness

Conservation 
of the 
Environment
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that	also	enables	the	company	to	achieve	
consistency	in	quality	of	its	market	offerings.
The	Company	has	always	placed	utmost	
emphasis	on	constant	improvements	of	its	
environmental	performance	and	has	already	
implemented	various	measures	on	this	front	
such	as	the	use	of	recycled	bottles,	availability	
of	effluent	treatment	of	plants,	management	
of	industrial	waste	through	selling	of	
packaging	materials	and	plantation	within	the	
periphery	of	its	factory	to	reduce	the	level	of	
pollution	resulted	by	the	factory	operations.	

HDL	is	dedicated	to	have	meaningful	
engagements	with	the	community	through	
its	well-thought-out	Corporate	Social	
Responsibility	initiatives.	It	passionately	
supports	diverse	set	of	individuals	and	groups	
who	are	committed	to	meaningful	causes	
including	but	not	limited	to	culture,	gender	
equality,	social	inclusion,	education,	health,	
poverty	alleviation,	community	support	and	
natural	disasters	to	name	a	few.

As	per	the	Industrial	Enterprise	Act	2076,	
Section	54,	any	medium/large-scale	
industries/domestic/small	enterprises	with	
an	annual	turnover	of	Rs.	150	million	and	
above	are	supposed	to	allocate	at	least	1	%	
of	their	annual	profit	for	Corporate	Social	
Responsibility	(CSR)	initiatives.	In	addition	to	
this,	Industrial	Enterprise	Regulation	2078,	
Rule	43	has	clearly	demarcated	the	core	areas	
in	which	the	CSR	fund	can	be	utilized.	In	
compliance	with	these	provisions,	Himalayan	
Distillery	Limited	has	allocated	funds	available	
under	the	heading	of	CSR	in	the	following	core	
areas	in	the	review	period:

Contribution 
to Society

CSR Policies
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 S.N. CORE AREAS % ALLOCATION

	 1.	 Affected	Areas-To	be	further	 50	%	 
	 	 sub-allocated	as	per	sub	categories	2-9	
	 2.	 Disaster	prevention	and	rescue		 2.5% 

	 	 related	activities	
	 3.	 	Health	and	related	activities	 10%
	 4.	 Preservation	and	conservation	of		 5% 

	 	 Nepali	art,	cultural	heritage	and	 
	 	 monuments	
	 5.	 Skill	development	and	income		 5% 

	 	 generation	activities.	
	 6.	 Educational	activities	 10%
	 7.	 Environmental	activities	 5%
	 8.	 Social	Awareness	and	related	activities	 2.5%
	 9.	 Physical	Infrastructure	for	Social	 10%	 
	 	 Welfare	(including	repair	and	 
	 	 maintenance)	-	drinking	water,	roads,	 
	 	 drainage,	sports	grounds,	religious	sites,	 
	 	 community	buildings	including	for	old	 
	 	 age,	orphanage,	meditation,	rest	houses,	 
	 	 bus	stand/park,	etc.	
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HDL	also	has	in	place	a	dedicated	CSR	
committee	to	effectively	utilize	the	CSR	fund	
with	following	members:	

CSR Overview  
& Activities

The	Committee	is	responsible	for	approval	
of	the	fund	to	be	disbursed	for	various	CSR	
initiatives	and	activities.	In	cases	where	the	
percentage	of	fund	allocated	is	insufficient	
in	any	particular	area,	the	Committee	has	
the	authority	to	decide	to	allocate	a	higher	
percentage	by	carving	an	amount	from	
an	area	where	a	lower	allocation	has	been	
made	provided	it	is	within	the	total	CSR	
budget	available	for	the	year.	The	approving	
authorities	for	the	same	have	been	highlighted	
in	the	following	table:

 SN. COMMITTEE MEMBER

	 1.	 Mr.	Niraj	Subedi	,	Chief	Executive	Officer	(CEO)
	 2.	 Ms.	Nisha	Niraula,	Company	Secretary
	 3.	 Mr.	Jeevan	Panday,	Manager	(Operation)
	 4.	 Ms.	Alina	Shrestha,	Manager	(Finance)
	 5.	 Ms.	Anjali	Shrestha,	Manager	(HR)
	 6.	 Independent	Invitee	

   AUTHORIZED PERSON

	 Proposed	by	 Manager	(Finance)
	 Recommended	by	 Company	Secretary
	 Approved	by	 Chief	Executive	Officer

1. Nepal Rastriya Adharvut Vidhyalaya

School Teacher Salary: 260,000
In	the	review	period,	HDL	has	contributed	an	
amount	worth	Rs.	260,000	to	Nepal	Rastriya	
Adharvut	Vidhyalaya	for	disbursement	of	
salary	of	the	School’s	teachers.

2. Easy Healthcare Foundation (EHF)

In	the	review	period,	HDL contributes a total 

of RS 1,000,000	to	Easy	Healthcare	Foundation	
(EHF)	for	fulfilling	their	intent	to		to	establish	
healthcare	services	and	facilities	in	every	
ward	of	Kathmandu.	EHF	is	an	institution	
located	in	Kathmandu	with	the	primary	
objective	of	providing	essential	healthcare	
services	to	marginalized,	disadvantaged,	
and	impoverished	citizens	in	the	country,	
especially	senior	citizens.	EHF	intends	
to	use	the	contributed	amount	towards	
the	implementation	of	a	comprehensive	
healthcare	assurance	scheme,	covering	
primary,	secondary,	and	tertiary	healthcare	
services.
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3. Pabitra Prithvi Samaj (PPS)

in	the	review	period,	HDL also offered 
assistance of Rs. 700,000 to Pabitra Prthivi 
Samaj	(PPS),	Biratnagar	for	provinding	one	
automatic	wheelchair	and	auto-adjustable	
beds	to	four	individuals	with	severe	
disabilities.	PPS,	Biratnagar,	was	founded	
in	the	year	2071	B.S.	with	a	core	mission	of	
assisting	individuals	with	disabilities,	the	
elderly,	and	those	facing	economic	hardship	
and	vulnerability.	PPS	is	also	actively	engaged	
in	organizing	training	sessions	and	awareness	
programs	to	benefit	the	community.	

4. Birgunj Metropolitan Office (BMO) 

In	the	same	period,	HDL	also	provided	
financial	assistance	worth	Rs. 997,920	on	the	
request	of	the	Birgunj	Metropolitan	Office	to	
address	critical	infrastructure	needs	in	various	
community	schools	within	their	jurisdiction.	

The	contributed	amount	was	utlilized	for	
purchase	of	combination	of		100	desks	and	
benches	and	two		laptops.

5. Shakti Yuva Club (SYC)

HDL	contributed	a	total	of	Rs. 60,000	to	Shakti	
Youth	Club,	based	in	Parwanipur	Ward,	for	its	
annual	football	event	with	an	intent	to	support	
the	physical	well-being	of	local	youth	in	the	
fiscal	year	2023/24.

6. Terai Youth Samudayik Sastha (TYSS)

In	the	review	period,	HDL offered assistance 
of 50 dustbins worth of Rs. 187,500 to Terai 
Youth Samudayik Sastha	(TYSS)	to	ensure	
proper	waste	management	infrastructure	in	
Patel	Nagar	Village.	TYSS	was	registered	in	the	
year	2079	B.S.	and	it	identified	the	scenario	of	
rise	in	improper	disposal	of	garbage	leading	to	
a	deteriorating	environment	and	a	substantial	
impact	on	public	health	in	Patel	Nagar	area.	

7. Karnali Region Tourism and Cultural 

Reservation Center (KRTCRC)

HDL contributed a total of Rs. 100,000  to 
Karnali Region Tourism and Cultural 

Reservation Center	(KRTCRC)	in	the	review	
period	to	assist	its		scholarship	program	for	
students	from	government	schools	in	Kalikot	
and	10	other	districts	who	have	completed	
their	SEE	exams	but	lack	the	financial	means	
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families	traveling	from	outside	Kathmandu.	
HDL contributed a total of Rs. 500,000 for 
supporting this cause in the FY 2023/24.

10. Lalitpur Metropolitan Office
Himalayan	Distillery	Ltd.	has	been	
continuously	coordinating	with	Lalitpur	
Municipality	Office	for	the	maintenance	of	
Jawalakhel	Circle	Traffic	Island	since	the	
Nepalese	Year	2077	B.S.	Marking	the	day	
of	the	“Bhotojatra	Festival”	HDL	supported	
the	plantation	of	trees	for	environmental	
conservation	and	repair	&	maintenance	of	
physical	infrastructure	for	social	welfare	
as	per	the	company’s	CSR	Policy.	HDL has 

been regularly supporting the maintenance 

work of the traffic island for which it has 
contributed Rs. 1,114,434 for maintenance of  
J-Circle in FY 2023/24.

11. Dhangadhi Sub-MetroPolitan Office (DSO)
HDL made a contribution of  Rs. 525,000 to 

support 100 students at the cost of Rs. 5,250 
per student to Dhangadhi Sub-Metropolitan 

Office	(DSO)	in	the	review	period	to	launch	a	
program	to	provide	free	school	uniforms	to	
students	in	community	schools	in	Dhangadhi,	
funded	by	the	Mayor’s	Education	Improvement	
Fund.	The	initiative	aims	to	supply	uniforms,	
bags,	and	other	materials	to	community	
schools	in	Dhangadhi.	

12. Sambhabya Foundation (SF)

Sambhabhya	Foundation	has	been	
implementing	‘School	Mental	Health	Program’	
through	a	comprehensive	curriculum	with	
components	of	mental	health	literacy,	Social-
Emotional	Learning	(SEL),	digital	citizenship,	
and	comprehensive	sexual	reproductive	
education	(CSRE)	in	government	schools	
across	Nepal	since	2018.	It	has	also	initiated	a	
project	entitled	“Wellness	for	All”	in	a	total	of	8	
schools	in	the	Shankarapur	Municipality	and	

to	pursue	further	education	in	Kathmandu.	The	
program	targets	marginalized,	economically	
disadvantaged,	disabled,	and	individuals	affected	by	
war	or	natural	disasters.	A	total	of	25	students	have	
been	benefitted	from	this	initiative	in	the	Fiscal	Year	
2023/24.

8. Katha Nepal

HDL also made two separate contributions of Rs. 

450,000 each to Katha Nepal for supporting 18 
schools in Birgunj under its “Matri for 30 schools 

at Birgunj Municipality”	project	on	the	request	
of	Birgunj	Metropolitan	Office.	As	the	project	
has	become	huge	success	in	Birgunj,	BMO	had	
requested	HDL	for	support	through	Katha	Nepal	of	
Matri’s	content	for	grade	9	and	10	of	government	
schools	Parsa	at	a	cost	of	Rs.	25,000	per	school	per	
year	for	same	30	schools.	

The	project	has	introduced	customized	audiovisual	
teaching	materials	specifically	designed	for	the	
Nepali	subject	in	grade	8,	aligning	with	the	national	
curriculum.	

9. Open Eyes Nepal (OEN)

OEN,	is	an	organization	that	supports	children	and	
families	in	Nepal	grappling	with	Retinoblastoma,	
a	form	of	childhood	eye	cancer.	Its	core	objectives	
include	raising	awareness	about	the	condition,	
facilitating	affordable	access	to	treatment,	and	
establishing	sustainable	support	networks	for	
affected	children	and	their	families.	The	treatment	
for	this	disease	is	prolonged,	costly,	and	difficult,	
often	necessitating	financial	assistance	for	
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5	schools	in	the	Kageshwori	Municipality.	HDL 

made a contribution of Rs. 615,000 to support the 
School Mental Health Program for 8 schools in 

Shankarapura Municipality in the review period 

for the construction of a counseling room. 

13. Mugling Highway Hospital (MHH)

Mugling	Highway	Hospital	(MHH)	has	been	
dedicatedly	offering	vital	medical	services	to	the	
local	community	and	addressing	the	significant	
occurrence	of	road	accidents	along	the	Naubise-
Pokhara-Mugling	highway.	The	hospital	has	
outlined	several	future	initiatives,	including	
expanding	its	capacity	to	accommodate	100	beds,	
establishing	a	pre-hospital	care	and	trauma	
center	to	assist	survivors	of	road	accidents	with	a	
pure	intention	to	improve	access	at	the	grassroots	
level	to	treatable	and	diagnostic	healthcare	
services;	which	is	very	much	in	line	with	the	
healthcare	objectives	set	by	the	Government	of	
Nepal.	

HDL made a total financial contribution of  
Rs. 300,000 in the FY 2023/24 at the rate of   
Rs. 100,000 each month, beginning from Mid 
April 2024 for the salary disbursement of the 

doctors and nurses employed at the institution. 

14. Ek EK Paila Foundation (EEPF)

HDL contributed a total of Rs. 500,000 to Ek Ek 
Paila Foundation (EEPF).	EEPF,	in	collaboration	
with	the	local	government,	plans	to	conduct	a	
health	clinic	at	Kolti,	Bajura	District	to	address	
the	lack	of	health	services	in	the	region.	As	part	of	
its	five-year	strategic	plan,	EEPF	provides	annual	
eye,	ear,	nose,	throat,	dental,	and	gynecological	
services.	This	program	includes	cervical	cancer	
screening	and	prevention,	pregnancy	and	
postpartum	care,	lactation	and	family	planning,	
screening	for	prolapse	and	fistula,	other	
gynecological	examinations,	post-abortion	care,	
and	minor	surgeries	(biopsies).	

15. Birgunj Metropolitan Office (BMO): For Lab 
equipment at Lipanibirta Health Post

HDL contributed a total of Rs. 500,000 to 
Lipanibirta Health Post for the purchase 

of lab equipment at the request of Birgunj 

Metropolitan Office	(BMO).		BMO	had	
requested	financial	assistance	for	the	
installation	of	lab	equipment	at	Lipanibirta	
Health	Post	at	Parwanipur	21,	Lipanibirta	
to	promote	physical	fitness	among	local	
communities.	

16. Lifeline Health Home Care: HDL also 

contributed an amount of Rs. 175,000 to 
Lifeline Health Home Care	for	conducting	
health	camps	and	symposiums	in	different	
communities	of	Lalitpur	during	the	year.

PRODUCTS & SERVICES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INVESTOR'S RELATIONSHIP DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
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05
HUMAN RESOURCE 
MANAGEMENT

HDL has always prioritized innovation as a major cornerstone for its 

product portfolio diversification and business growth. The meticulous 
product development approach of HDL also gave birth to the company’s 

core brand - Golden Oak which is a widely accepted product in the 40UP 

Whisky category of Nepal. Further, its constant focus towards product 

innovation and development has enabled it to expand its product lines 

beyond the well-established brand, Golden Oak, with two other equally 

qualitative product variants namely Black Oak and Silver Oak. Each 

of these Oak brands caters to distinct consumer segments and have 

been able to create a favorable market response outperforming the 

competition. 
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Every	new	group	member	receives	a	clean	
and	particular	activity	description.	This	now	
not	handiest	enables	them	to	apprehend	
their	roles	and	responsibilities	however	
also	affords	a	foundation	for	normal	overall	
performance	evaluations.	Our	employment	
guidelines	are	employee-targeted	and	strictly	
adhere	to	Nepal’s	Labor	Law,	making	sure	
fairness	and	compliance.

We	cost	a	wholesome	paintings-lifestyle	
balance	for	all	our	personnel.	For	example,	
we	offer	extra	breastfeeding	time	for	nursing	
moms	with	infants	beneath	six	months	and	
paternity	depart	for	fathers.	These	projects	
reflect	our	dedication	to	assisting	both	the	
non-public	and	professional	lives	of	our	
group	individuals.

To	help	our	team	grow	and	excel,	we’ve	
implemented	robust	HR	policies	and	provide	
ample	training	opportunities.	Each	year,	
we	prepare	and	review	a	training	and	staff	
development	plan	to	guide	these	efforts.	
During	the	last	review	period,	we	conducted	
25	training	sessions,	enhancing	the	skills	
of	335	employees—all	fully	funded	by	the	
company.

At	HDL,	we	strive	to	be	a	human-centric	
organization,	even	in	Nepal’s	highly	
competitive	liquor	industry.	Below	are	some	
of	the	key	HR	policies	that	make	this	possible:

n	 Transparent	and	fair	recruitment	
processes.

n	Clear	job	roles	and	responsibilities	with	
regular	performance	evaluations.
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n	Employee-friendly	benefits,	including	
support	for	work-life	balance.

n	Annual	training	and	development	plans	to	
enhance	staff	skills	and	career	growth.

These	policies	and	practices	ensure	that	our	
team	remains	motivated,	skilled,	and	ready	to	
drive	the	company	forward.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER

At	HDL,	we	are	proud	to	be	an	equal	
opportunity	employer	dedicated	to	
imparting	an	inclusive	place	of	job.	We	have	
a	coverage	of	no	longer	tolerating	any	form	
of	discrimination	based	totally	on	race,	
ethnicity,	colour,	faith,	sex,	age,	or	disability—
whether	or	not	overt	or	subtle.	Employees	are	
strongly	encouraged	to	file	any	instances	of	
discrimination	to	their	supervisors,	making	
sure	that	concerns	are	addressed	through	the	
organisation’s	proceedings	process

Our	recruitment	manner	is	overseen	by	
way	of	a	committee	that	ensures	that	each	
hiring	selection	is	truthful,	transparent	and	
benefit-primarily	based.	Candidates	undergo	
a	rigorous	evaluation	technique,	consisting	of	
information	and	skills	assessments,	practical	
assessments	and	benchmark	checks.	Once	
on	board,	new	employees	will	take	part	in	a	
complete	orientation	software	to	familiarize	
themselves	with	HDL’s	imaginative	and	
prescient,	challenge,	operations,	code	of	
conduct	and	workplace	way	of	life

At	HDL,	we	trust	that	the	fulfillment	
of	any	enterprise	relies	upon	on	the	
competencies	and	in	shape	of	its	team.	To	
hold	this	wellknown,	we	behavior	quarterly	
performance	opinions.	These	appraisals	
no	longer	only	degree	real	employee	
performance towards expectations 

but	also	identify	opportunities	for	

schooling,	reimbursement,	mentoring,	or	
merchandising.	HDL’s	Promotion	Committee	
conducts	those	opinions,	making	sure	that	
each	one	personnel	provide	honest	and	
constructive	remarks.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The	fitness,	safety	and	nicely-being	of	our	
personnel	is	a	top	precedence	at	HDL.	We	
provide	Personal	Protective	Equipment	
(PPE)	to	personnel	working	in	excessive-
danger	areas	and	ensure	that	every	one	
safety	regulations	and	techniques	are	strictly	
followed	to	save	you	injuries	or	accidents.	
Compliance	with	those	protection	measures	
is	taken	critically,	and	corrective	movement	is	
taken	where	vital.

GRIEVANCE HANDLING  

At	HDL,	we	accept	as	true	with	that	
addressing	employee	worries	is	key	to	
improving	our	administrative	center	and	
guidelines.	That’s	why	we	have	a	clear	and	
powerful	complaint	dealing	with	manner	in	
region	to	clear	up	troubles	quickly	and	pretty.		
Our	Grievance	Handling	Committee	includes	
the	CEO,	Grievance	Handling	Officer,	Head	
of	HR,	Head	of	Legal,	and	the	Department	
Head	of	the	employee	elevating	the	concern.	
Employees	can	publish	their	grievances	
thru	a	straightforward	process,	with	clean	
timelines	set	for	resolving	each	case.		
If	any	employee	isn’t	satisfied	with	the	final	
results,	they	could	take	their	attraction	
without	delay	to	the	CEO.	The	choice	made	
with	the	aid	of	the	CEO	is	very	last,	ensuring	
every	complaint	is	addressed	transparently	
and	thoroughly.		

At	HDL,	we	are	dedicated	to	developing	a	
supportive	workplace	where	anybody	feels	
heard,	reputable,	and	valued.
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KEY HR  
INDICATORS

TOTAL
TRAININGS 37

TOTAL 
PARTICIPANTS 364

EMPLOYEE 
TURNOVER 

RATE
9.70%

EMPLOYEE 
RETENTION 
RATE

90.0%

MALE TO 
FEMALE RATIO24:1

AGE GROUP
OF EMPLOYEES

21-30 Years
4%

51-60 Years
28%

31-40 Years
39%

41-50 Years
30%

WORKING
PERIOD

6-10
20%

UP TO 5
20%

>20
15%

11-15
26%16-20

19%

Data	based	on	FY	2023/24
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06
PRODUCTS AND 
SERVICES

HDL forecasts a positive market outlook for 2024 in case of the economy 

and mid-range segments as it expects growth in demand for affordable local 
spirits. HDL is well-positioned to reap benefits from these current market 
and consumer trends nd aims to focus on its fast-moving economy brands 

while managing costs and maintaining a competitive edge.
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The	company's	distillation	and	bottling	takes	
place	at	the	factory	in	Birgunj,	Parsa	District.	
All	products	at	the	factory	are	manufactured	
under	the	supervision	of	an	Excise	Inspector.	
All	products	are	tested	at	the	company's	
laboratory	prior	to	sending	them	to	the	
market.

Bottling Unit
However,	the	premium	segment	faces	
more	uncertainty	in	the	upcoming	year	
as	well,	as	the	disposable	income	levels	
of	its	consumers	are	not	expected	to	rise	
significantly	in	the	near	future.	Despite	this	
overarching	challenge,	HDL	aims	to	deploy	
strategic	innovations	through	new	products	
and	marketing	efforts	within	the	premium	
category	so	that	it	can	mitigate	the	decline	
in	demand.	It	is	evident	that	in	the	year	
2024,	HDL	will	need	to	continue	adapting	its	
product	portfolio	to	the	evolving	consumer	
landscape	as	well	as	the	overall	financial	and	
economic	environment.

Overall,	HDL	is	well	prepared	to	navigate	
the	challenges	and	opportunities	of	the	
period	2023-24	and	is	driven	by	a	strong	
focus	on	sustainability,	affordability,	product	
innovation,	and	adaptability	in	the	ever-
evolving	economic	landscape	of	Nepal.
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A RANGE OF CUSTOMER ORIENTED, 
HIGH VALUE PRODUCTS AND 
SERVICES AND A STELLAR BRAND 
PORTFOLIO

The	liquor	industry’s	business	is	highly	
influenced	by	consumer-centric	trends	
particularly	changing	consumer	preferences,	
values,	and	behaviors.	The	ever-changing	set	
of	consumer	expectations	makes	it	inevitable	
for	liquor	manufacturers	to	be	innovative,	
adaptive,	relevant	and	competitive	in	the	
markets	that	they	serve.	

HDL	being	a	customer	oriented	and	dynamic	
business	organization	always	emphasizes	
and	implements	a	proactive	approach	to	align	
its	products	and	product/brand	experiences	
to	effectively	meet	the	ever-changing	
demands and preferences of its diverse yet 

selective	audience.	

Further,	the	company	is	committed	to	
stay	attune	to	its	consumers’	needs	and	
this	has	been	remarkably	justified	by	its	
various	continuous	product	development	
and	design	improvement	initiatives.	This	
uncompromisable	customer	centric	
approach	has	empowered	HDL	and	its	
products	to	meet	the	customer	needs,	gain	
customer	loyalty	and	also	achieve	strategic	
advantage	to	enhance	its	competitiveness	
and	sustainability	in	the	market.	

HDL’s	thoughtfully	tailored	product	mix	
caters	diverse	consumer	segments	and	
quenches	their	diverse	preferences.	HDL’s	
Golden	Oak,	a	much-loved	liquor	brand	in	the	
country	is	able	to	establish	itself	as	a	reputed	
choice	for	its	customer	segments	who	
appreciate	the	finer	things	in	life	and	have	
an	unyielding	passion	for	exceptional	taste.	

Similarly,	its	Black	Oak	targets	individuals	
pursuing	perfection	in	every	facet	of	their	
lives	and	who	are	meticulous	about	their	
work	and	their	craft.	Blue	Oak,	a	luxury	
offering	of	HDL	targets	those	consumers	who	
value	the	rare	and	the	extraordinary.

HDL	has	maintained	its	strategic	focus	to	
develop	and	implement	effective	marketing	
efforts	focusing	to	enhance	the	premium	
image	of	its	brand.	As	a	result	of	this,	
the	company	has	made	visible	efforts	to	
enhance	the	visual	and	aesthetic	aspects	of	
its	products,	thereby,	ultimately	enhancing	
its	brands’	identity	and	creation	of	"brand	
equity"	through	impactful	advertising.

HDL’s	holistic	marketing	strategy	
encompasses	a	range	of	carefully	integrated	
marketing	channels	and	platforms	to	portray	
a	consistent	and	premium	brand	image.	It	
is	the	result	of	this	strategy	that	HDL	boasts	
a	strong	digital	presence,	consumer-led	
activations	through	outlet-level	promotions,	
and	various	impactful	regional	events.	HDL	
aims	to	create	a	harmonious	and	memorable	
experience	for	its	consumers	to	reinforce	
their	confidence	in	the	company’s	brands	and	
product	portfolio	and	to	create	and	sustain	
a	favorable	brand	image.	Hence,	it	is	an	
undeniable	fact	that	HDL’s	customer-centric	
business	philosophy	is	strongly	reflected	in	
all	of	its	products	and	marketing	efforts.	In	
the	present	context	of	evolving	consumer	
preferences,	the	company	is	committed	to	
stay	agile	and	creative	and	it	looks	forward	
to	a	promising	journey	of	growth	and	
transformation	in	the	days	ahead.

Some	of	the	major	product	brands	of	HDL	and	
their	story	has	been	presented	below:
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Our Products

TYPE:	Premium	Blended	Malt 
STRENGTH:	34.23%	V/V 

SKU:	750ml	-	with	tamper-proof	closure.	
375ml	-	and	180ml	and	also	sold	with	with	
tamper-proof	closure
 

KEY SELLING POINTS 

n	Matured	in	Oak	casks 

n	Blended	with	Nepali	grain	spirits 

n	Original	taste 

n	Premium	packaging

GOLDEN OAK

+59%
MARKET SHARE

of total 40 UP whisky segment

Golden	Oak	is	a	completely	unique	mixture	of	
premium	malts	and	Nepalese	grain	spirits,	matured	
in	American	oak	casks.	Its	rich	aroma	of	dried	end	
result,	toasted	vanilla,	and	smoked	cereals	gives	
a	clean,	medium-bodied	end.	Perfect	for	the	ones	
ready	to	embody	new	demanding	situations,	Golden	
Oak	represents	success	and	generosity.	Whether	
served	neat,	at	the	rocks,	or	with	mixers,	it’s	perfect	
for	creating	memorable	moments.

As	Nepal’s	satisfactory-promoting	liquor	inside	the	
40UP	segment,	Golden	Oak	comes	in	180ml,	375ml,	
and	750ml	bottles,	presenting	premium	taste	at	an	
amazing	price.	Its	upgraded	packaging	with	mono-
carton	instances,	a	polished	label,	and	cap	design	
adds	a	touch	of	elegance,	making	it	best	for	festivals	
and	celebrations.	With	its	enduring	exception,	
Golden	Oak	keeps	to	the	same	old	for	premium	
combined	malts.

Serving
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Our Products

TYPE:	Premium	Blended	Malt
STRENGTH: 34.23%	v/v
SKU: 750	ml	-	Sold	in	a	canister	with	tamper	
-	proof	closure,	375	ml	and	180	ml	also	sold	
with	tamper	-	proof	closure

KEY SELLING POINTS 

n	Extra	matured	in	oak	casks 

n	Blended	with	Nepali	grain	spirits 

n	Smokey	and	Oaky	taste 

n	Premium	packaging 

BLACK OAK

+14%
MARKET SHARE

of total 40 UP whisky segment

Neat	or	on	the	rocks

Black	Oak	is	crafted	to	have	fun	success.	This	
remarkable	whisky,	double-matured	in	charred	
sherry	oaKCasks,	gives	a	cultured	palate	of	nutty,	
woody	flavors	with	a	velvety	smoky	finish.	Designed	
for	perfectionists,	Black	Oak’s	top	rate	packaging	
mirrors	its	sophisticated	essence,	making	it	an	
ideal	companion	for	lifestyles’s	milestones.

Available	in	180ml,	375ml,	and	750ml	bottles	(with	
the	latter	encased	in	a	stylish	canister),	Black	Oak	
is	a	preference	for	folks	who	feel	refinement	and	
achievement.	With	its	rich	person	and	stylish	air	of	
secrecy,	Black	Oak	is	more	than	a	whisky—it’s	an	
experience	for	achievers.

Serving
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Our Products

STRENGTH: 34.23%	v/v
SKU:	750ml	-	Sold	in	a	mono	carton	with	
tamper-proof	closure.	375ml	-	and	180ml	
and	also	sold	with	with	tamper-proof	
closure
BEST SERVED:  Served	straight	or	with	ice

KEY SELLING POINTS 

n	Blend	of	pure	Artesian	Himalayan	
water	&	carefully	selected	grains	 
n	Premium	packaging

SILVER OAK

+12%
MARKET SHARE

of total 40UP Vodka

Silver	Oak	represents	innovation	and	purity,	
blending	premium	grains	with	Himalayan	
artesian	water.	This	spirit’s	smooth	finish	
and	easy-to-open	premium	cap	offer	an	
unparalleled	drinking	experience.	The	
clear,	transparent	bottle	reflects	the	brand’s	
commitment	to	quality	and	visual	appeal.

Crafted	for	the	modern	drinker,	Silver	Oak	
delivers	a	hangover-free	experience,	whether	
enjoyed	straight	or	with	ice.	Its	premium	taste	
and	hassle-free	packaging	make	it	a	standout	
choice,	especially	for	those	seeking	a	refined	
white	spirit.

Serving
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Our Products

TYPE:	Premium	Blended	Malt
STRENGTH: 34.23%	v/v
SKU:	750	ml	-	Solid	in	a	canister	with	
tamper	-	proof	closure.	375	ml	-	and		
180	ml	also	sold	with	tamper	-	proof	
closure

KEY SELLING POINTS 

n	Matured	in	Charred		Sherry	and	
American	Oak	casks.	Blend	of	the	
rarest	malts,	double	smoked	and	
Oaky	taste 

n	Premium	packaging 

BLUE OAK

Neat	or	on	the	rocks.

Blue	Oak	is	a	bold	and	complex	blend,	double-
smoked	in	charred	sherry	and	American	oak	casks.	
Its	peaty	aroma	and	hints	of	baked	fruits	and	
spices	create	a	luxurious	drinking	experience.	As	
you	savor	it,	the	rich	smoky	malt	unfolds	layers	of	
character	and	complexity.

Available	in	180ml,	375ml,	and	750ml	bottles	
(with	the	latter	encased	in	premium	packaging),	
Blue	Oak	is	designed	for	special	celebrations	and	
triumphs.	It’s	a	pinnacle	of	luxury,	crafted	for	those	
with	a	taste	for	sophistication	and	extravagance.

Serving
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Our Products

TYPE: Traditional	Nepali	Liquor
STRENGTH: 48.5%	v/v
SKU: 750	ml
KEY SELLING POINT: Nepal's	original	
taste,	perfect	blend	of	art,	tradition	
and science

SERVING: Neat 

HIMALAYAN AILA

Himalayan	Aaila	is	a	tribute	to	Nepal’s	cultural	
heritage,	crafted	from	fine	basmati	rice	and	
offering	a	robust	48.5%	alcohol	content.	Presented	
in	a	frosted	bottle,	this	spirit	stays	true	to	the	
traditional	Newari	“Aila”,	known	for	its	purity	and	
strength.

Ideal	for	traditional	feasts	or	rituals,	Himalayan	
Aaila	can	be	enjoyed	neat	or	on	the	rocks,	
delivering	a	thrilling	and	authentic	experience	
with	every	sip.

Serving
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Our Products

TYPE:	Premium	Whisky 

STRENGTH: 42.8%	v/v 

SKU:	750ml	-	Sold	in	a	mono	carton	
with	tamper-proof	closure.	Also	
available	in	375ml	and	180ml.
 

KEY SELLING POINTS 

n	Deep	and	smooth	taste 

n	Blended	with	handpicked	grain	
spirits	and	imported	Scottish	malts 

n	Taste	of	royalty	from	start	to	finish 

n	Premium	packaging

ROYAL TREASURE

Neat,	on	the	rocks	or	as	whisky	cocktails

Royal	Treasure	Premium	Whisky	is	a	smooth,	
complex	blend	of	golden	Scottish	malts	and	
handpicked	grain	spirits	from	Nepal.	This	is	a	
delicious	smoky	bouquet	with	a	rich	creamy	body.

Serving
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BRAND PHILOSOPHY
At	Himalayan	Distillery	(HDL),	we	recognize	
the	evolving	preferences	of	Nepalese	
consumers.	Our	products	resonate	with	
local	values,	offering	premium	quality	and	
innovation.	Through	design	enhancements	
and	thoughtful	packaging,	we	align	with	the	
needs	of	a	dynamic	market,	ensuring	our	
brands	remain	relevant	and	desired.

Our	Oak	Series—Golden	Oak,	Black	Oak,	
Blue	Oak,	and	Silver	Oak—caters	to	diverse	
tastes,	providing	premium	options	for	
every	occasion.	From	festivals	to	personal	
milestones,	our	spirits	create	memorable	
experiences.	Over	the	years,	our	focus	on	
premiumization	has	strengthened	our	brand	
identity,	backed	by	engaging	advertising	and	
vibrant	community	participation.

MARKETING STRATEGY
Golden	Oak	stands	as	a	trusted	companion	
for	life’s	golden	moments	with	the	tagline	
“Sunaulo	Pal	Ko	Sathi.”	Participating	in	
cultural	celebrations	like	Lhosar,	Tharu,	and	
Maghi	festivals,	Golden	Oak	connects	with	its	
audience	through	meaningful	experiences.
Black	Oak	embodies	ambition	with	its	tagline	
“Safalta	Ko	Saathi”	(“Companion	of	Success”).	

Through	aspirational	storytelling	and	
presence	at	regional	events,	it’s	positioned	
as	the	whisky	for	achievers	celebrating	their	
milestones.

Silver	Oak	appeals	to	a	youthful	demographic	
with	its	promise	of	“No	Hang	No	Lyang,”	
offering	a	premium,	hangover-free	
experience.	Its	smooth	taste	and	sleek	design	
make	it	a	standout	choice	at	vibrant	events	
like	Holi	and	Lhosar.

PRODUCT INNOVATION
Innovation	has	always	remained	as	a	key	
driver	for	HDL’s	growth.	In	2023-24,		it	
launched	a	new	and	fresh	40	UP	vodka	
variant.	These	additions	reflect	modern	
tastes,	featuring	refined	ingredients,	
advanced	techniques,	and	elegant	packaging.	
Our	iterative	design	approach	ensures	
products	evolve	with	market	trends,	
maintaining	consistency	and	quality.
Golden	Oak	recently	adopted	a	new	Guala	
cap,	while	Black	Oak’s	transparent	black-
tinted	glass	enhances	its	distinctive	appeal.	
Blue	Oak	will	also	see	design	updates,	
underscoring	our	commitment	to	continuous	
improvement.

Golden	Oak	DVC	Link
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By	integrating	consumer	feedback,	we	
create	spirits	that	resonate	deeply	with	our	
audience.	HDL	remains	dedicated	to	leading	
Nepal’s	spirits	market,	offering	exceptional	
quality	and	experiences	that	celebrate	life’s	
finest	moments.

NEW PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT: 
EXPANDING INTO THE PREMIUM AND 
40UP SEGMENTS
HDL’s	innovation	strategy	for	the	year	In	
2023-24	geared	towards	addressing	two	
critical	opportunities.	First,	the	company	is	
planning	to	enter	the	premium	segment,	a	
category	in	which	it	currently	has	limited	
offerings.	Recognizing	the	demand	for	
higher-quality,	refined	spirits,	it	is	developing	
a	new	product	aimed	at	tasteful	consumers	
who	prioritize	quality	and	craftsmanship	
in	their	alcoholic	beverages.	This	premium	
product	aims	to	showcase	the	finest	
ingredients,	advanced	distillation	techniques,	
and	refined	packaging	to	compete	at	the	top	
end	of	the	market.	It	will	cater	to	consumers	
seeking	a	sophisticated	drinking	experience,	
marking	a	significant	step	for	HDL	in	
expanding	into	this	competitive	segment.

Simultaneously,	the	Company	is	also	
capitalizing	on	the	growth	of	the	40UP	
segment,	which	continues	to	show	strong	
demand	as	consumers	explore	new	flavors	
and	experiences	in	the	whisky	category.	
As	such	it	plans	to	introduce	a	new	40UP	
whisky	variant	portraying	modern	tastes	
and	preferences,	offering	a	fresh	take	on	
traditional	whisky	with	a	distinctive	flavor	
profile.	This	product	aims	to	appeal	to	both	
the	existing	whisky	enthusiasts	and	the	new	
consumers	in	search	of	newness	in	their	
drinking	experience.

ITERATIVE DESIGN AND  
CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT
HDL’s	commitment	to	iterative	design	is	
evident	in	its	ongoing	product	enhancements.	

For	instance,	Golden	Oak	recently	underwent	
a	packaging	transformation	with	the	addition	
of	a	new	Guala	cap,	enhancing	its	premium	
imagery.	Similarly,	Black	Oak	now	features	
a	transparent	black-tinted	glass	bottle,	
reinforcing	its	distinctive	character.	On	the	
other	hand,	Silver	Oak	has	been	introduced	
with	striking	packaging	designed	to	enhance	
the	brand's	premium	appeal.

These	physical	improvements	are	part	of	
HDL’s	broader	strategy	to	ensure	that	its	
product	presentation	matches	with	the	high	
quality	of	the	final	product.	This	approach,	
combined	with	its	focus	on	continuous	
improvement,	allows	HDL	to	maintain	brand	
consistency	while	adapting	to	the	dynamic	
market	trends.

CONSUMER-CENTRIC INNOVATION
HDL’s	innovation	efforts	have	always	been	
firmly	rooted	in	its	consumer	feedback.	
Through	sampling	campaigns	and	consumer-
led	activations,	we	gather	insights	into	
changing	tastes	and	preferences,	which	
guide	our	product	development.	This	synergy	
between	consumer	input	and	HDL’s	internal	
expertise	ascertains	that	it	remains	at	the	
forefront	of	the	industry,	offering	products	
that	align	their	needs	and	wants.	

THE PATH AHEAD
With	the	launch	of	a	new	product	in	the	40	
UP	Vodka	segment	and	a	fresh	offering	in	
the	40UP	whisky	category,	HDL	is	geared	up	
to	expand	its	market	presence	and	tap	into	
new	consumer	bases.	These	new	additions	
have	also	helped	the	Company	to	reflect	its	
commitment	to	innovation	and	adaptability	
in	the	dynamic	alcoholic	beverage	industry	
of	Nepal.	Moving	forward,	HDL	aims	to		
continue	to	its	quest	to	explore	new	frontiers	
in	the	alcoholic	beverages	industry	while	
ensuringits	market	leadership	both	in	the	
brown	spirits	segment	and	in	the	evolving	
white	spirits	category.
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Between	last	year	and	current	year	HDL’s	Golden	Oak’s	market	share	decreased	by	3%	in	the	review	
period	while	its	total	volume	has	decreased	by	1%.		The	overall	industry	volume	in	the	same	period	
declined	by	6	percent	signalling	an	overall	decline	in	sales	of	alcoholic	beverages.

In	the	40	UP	Whisky	Category,	HDL’s	brand	volume	fell	by	7%	for	Golden	Oak	this	year	as	compared	to	
last	year	while	its	overall	share	decreased	by	6%	where	the	market	share	of	Black	Oak	increased	by	1%.	
The	overall	industry	volume	declined	by	5%.	

In	the	review	period,	Silver	Oak	recorded	a	market	share	of	12%	in	its	segment.

(Data Based on Internal Survey)

PERFORMANCE AND MARKET SHARE
Industry: Overall Liquor Industry  

Industry Volume 2079/80: 1,793,678                                

Industry Volume 2080/81: 1,682,071

Industry: 40 UP Whisky Category

Industry Volume 2079/80: 924,088                                                  

Industry Volume 2080/81: 877,985

Industry: 40 UP Vodka Category

Industry Volume 2079/80: 101,729                                                  

Industry Volume 2080/81: 141,022

 BRANDS 2079/80 2080/81 2079/80 2080/81
VOLUME IN CS MARKET SHARE IN %

	 Golden	Oak	 603,209	 515,	407	 34%	 31%
	 Black	Oak	 115,836	 120,152	 6%	 7%
	 Silver	Oak	 	 16,888	 0%	 1%
	 Blue	Oak	 943	 -44	 0%	 0%
	 Aaila	 77	 150	 0.%	 0.0	%
 Total 720,065 652,553 40% 39%

 BRANDS 2079/80 2080/81 2079/80 2080/81
VOLUME IN CS MARKET SHARE IN %

	 Golden	Oak	 603,209	 515,	407	 65%	 59%
	 Black	Oak	 115,836	 120,152	 13%	 14%
	 Blue	Oak	 943	 -44	 0%	 0%
 Total 719,988 635,515 78% 72%

 BRANDS 2079/80 2080/81 2079/80 2080/81
VOLUME IN CS MARKET SHARE IN %

	 Silver	Oak	 	 16,888	 0%	 12%

PRODUCTS & SERVICES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INVESTOR'S RELATIONSHIP DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
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State-of-Art 
Distillation Unit
Himalayan	Distillery	Limited	(HDL)	is	among	
the	few	liquor	producers	in	Nepal	that	features	
both	a	state-of-the-art	bottling	facility	and	a	
world-class	distillation	unit,	which	is	designed	
for	future	expansion	if	necessary.	The	30	KLPD	
distillation	plant,	crafted	by	KATZEN	(USA),	
has	the	capability	to	produce	six	million	liters	
of	Extra	Neutral	Alcohol	(ENA).	The	distillation	
process	follows	a	scientific	methodology	
that	begins	with	the	proper	storage	of	grains,	
followed	by	pre-cleaning	and	quality	testing.	
After	milling	the	grains	into	flour,	the	process	
continues	with	liquefaction	and	conversion	of	
the	slurry	into	sugar,	which	is	then	fermented	
to	produce	alcohol. 

HDL’s	distillation	process	includes	a	strict	quality	
control	system	that	involves	a	series	of	sample	
tests	to	confirm	that	the	final	product	is	market-
ready.	The	company	also	operates	a	modern,	
well-equipped	laboratory	that	serves	as	the	
central	hub	for	these	quality	assessments.
 

Additionally,	HDL	has	made	significant	
investments	this	year	in	automating	its	
distillation	plant.	This	automation	will	improve	
operational	efficiency	by	minimizing	downtime	
and	resource	use,	resulting	in	substantial	
cost	savings.	It	allows	for	precise	control	over	
processes,	enhancing	product	quality	and	
consistency	while	reducing	human	error.	The	
upgraded	safety	features	will	mitigate	hazards,	
and	the	system’s	adaptability	will	enable	quick	
responses	to	market	demands.	Overall,	this	
automation	is	expected	to	enhance	profitability	
and	sustainability	in	HDL’s	distillation	operations.

* HDL produces via a state-of-the-art 30
KLPD distillation plant design by KATZEN
(USA) for high quality potable ENA.
Capacity: 6 million liters.

* Stringent quality control is performed at
multiple levels through different lab 
analyse in a highly advanced laboratory.

Year                  ENA (Bulk Liter ‘000’) Finished Goods
    (Cases ‘000’)

2019-20 3,059  539
2020-21 4,072  642
2021-22 4,971  678
2022-23 3,450  486
2023-24 1,707  344

Production Quantity

Grain
Unloading & Storage

Grain stored in 
Grain Silo after

Pre-cleaning & lab
testing

Milling

Grain goes for 
milling for further

process

Liquefaction

Flour converts into
slurry. In this process,
grain starch converts

into sugar with the
help of an enzyme

Fermentation

Yeast propagation
& fermentation

process is carried
out to convert

sugar into alcohol

Distillation

Ready fermentation
washes feed to a 

different distillation
column to get 
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Decanter

Wet cake 
seperated from the

spent wash

ETP

Further treatment
of wastewater
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HDL	is	thrilled	to	announce	important	
advancements	throughout	our	operations,	
reflecting	our	willpower	for	excellence,	
sustainability,	and	growth.	Here’s	a	picture	of	
HDL’s	recent	initiatives:

MODERN MALT  
PLANT INSTALLATION:
We	are	proud	to	unveil	our	newly	installed	
malt	plant,	a	contemporary	facility	designed	
to	provide	top-first-rate	malt	spirits	effectively	
and	sustainably.	This	marks	a	sizeable	step	
forward	in	our	adventure	to	create	premium	
spirits	by	blending	the	current	generation	with	
traditional	information.

KEY	FEATURES:
n Mash Tun & Lauter Tun: 
	 Advanced	equipment	ensures	precise	
temperature	control	for	optimal	starch	
conversion	and	efficient	wort	extraction,	
setting	the	stage	for	superior	fermentation.

n Fermentation System:  
	 Stainless	steel	fermenters	with	automated	
temperature	control	and	aeration	
techniques	ensure	consistent	fermentation,	
resulting	in	rich	flavor	profiles.

n Distillation Units:  
	 Custom	copper	stills	and	precision-
engineered	distillation	columns	create	high-
quality,	complex	spirits.

n Energy Efficiency:  
	 Energy-saving	systems	like	steam	recovery	
and	heat	exchangers	reduce	environmental	
impact	while	maintaining	high	production	
standards.

A Journey of 
Innovation and 
Sustainability

AUTOMATION & QUALITY CONTROL:
A	modern	automation	system	ensures	seamless	
operations,	while	an	integrated	quality	control	lab	
upholds	the	highest	product	standards.	

The	malt	spirit	from	this	facility	will	be	aged	for	at	
least	three	years	to	produce	premium	single	malt	
whisky,	reducing	our	reliance	on	Scotch	whisky	
imports	and	setting	a	new	standard	for	quality	
and	innovation	in	the	spirits	industry.
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New 
Projects

SPIRIT MATURATION 
WAREHOUSE
To	support	our	malt	production,	HDL	is	
building	a	dedicated	maturation	warehouse	
inside	the	Himalayan	Region,	selected	for	
its	perfect	weather	for	getting	aged	matured	
spirit.	The	facility	will	age	malt	spirits	for	a	
minimum	of	3	years,	enhancing	their	taste	
and	being	first-rate.	This	initiative	will	assist	
us	to:		

n	Reduce	dependence	on	high-priced	
imported	malt	spirits.		

n	 Lower	production	costs	whilst	retaining	
superior	first-class	quality.		

n	Open	opportunities	to	promote	sales	of	aged	
spirits	locally	and	across	the	world.		

By	making	an	investment	in	this	warehouse,	
HDL	is	strengthening	its	position	as	a	main	
producer	of	premium	spirits,	paving	the	way	
for	extra	efficiency	and	new	sales	streams.
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ZERO LIQUID DISCHARGE  
(ZLD) SYSTEM
As	a	part	of	our	commitment	to	sustainability,	
we’ve	mounted	a	Zero	Liquid	Discharge	(ZLD)	
system	at	our	distillation	plant.	This	present-
day	system	eliminates	liquid	waste	by	
changing	it	into	strong	“Dry	Cakes,”	which	can	
be	sold	at	a	higher	price	as	the	raw	material	of	
cattle	feed.

Benefits of the ZLD System:
n	No	liquid	waste	discharge,	enhancing	our	
environmental	performance.		

n	Dry	Cakes	generate	better	sales	than	
conventional	sludge.		

n	 Supports	global	sustainability	dreams	even	
as	boosting	our	operational	performance.		

This	innovation	is	a	win-win	for	both	the
environment	and	our	enterprise,	reflecting
HDL’s	management	in	responsible
production.

VENTURING INTO  
THE FISHERY MARKET 
HDL	is	increasing	its	horizons	by	way	of	
coming	into	the	fishery	market	through	a	
subsidiary	organization.	With	land	already	
obtained	and	feasibility	research	confirming	
the	undertaking’s	capacity,	we	are	launching	
a	pilot	segment	to	make	sure	of	a	successful	
rollout.

WHY THIS MATTERS:  
n	Meets	the	growing	call	for	regionally	
sourced	fish,	decreasing	reliance	on	
imports.		

n	 Supports	local	food	safety	and	creates	
process	opportunities	in	nearby	
communities.		

This	new	challenge	aligns	with	our	vision	
of	diversification	and	sustainable	growth,	
promising	to	make	a	high-quality	effects	on	
the	local	economic	system.

At	HDL,	we	stay	committed	to	innovation,	
exceptionalism,	and	sustainability.	These	
projects	not	only	beautify	our	operations	but	
also	strengthen	our	position	as	an	enterprise	
leader.	Thank	you	for	joining	us	on	this	
interesting	journey	as	we	continue	to	push	
limitations	and	create	excellent	products.

PRODUCTS & SERVICES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INVESTOR'S RELATIONSHIP DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
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Dear Shareholders, 
We	warmly	welcome	all	the	shareholders	in	
this	24th	Annual	General	Meeting	of	Himalayan	
Distillery	Limited	(HDL).	We	shall	be	taking	
this	opportunity	to	present	HDL’s	financial	
statements	including	balance	sheet,	profit	and	
loss	account,	cash	flow	statement	for	the	fiscal	
year	2023/024	for	your	due	approval.	We	would	
also	like	to	request	you	to	thoroughly	discuss	
and	approve	the	agenda	presented	in	this	
meeting.

Moving	ahead,	on	behalf	of	the	Board	of	
Directors,	we	would	like	to	present	a	brief	
review	of	the	major	activities	of	the	company	
last	year	and	its	future	programs.

1. Overview of business for the fiscal 
year 2023/2024:

A	brief	description	of	the	business	done	by	the	
company	in	the	financial	year	2023/2024	is	as	
follows.

Director's 
Report

PARTICULARS AMOUNT (IN NPR)

Net	Sales		 2,081,496,998
Gross	Profit			 1,223,288,922
Gross	Operating	profit	 483,229,974
Non	Operating	Income	 	 66,384,021
Profit	before	provision	of	income	tax		 496,077,231
Profit	after	provision	of	income	tax		 365,048,730

(In NPR)
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1.	Although	the	contribution	of	the	“Golden	Oak”	
brand	has	been	significant	in	the	company’s	
business	over	the	past	few	years,	we	can	
observe	a	decline	in	its	contribution	recently.	
We	have	already	initiated	various	strategies	
and	efforts	to	minimize	and	prevent	further	
decline	in	its	sales	and	distribution.	At	the	
same	time,	we	have	also	prioritized	its	brand	
diversification.	In	the	review	period	we	have	
introduced	the	“Silver	Oak”	brand	in	the	
market.	However,	HDL’s		“Blue	Oak”	has	not	
been	able	to	establish	itself	in	the	market	
strongly.	We	are	committed	to	ensuring	the	
safety	of	investors’	funds	and	providing	high	
returns	to	investors.	As	such	we	are	confident	
that	we	will	continue	receiving	direct	and	
indirect	support	from	our		investors,	in	
this	endeavor.	We	would	like	to	inform	that	
producing	brands	that	are	well	aligned	with	
our	consumer	preferences	and	increasing	
company	revenue	remains	our	top	priority.

2.	We	are	also	working	on	producing	high-
quality	liquor	in	new	segments	to	further	
diversify	our	business,	to	cater	to	our	
changing	consumer	preferences,	and	to	
increase	our	overall	revenue	by	enhancing	
our	brand	portfolio.

3.	In	the	review	period,	HDL’s	production	
and	sales	have	declined	due	to	unhealthy	
competition	in	the	liquor	industry	of	the	
country,	lack	of	consumer	awareness	about	
brand	identity,	annual	increases	in	excise	
duty	leading	to	higher	product	prices,	reduced	
consumer	purchasing	power,	and	decreasing	
market	demand.	This	has	led	to	a	decline	in	
the	company’s	revenue	as	well.

4.	HDL’s	premium	products,	Golden	Oak	and	
Black	Oak,	have	been	counterfeited	by	certain	
industries	to	gain	short	term	financial	
benefits.	They	have	been	producing	and	
distributing	low-quality,	lower-strength,	and	
lower-priced	liquor	in	bottles	that	are	similar	
to	these	two	brands	and	have	misleading	
names	to	deceive	consumers.	We	have	already	
filed	complaints	against	those	industries	with	
the	relevant	authority.

5.	Since	advertisement	of	liquor	products	
is	prohibited,	it	has	become	challenging	
to	introduce	new	brands	to	consumers.	
Additionally,	the	reduction	in	ongoing	brand	
awareness	programs	for	established	brands	
has	made	it	increasingly	difficult	to	maintain	
their	recognition	in	the	minds	of	consumers.

6.	The	restrictions	on	brand	promotion	activities	
for	various	products	have	also	resulted	
additional	challenges	for	future	brand	
promotion	efforts.

7.	During	the	review	period,	the	company’s	
net	sales	have	declined	by	approximately	
30%	compared	to	the	preceding	fiscal	year.	
This	decrease	can	be	attributed	to	economic	
recession,	unhealthy	competition	in	the	
liquor	industry,	lack	of	consumer	awareness	
about	brand	identity,	rising	excise	duty	and	
production	costs	creating	higher	product	
prices,	reduced	consumer	purchasing	
capacity,	and	an	declining	overall	market	
demand.	Despite	the	decline	in	net	sales,	HDL	
has	deployed	effective	cost-minimization	
strategies	which	has	enabled	it	to	generate	
a	net	profit	of	Rs.	36,50,48,730.00	during	this	
period.

PRODUCTS & SERVICES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INVESTOR'S RELATIONSHIP DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
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2. The impact of the national and 
international situation on the 
business of the company:

n	In	the	review	period,	the	global	economy	
also	showed	signs	of	stagnation	with	visible	
impacts	in	the	Nepalese	economy.	Most	
activities	aimed	at	revitalizing	the	country’s	
economic	momentum	remained	largely	
stagnant	and	this	contraction	in	economic	
activities	inevitably	also	affected	the	liquor	
industry.	Challenges	of	difficulties	in	
mobilizing	working	capital	due	to	lack	of	
business	growth,	decrease	in	consumers’	
disposable	income,	fluctuating	interest	
rates	undermining	investor	confidence,	and	
intense	and	unhealthy	market	competition	
have	collectively	led	to	a	decline	in	overall	
industrial	and	business	transactions.

n		The	annual	increase	in	excise	duty	by	the	
Government	of	Nepal,	increase	in	foreign	
exchange	rates,	fluctuations	in	fuel	prices,	
higher	transportation	costs,	and	the	rising	
cost	of	raw	materials	used	in	production	have	
contributed	to	increased	production	costs,	
resulting	in	a	corresponding	rise	in	the	price	
of	liquors	manufactured.	The	stagnation	of	
income-generating	economic	activities	has	
further	reduced	the	sales	and	distribution	
of	liquor.	Moreover,	the	economy	has	not	yet	
fully	normalized	due	to	challenges	such	as	
lack	of	enough	economic	activities,	dengue	
outbreaks,	and	the	migration	of	active	labor	
to	foreign	countries,	which	have	continued	to	
impact	the	overall	business	operations	in	the	
review	period.

n	Similar	to	the	previous	year,	the	industry’s	
production	of	spirit	faced	challenges	resulting	
from	the	export	ban	on	its	primary	raw	
materials,	broken	rice	by	the	neighboring	
country	India.		This	has	led	to	significantly	
more	expensive	procurement	of	broken	

rice	from	local	market,	since	they	can	only	be	
collected	during	specific	periods	and	this	in	turn	
has	increased	production	costs	substantially.

n	Various	restrictions	imposed	on	the	production	
and	distribution	of	liquor	through	formal	
channels	have	led	to	the	supply	of	liquor	
through	informal	sectors	leading	to	a	direct	
adverse	impact	on	the	business	of	the	industry.

n	Despite	operational	challenges,	HDL’s	
management	has	been	efficiently	running	the	
Company	and	has	been	ensuring	the	sales	and	
distribution	of	its	products	with	a	high	level	of	
professional	competence.

3. Opinion of the Board of Directors 
regarding the achievements of the 
current year and the future up to the 
date of the report:

n	There	has	been	an	increase	of	49	percent	in	the	
sales	volume	of	HDL	in	the	first	three	months	
of	the	fiscal	year	2024/2025	as	compared	to	
the	preceding	fiscal	year.	Further	details	of	the	
same	are	as	follows:	

n	Due	to	the	high	cost	and	delays	associated	
with	the	import	of	malt	spirits	from	abroad,	
the	company	has	initiated	the	establishment	
of	a	malt	spirit	production	unit	within	Nepal	
to	further	streamline	production.	By	the	end	
of	the	review	period,	an	expert	consultant	has	
been	selected,	and	with	their	direct	support,	
the	construction	work	has	already	been	
completed,	and	the	unit	is	currently	in	the	
process	of	trial	production.

n	HDL	has	purchased	land	in	high	himalayan	
region	and	is	in	the	process	of	designing	
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the	architect	of	necessary	infrastructure	to	
achieve	its	aim	to	produce	high-quality	liquor	
that	aligns	with	consumer	preferences	by	
maturing	spirits.	In	the	future,	after	selling	
matured	spirits	and	introducing	products	
made	with	its	own	matured	spirits	to	the	
market,	it	is	expected	that	our	production	
costs	will	decrease	and	this	will	lead	to	an	
improvement	in	HDL’s	overall	profitability.

n	We	have	prioritized	the	principle	of	effective	
implementation	of	legal	standards	in	our	
operations.	The	grain	sludge	generated	
during	our	spirits	production	is	currently	
processed	in	our	Effluent	Treatment	Plant	
and	is	sold,	contributing	to	the	HDl’s	revenue	
generation.	In	the	future,	by	drying	the	grain	
sludge	into	dry	cakes	and	selling	them,	we	
aim	to	further	increase	our	revenue	stream,	
enhance	the	efficiency	of	our	industrial	
waste	management,	and	improve	our	
environmental	sustainability	indicators.	To	
achieve	this	dream,	we	are	in	the	final	stages	
of	the	installation	of	necessary	machinery	to	
advance	our	Zero	Liquid	Discharge	initiative.

n	We	have	already	completed	our	plant	
automation	process	to	reduce	production	
costs,	enhance	productivity,	and	ensure	
consistent	quality	in	spirit	production.	The	
production	has	already	begun,	and	we	are	
working	on	plans	to	sell	the	high-quality	
spirit	produced	under	this	project	to	other	
industries	based	on	the	quality	and	quantity	
of	the	produce.

n	Additionally,	HDL	is	also	exploring	various	
investment	possibilities	and	strategies	to	
ensure	optimal	utilization	of	its	retained	
earnings	and	maximization	of	returns.	We	
are	in	the	stage	of	preparing	a	concrete	plan	
for	this	and	we	are	hopeful	to	finalize	and	
implement	it	within	this	fiscal	year.

n	To	increase	the	market	share	of	the	HDL’s	
products,	a	special	attention	has	been	given	

to	our	market	management	and	promotion	
initiatives.	A	study	and	analysis	for	the	same	
has	been	conducted	to	cover	markets	across	
Nepal,	including	the	Himalayan,	Hilly,	Terai,	
Kathmandu	Valley,	and	Inner	Madhesh	
regions.	Based	on	this,	we	have	already	
appointed	distributors	in	all	these	regions	till	
the	end	of	mid	October	2025.

n	Improvement	in	productivity	can	only	be	
achieved	by	maintaining	harmony	and	
operational	unity	between	workers	and	
management.	To	enable	this,	we	have	
conducted	several	programs	including	but	
limited	to	training	sessions,	gatherings,	and	
recreational	events	(like	picnics)	to	further	
enhance	solidarity	and	motivation	among	our	
employees.

n	From	the	provisions	for	CSR	made	till	
last	year,	the	company	spent	a	total	of	Rs.	
84,348,854.00	under	the	heading	of	Corporate	
Social	Responsibility	(CSR)	within	the	legal	
framework.	The	company	will	continue	its	
CSR	activities	in	the	current	fiscal	year	as	per	
applicable	laws	and	regulations.

4. Relating industrial and commercial: - 

n	HDL	will	continue	its	Corporate	Social	
Responsibility	(CSR)	activities	in	the	current	
fiscal	year	as	well.	By	carrying	out	CSR	
activities	within	the	framework	of	laws	and	
regulations,	we	gain	both	satisfaction	and	
strengthening	of	our	relationship	with	the	
beneficiary	institutions.	They	also	enable	us	to	
foster	trust	and	confidence	in	the	company’s	
reputation	among	stakeholders.	We	shall	
continue	to	prioritize	these	activities	in	the	
future	as	well.

n	HDL	is	continuously	working	to	strengthen	
its	relationships	with	various	national	
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distributors,	distributors,	wholesalers,	
retailers,	and	consumers	through	well	
-planned	social,	cultural,	and	business	
partnerships.	By	consistently	ensuring	strict	
adherence	to	relevant	laws	and	regulations	
and	maintaining	transparency,	we	have	been	
able	to	establish	harmonious	relationships	
with	the	regulatory	bodies	including	but	not	
limited	to	the	Department	of	Industry,	Inland	
Revenue	Department,	Inland	Revenue	Offices,	
Customs	Department,	Office	of	the	Company	
Registrar,	Nepal	Securities	Board,	Nepal	Stock	
Exchange	Limited,	as	well	as	with	banks	and	
financial	institutions,	and	other	stakeholders	
of	the	company.	HDL	is	committed	to	making	
these	relationships	even	more	fruitful,	
trustworthy	and	strong		in	the	future.

n	We	have	entered	into	different	agreements	
with	suppliers	of	essential	raw	materials	
and	packaging	items,	ensuring	that	the	
operations	are	conducted	under	the	specified	
terms	and	conditions.	Further,	to	prevent	any	
disruption	in	the	supply	of	raw	materials	and	
packaging	goods,	HDL	is	actively	seeking	new	
and	alternative	suppliers	to	add	as	partners	
to	its	supply	chain.	All	of	these	agreements	
are	entered	following	strict	professional	
procedures,	considering	the	quality	and	price	
of	materials.	To	ensure	long-term	benefits,	
HDL	has	also	developed	a	system	that	focuses	
on	supply	chain	efficiency	and	quality,	taking	
into	account	the	feedback	and	requirements	
of	internal	departments.	This	approach	
has	led	to	the	adoption	of	a	systematic	and	
consultative	method	of	operations.

n	We	are	also	coordinating	with	various		
associations,	organizations,	and	government	
agencies	to	support	business	growth.	
To	enhance	employee	development	and	
foster	enthusiasm	in	their	work.	HDL	
has	been	actively	involving	employees	in	
seminars,	workshops,	training	programs,	
and	discussions	to	ensure	their	skills	
enhancement	and	relevance	in	the	market.	
Additionally,	we	are	dedicated	to	contribute	to	
the	development	of	industry-friendly	policies	
with	unwavering	commitment	similar	to	
previous	years.	

5. Change in Board of Directors and 
Reason thereof: 

No	any	change	has	been	made	in	Board	of
Directors	during	the	review	period.

6. Main matters impacting the 
transaction:- 

n	The	impact	of	foreign	currency	reserves	
observed	in	the	banking	and	financial	sector,	
coupled	with	economic	sluggishness	in	
business	transactions,	instability	in	interest	
rates,	and	rising	costs	of	fuel,	transportation,	
and	raw	materials,	has	led	to	an	increase	in	
the	overall	production	costs	of	the	Company.	
In	addition	to	this,	instability	in	global	
geopolitics,	growing	market	competition,	
and	adverse	effects	of	natural	disasters	such	
as	floods	and	landslides	have	also	negatively	
affected	our	production	and	distribution	
of	liquor.	We	expect	that	these	impacts	will	
continue	to	persist	in	the	current	fiscal	year	
as	well.
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n Unfair	competition,	such	as	the	counterfeiting	
and	sales	of	HDL’s	brands	with	the	intent	
to	deceive	consumers,	has	disrupted	our	
business	operations.	

n The	introduction	of	numerous	new	products	
by	various	liquor	industries	has	heightened	
the	risk	of	intense	competition	in	the	market.

n Government’s	increase	in	excise	duty	rates	
has	created	an	imbalance	between	our	
product	pricing	and	consumer	purchasing	
power,	leading	to	a	noticeable	decline	in	our	
liquor	sales.	

n Frequent	changes	in	policies	and	regulations	
regarding	liquor	production	and	distribution	
have	made	it	difficult	to	raise	our	brand	
awareness	among	consumers.

n As	most	raw	materials	and	packaging	
materials	for	liquor	production	are	
unavailable	domestically	and	need	to	be	
imported,	the	associated	high	costs	for	
imports		have		adversely	impacted	our		
business	operations.

7. Remarks on Audit Report, if any:-

We	would	like	to	let	you	know	that	there	is	no
comment	as	remarks	in	the	Audit	Report.

8. Recommendation for Distribution of 
Bonus Shares and Cash Dividend:

We	propose	15%	bonus	shares	(1.5	bonus	shares	
for	every	10	existing	shares)	to	be	distributed	
to	our	shareholders,	along	with	a	cash	dividend	

of	Rs.	133,626,165.75	(One	Hundred	Thirty	Three	
Million	Six	Hundred	Twenty	Six	Thousand	One	
Hundred	Sixty	Five	Rupees	and	Seventy	Five	
Paisa	only)	at	the	rate	of	Rs.	5	per	paid-up	share	
(inclusive	of	dividend	tax	purposes)	from	the	
net	profit	and	retained	earnings	for	the	fiscal	
year	2023-24.	The	Board	of	Directors	requests	
approval	of	this	proposal	from	this	Annual	
General	Meeting	for	the	distribution	of	bonus	
shares	and	cash	dividends.	

As	I	draw	to	a	closer,	I	would	like	to	express	my	
hope	and	confidence	that	HDL	will	continue	
to	receive	valuable	support	and	suggestions	
from	its	shareholders	in	the	days	to	come.	On	
behalf	of	HDL’s	Board	of	Directors,	I	would	
like	to	extend	heartfelt	gratitude	and	sincere	
appreciation	to	HDL’s	management	team,	
employees,	suppliers,	distributors,	consumers,	
shareholders,	security	personnel,	well-wishers,	
and	representatives	from	various	government	
agencies	of	Nepal	for	their	presence	in	today’s	
Annual	General	Meeting.

Thank	you
Akhileshwor Prasad Singh

Chairperson

On	behalf	of	the	Board	of	Directors
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 @= sDkgLsf] cfly{s cj:yf / cGo cj:yfx?sf] hfgsf/L / ;'wf/ ug]{ p4]Zon] q}dfl;s ?kdf n]vf k/LIf0f sfo{ ug{  
  lgb]{zg lbPsf] .

 #= sDkgLsf] cfGt/Ls n]vf k/LIfs / n]vf k/LIfssf] lgo'StLsf ;DjGwdf l;kmfl/; ug]{ ul/Psf] . 

 $= n]vf k/LIfs lgo'lQmsf nfuL l;kmf/L; ug]{ nufot sDkgLsf] n]vf ;DalGw laifodf /fo ;Nnfx / ;'emfjx? n]vf ;ldltn] lbg]  
  u/]sf]] .

kfl/>lds vr{  !(,)),##,%(*.))
sfof{no ;+rfng vr{ &,!%,@!,&@).))
hDdf Joj:yfkg vr{ @^,!%,%%,#!*.))

laj/0f ?k}of
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%= sDkgLsf] jf;nft, gfkmf gf]S;fg lx;fj, jf:tljs gfkmf gf]S;fgsf] t'ngfTds lx;fj, jf:tljs vr{x?sf] laj/0f, lalqm kl/df0f / 
d"No, nIo / ljlqmsf] t'ngfTds lja/0f ;lxtsf] laj/0fx? dfu u/L ;ldIff ug]{ sfo{ u/]sf] .

^= sDkgLsf] jflif{s ljs|L nIo, cfDbfgL tyf vr{ cflbsf] ;ldIff u/L jflif{s jh]6 tof/ ug{ sDkgL Joj:yfkgnfO{ lgb]{zg lbg] u/]sf] .

&= sDkgLsf] jflif{s ah]6 pk/ 5nkmn u/L l:js[tsf] nflu ;+rfns ;ldltdf l;kmfl/; ug]{ u/]sf] .

!)= ;+rfns, k|aGw ;+rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d"v, cwf/e't z]o/wgL / lghsf glhssf gft]bf/ tyf ;+nUg kmd{, sDkgL jf ;+ul7t ;+:yfn] 
sDkgLnfO{ s'g} /sd a'emfpg aFfls eP ;f] s'/f M 5}g

!!=  ;+rfns, k|aGw ;+rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d"v tyf kbflwsf/Lx?nfO{ e'QmfgL ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwfsf] /sdM 

!@= z]o/wgLx?n] a'lem lng a+fls /x]sf] nfe+fzsf] /sd M sDkgLn] cf=j= @)&@.)&# b]lv @)&(.*) ljleGg cf=j=x?df ;+lrt 
d'gfkmfaf6 ljt/0f ul/Psf] gub tyf cGtl/d nfef+;dWo] hDdf ?= #,^$,#),)*^.)) k|ltj]bg cjlw ;Dd z]o/wgLx?n] a'lem lng 
afFsL /x]sf]df cf=j= @)&@.)&# b]lv @)&$.)&% ;Ddsf] /sd sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] k|fjwfg cg';f/ o; sDkgLsf] @)*! d+l;/ 
dlxgfdf z]o/ /lhi6«f/ >L gljn O{Ge]i6d]06 a}lsË lnld6]8, gS;fn sf7df08f}+ dfkm{t nufgLstf{ ;+/If0f sf]ifdf ?= @!,)$,@@*.&% 
hDdf ul/Psfn] cfly{s jif{ @)&$.&% -cGtl/d nfef+;_ b]lv @)&(.*) ;Ddsf] nfef+; e'QmfgL lng afFsL z]o/wgLx?n] o; 
sDkgLsf] z]o/ /lhi6«f/ >L gljn O{Ge]i6d]06 a}lsË lnld6]8, gS;fn sf7df08f}+df ;Dks{ ul/ lng x'g ;d]t hfgsf/L u/fO{G5 .

!#=  o; cjlwdf vl/b÷laqmL u/]sf] ;DklQ ljj/0fM o; ;ldIff jif{df sDkgLn] Soflk6n cf]s{ Og k|f]u|]z nufotsf l:y/ ;Dklt  
?= #*,(%,%&,$)^.$# sf] vl/b u/]sf] 5 eg] ?= !),@#,)(@.))sf] laqmL u/]sf] 5 .

!$= ;Dj4 sDkgL jLr ePsf sf/f]af/ M o; sDkgLn] tklzn adf]lhdsf ;Dj4 sDkgL ;Fu sf/f]jf/ u/]sf] 5 .

cWoIf / ;+rfns ;ldltsf ;b:onfO{ k|bfg ul/Psf] j}7s eQf  !%,(%,))).))
k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[tsf] kfl/>lds &@,@%,&((.))
cGo kbflwsf/L -k|aGws txb]lv dfly_ #,#@,%%,(@&.))
hDdf vr{  $,@),&^,&@^.))

sd{rf/Lx?sf] laj/0f cf=a= @)*)÷*!-?_

>L h]=lh=cfO{=l8li6Jo";g k|f=ln= $,#$,&*,*&,*#!.)) #*,#^,)(,))).))

>L ljho l8li6n/L k|f=ln= @),@#,$(,%!).))  

>L /f]lnË l/e/ l8li6n;{ k|f=ln= !!,$(,!*,##^.)) @#,%%,!)!.))

>L km'8 P08 a]e/]h 6]Sgf]nf]hL l/;r{ ;]G6/ k|f=ln= *,!#^).)) @%,%!,!#,$**.))

sDkgL  laqmL -?=_ vl/b -?=_
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lwtf]kq btf{ tyf lgisfzg lgodfjnL, @)&# sf] lgod @^ sf]  
pklgod @ ;+u ;DjlGwt cg';"rL !% adf]lhdsf] jflif{s ljj/0f .
!=  ;+rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg M ;DjlGwt lzif{s cGtu{t /flvPsf] .

@=  n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg M ;DjlGwt lzif{s cGtu{t /flvPsf] .

#=  n]vf k/LIf0fdf ePsf] ljQLo ljj/0fM ;DjlGwt lzif{s cGtu{t /flvPsf] .

$=  sfg"gL sf/jflx ;DjlGw ljj/0fM 

 -s_ ;+ul7t ;+:yfn] jf ;+:yf lj?4 s'g} d'4f bfo/f ePsf] eP M tklzndf pNn]v eP jdf]lhdsf d'4fx? ljleGg Goflos / 
cw{Goflos lgsfodf rln/x]sf 5g\ .

 !=  o; sDkgLnfO{ ljkIfL agfO{ ;Ddflgt >d cbfnt sf7df08f}+df s]lx JolQmn] lgo'QmL kfpm egL sLt]{ hfn;fhL sfuh agfO{ d'4f  
 bfo/ u/]sf]df ;f] ljifodf ;Ddflgt lhNnf cbfnt k;f{af6 cfD;Ls jfbL bfjL k'Ug] 7x/fO{ km};nf ePsf]df ;f] km};nf pk/ sDkgLn]  
 ;Ddflgt pRr cbfnt, hgsk'/sf] c:yfoL O{hnf; la/uGhdf k'g/fj]bg u/]sf] lyof] . ;Ddflgt pRr cbfnt, hgsk'/ c:yfoL  
 O{hnf;af6 ;d]t lhNnf cbfntn] u/]sf] km};nfnfO{ g} ;b/ x'g] u/L lg0f{o cfPsf] . ;f]xL d'4f ;+u ;DalGwt ljifo ;Ddflgt >d  
 cbfnt sf7df08f}df d'ntjL /x]sf]df ;f] hfuL txf+af6 lgj]bsx?sf] kIfdf lg0f{o k|fKt ePsf] 5 . ;f] lg0f{o pk/ lrQ ga'lem  
 sDkgLn] ;Ddflgt ;af]{Rr cbfntdf pTk|]z0f nufotsf] cfb]z hf/L ul/ kfpg l/6 lgj]bg bfo/ u/]sf]df ;Ddflgt >d cbfntsf]  
 km};nfnfO{ sfof{Gjog gug{ cGtl/d cfb]z hf/L ePsf] x'gfn] pQm d'4fdf o; cjlwdf ;d]t ;Ddflgt ;jf]{Rr cbfntjf6 clGtd  
 km};nf x'g jf+sL g} /x]sfn] xfn ;Dd ljrf/flwg cj:yfdf g} /x]sf] 5 .

 @=  cfly{s P]g @)&& n] cGtM z'Ns P]g, @)%* sf] bkmf $-ª_ df sfod ul/Psf] ;+zf]lwt bkmf  ædlb/f, lao/ jf ;"lt{hGo kbfy{  
 ;DaGwL pBf]u / To:tf] j:t'sf] k}7f/Lstf{ tyf ltgsf laqm]tfn] s'g} klg k|sf/sf] pkxf/ sfo{qmd ;~rfng ug{ jf To:tf pBf]un]  
 ===========To:tf] pTkfbg laqmL ubf{ 5'6 lbg kfOg] 5}gÆ eGg] Joj:yf pk/ o; sDkgLn] d'No clej[l4 s/ ljhsdf 5'6 lbg  
 kfpg] ls gkfpg] egL cfGtl/s /fhZj ljefusf dxflgb]{zs ;dIf k"jf{b]z dfu u/]sf]df cGtM z'Ns P]gsf] pNn]lvt ;+;f]lwt  
 Joj:yfdf lglxt eP/ dfq k"jf{b]z k|fKt ePsf]n] ;f] k'jf{b]z pk/ lrQ gj'lem >L /fhZj Gofolws/0f, sf7df08f}+df k'g/fj]bg  
 ul/Psf] . ;f] k'g/fj]bgdf txf+af6 o; pBf]un] dfu u/]sf] d'No clej[l4 s/ P]g tyf lgodfjnLsf] Joj:yf cg';f/ 5'6 kfpg]  
 gkfpg] ;DaGwdf s]lx gjf]nL ePsf] lg0f{o q[l6k'0f{ b]lv+bf jb/ u/L lgj]bssf] k"jf{b]z dfu u/]sf ;a} ljifodf h] hf] ug'{ kg]{ u/L  
 k"jf{b]z ;DalGw lg0f{o ug'{ egL cfGtl/s /fhZj ljefudf g} kmfO{n lkmtf{ u/]sf] ljifodf ;d]t cfGtl/s /fhZj ljefu,  
 nflhDkf6jf6 s'g} lg0f{o ePsf] hfgsf/L k|fKt ePsf] 5}g . 

 #= cf=j= @)^!.)^@ sf] cjlwsf] d'=c=s/ / cfos/ ;DjGwdf ;Ddflgt ;jf]{Rr cbfntaf6 km};nfsf] lnlvt k|lt k|fKt ePsf]  
 / k|fKt ePsf] km};nfdf d='c=s/  / cfos/sf] xsdf s]lx ljifodf sDkgLsf] dfu adf]lhd / s]xL ljifodf lj?4df km};nf k|fKt  
 x'g cfPsfn] sDkgLn] lnPsf bfjL lj?4df cfPsf] km};nf pk/ Goflos k'g/fjnf]sgsf] nflu cg'dlt dfu u/]sf]df ;Ddflgt  
 ;jf]{Rr cbfntjf6 cg'dlt gx'g] ePsf] 5 . ;f] km};nfaf6 x'g cfpg] cg'dflgt bfloTjsf nflu sDkgLn] cf=j= @)*).*! s}  
 cfoljj/0fdf Joj:yf ul/;s]sf] 5 .

 $= @)^* >fj0f sf] d'=c=s/ ;DaGwdf clGtd s/ lgwf{/0f cfb]z tyf cf=j= @)&@.)&# sf] cfo ljj/0f pk/ 7"nfs/bftf  
 sfof{noaf6 s/ k/LIf0fsf] l;nl;nfdf p7fg u/]sf] d'=c=s/ ;DaGwL ljifodf lrQ ga'lem cfGtl/s /fhZj ljefudf k|zf;sLo  
 k'g/fjnf]sg ul/Psf] 5 .

 % sDkgLsf] cf=j=@)&$.)&% sf] cfo ljj/0f pk/ cfos/ P]g, @)%* sf] bkmf !)@ jdf]lhd s/ lgwf{/0f u/L ;+;f]lwt s/ lgwf{/0f  
 cfb]zx? k|fKt ePsf]df ;f] lgwf{/0f cfb]zjf6 nufPsf] ;f]xL P]gsf] bkmf !!& jdf]lhdsf] z'Ns, bkmf !!* jdf]lhdsf] Jofh / bkmf  
 !@) jdf]lhdsf] z'Ns pk/ lrQ gj'lem cfos/ P]g,@)%* sf] bkmf !!% adf]lhd k|zf;sLo k'g/fjnf]sg ul/Psf] 5 . 

 ^= sDkgL Joj:yfkgn] cg';fzg ;DjlGw sf/jflx -dfbs kbfy{ ;]jg_ u/L x6fO{Psf @ hgfn] >ldsn] ;Ddflgt >d cbfnt,  
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 eQmk'/df ;]jfaf6 x6fO{Psf] ab/ ul/kfpFm egL k'g/fj]bg u/]sf]df ;DdfgLt cbfntjf6 sDkgL Joj:yfkgn] u/]sf] sf/jflxnfO{ ;b/  
 ug]{ u/L lg0f{o ePsf] hfgsf/L k|fKt ePsf] 5 eg] lg0f{osf] k"0f{kf7 eg] cfpg aFfsL /x]sf] 5 .

 &=  ;nf{xL lhNnf cgf{xf j8f g+=@ j:g] ;'efif zfxn] ;"rgfsf] xs ;DjlGw P]g, @)^$ jdf]lhd dfu ul/Psf] ;"rgf pknAw  
 gu/fO{ lhDd]jf/Ljf6 klG5g vf]h]sf]n] sfg'g jdf]lhd sf/jflx u/L ;"rgf pknAw u/fO{ kfpmF egL k'g/fj]bg lbPsf]df ;f]  
 k'g/fj]bg pk/ o; sDkgLn] lnlvt hjfkm /fli6«o ;"rgf cfof]udf k]z ul/ ;s]sf]df ;f] pk/ xfn ;Dd s'g} ;'gjfO{ ePsf] hfgsf/L  
 k|:t't cjlwdf k|fKt ePsf] 5}g .

 -v_ ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf ;+:yfks jf ;+rfns jf ;+:yfks jf ;+rfnssf] lj?4df k|rlnt lgodsf] cj1f jf kmf}hbf/L ck/fw  
 u/]sf] ;DjGwdf s'g} d'4f bfo/f u/]sf] jf ePsf] ePM ;+:yfsf] k"j{ ;+rfnsnfO{ lwtf]kq af]8{n] hl/jfgf ug]{ lg0f{o pk/ k'g/fj]bg k/L  
 ;Ddflgt pRr cbfnt kf6gjf6 jb/ ePsf] 5 . ;f] jb/ pk/ lwtf]kq jf]8{n] ;Ddflgt ;jf]{Rr cbfntdf d'4f bf]xf]/\ofO{ kfpmgsf]  
 lgj]bg u/]sf]n] ;f] d'4f xfn ;Ddflgt ;jf]{Rr cbfntdf ljrf/flwg /xsf]] jfx]s cGo ljifodf s'g} d'4f /x]sf] hfgsf/L k|fKt  
 gePsf] .

 -u_ s'g} ;+:yfks jf ;+rfns lj?4 cfly{s ck/fw u/]sf] ;DjGwdf s'g} d'4f bfo/f ePsf] ePM o; sDkgLsf] hfgsf/Ldf 5}g .

%= ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] z]o/ sf/f]jf/ tyf k|ultsf ljZn]if0f M 

 -s_ lwtf]kq jhf/df ePsf] ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] z]o/sf] sf/f]jf/ ;DjGwdf Joj:yfkgsf] wf/f0ffM 

  g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh tyf lwtf] kq jf]8{sf] ;'kl/j]If0f Joj:yfsf] clwgdf /lx sf/f]jf/ x'g] u/]sf] .

-v_ cf=j= @)*).)*! df ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] z]o/sf] clwstd\, Go"gtd / clGtd d"Nosf ;fy} s'n sf/f]jf/ z]o/ ;+Vof / sf/f]jf/ lbgM

^=  -s_ ;Df:of tyf r'gf}lt M cfGtl/s tyf afXo

 -!_ jhf/df Joj;flos ultljlwx? ;f]r] cg';f/ gePsfn] dlb/fsf] Joj;fodf k|efj k/]sf] 5 .

 -@_ Jojf;fo x|f; b]lvPsf]n] dlb/f Joj;flox?n] yk rfn' k"hL+sf nflu j}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfjf6 cltl/St C0f /sd lnO{ nufgL  
  gu/]sfn] dlb/fsf] Joj;fo lj:tf/ x'g g;s]sf] b]lvPsf] 5 .

 -#_ pkef]Stfx?nfO{ em'Sofpg] p4]Zon] o; sDkgLsf j|f08x?sf] gSsn u/L h:tfsf] To:t} b]lvg] jf]tn / n]jn k|of]u u/L pTkfbg  
  tyf ljs|L ug]{ k|j[lt jl9 /x]sf]n] sDkgLsf] sf/f]jf/df k|efj k/]sf] 5 .

 -#_ cTolws dfqfdf ljleGg pTkfbs sDkgLn] gof+ a|f08sf dlb/fsf] pTkfbg tyf ljs|L ljt/0fdf cfPsfn] k|lt:kwf{sf] hf]lvd  
 pRr ePsf] 5 .

 -$_ jiff}{gL cGtM z'Ns b/df x'g] u/]sf] pRr j[l4sf sf/0f j:t'sf] d"No j[l4 x'g] t/ pef]Stfsf] s|o zlQmdf  eg] x|f; cfPsf]  
  sf/0fjf6 j:t'sf] ljs|L ljt/0fdf k|lts'n c;/ kg{ hfg] b]lvPsf] 5 .

 -%_ gLlt lgoddf :yL/tf gePsf sf/0f sf/f]jf/df k|efj kg]{ u/]sf] 5 . 

k|yd q}df; 2,389 1,840 1,857 61 30,342 1,088,608

bf]>f] q}df; 2,155 1,540 1,712 49 29,638 1,202,955

t]>f] q}df; 1,819 1,441 1,488 58 37,973 1,532,913

rf}yf] q}df; 1,500 1,140 1,384 61 40,586 1,821,968

q}df; clwstd d"No Go'gtd d"No clGtd d"No s'n sf/f]af/  s'n sf/f]af/  s'n sf/f]af/ 
 ?= ?= ?= lbg ;+Vof z]o/ ;+Vof

->f]tM g]kfn :6s PSr]Gh _
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 -^_ pBf]un] k|of]u ug]{ sRrf kbfy{ tyf Kofs]lhËsf ;fdflu|x?sf] ljb]zjf6 g} vl/b u/L Nofpg' k/]sf]n] ljb]zL d'b|fsf] ;6xL b/df  
  ptf/ r9fj x'bf pTkflbt j:t'sf] nfutdf j[l4 x'g k'uL Joj;flos sf/f]jf/df k|efj k/]sf] 5 .

 -&_ a|f08 Awarness ug{ gkfO{g] ePsfn] cf}krfl/s If]qjf6 pTkfbg x'g] dlb/f Joj;fosf] ck]lIft lj:tf/ / sf/f]jf/ j[l4df  
  k|efj k/]sf] 5 . 

v_  /0fgLltM

 != cfGtl/s tyf jfXo ;d:of Pj+ r'gf}ltx? /x] klg sDkgLn] lnPsf nIox?nfO{ k'/f ug{ / z]o/wgLx?sf] lxtdf sfo{ ug]{ u/L  
 pTkfbgsf] rfknfO{ dWogh/ u/L sRrf kbfy{ e08f/0f nufot pTkfbgsf ;fdfu|Lx? ;dodf g} pTkfbg :yn ;Dd ;j{ ;'ne  
 tl/sfjf6 pknAw u/fpg] sfo{df ;hu /x]sf 5f}+ .

 @= sDkgLsf] Joj:yfkg k|0ffnL, pTkfbg k|s[of cflb k|lt ;hu /lx pTkfbgsf] u'0f:t/ k|lt lhDd]jf/ eO{ pkef]QmfnfO{ sDkgLsf  
 pTkfbgx? k|lt laZj:t u/fpg] sfo{df k|yfldstfsf ;fy x]/]sf 5f}+ . 

 #= sf/vfgfdf s'g} klg lsl;dsf] ca/f]w ePsf] v08df klg dfu / cfk'lt{df ;xhtfsf] nfuL cGo :yfgaf6 ;d]t pTkfbg ul/  
 ahf/df ljs|L ljt/0f ug]{ k|aGwnfO{ lg/Gt/tf lbg] p4]Zo /fv]sf 5f}+ . 

 $= sDkgLsf] d"Vo Joj;fonfO{ s]Gb|df /fv]/ ;f]lx cfwf/df k|ltkmn nlIft vr{nfO{ dfq k|fyfldstf lbg] / cufl8 j9fpg] gLlt  
 lnPsf 5f}+ . 

 %= pTkflbt a|f08sf] lj:tf/ Pj+ pTkfbgdf ljljwtf Nofpg cg';Gwfg / ljZn]if0f u/L sfo{ ug{] Joj:yf ldnfPsf 5f}+ .

 ^= pTkfbg :yn jftfj/0f d}qL, pTkfbgdf ljljwLs/0f, pRr :t/sf] pTkfbg ug]{ nufot pBf]usf] pTkfbsTj j[l4 ug{ sDkgL  
 Joj:yfkgn] cfjZos kxn cufl8 j9fO{ ;s]sf] ljifodf sDkgLsf] ;+rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v u/]sf 5f}+ . pSt  
 k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v u/] cg';f/sf] sfo{nfO{ hlt ;Sbf] rf8f] sfo{Gjo u/L sDkgLsf] Joj;fo lj:tf/ ug]{ gLlt sDkgLsf] /xg] 5 .

Uf_ ;+:yfut z';f;g M

 s= ;+:yfut ;'zf;gnfO{ ;b}j pRr k|yfldstfdf /fVb} cfPsf] / ;+:yfut ;'zf;g ;DjlGw lgb]{lzsf tyf k|fKt kl/kqx?sf] k"0f{ ?kdf  
 kl/kfngf ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 . 

 v= cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ Jojl:yt ug{sf nflu sDkgLn] ;+rfns ;ldltjf6 dfgj ;+;fwg tyf k|zf;sLo Dofg'jn, n]vf  
 ;DjlGw Dofg'jn, vl/b Dofg'jn / cfO 6L Dofg'cn l:js[t u/fO{ ;f] cg';f/ sDkgLsf] ;+rfng ug]{ ul/Psf] . pSt Dofg'jn / cGo  
 P]g, lgod cg';f/ sfo{ ePsf 5g 5}gg\ egL jfXo :jtGq ?kdf cfGtl/s n]vf kl/Ifs lgo'StL u/L lghx?jf6 n]vf k/LIf0f u/L  
 q}dfl;s ?kdf k|fKt k|ltj]bgsf s}lkmot pk/ u7g ul/Psf] n]vf ;ldltdf 5nkmn u/L ;+rfns ;ldltsf] lg0f{o cg';f/ ug]{  
 ul/Psf] 5 .

 u= sf/f]af/nfO{ l56f], 5l/tf], r':t tyf a}1flgs agfpg tyf cfjZos /0flglt to ug{ ljleGg ;ldltx? u7g ul/ lqofzLn /x]sf] 5 . 

 3= ;+:yfut ;'zf;gnfO{ k"0f{ ?kdf kl/kfngf ug]{ / o;nfO{ cem ;'b[9 agfpb} n}hfg o; sDkgL k|lta4 /x]sf] 5 .
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;"lrs[t ;+ul7t ;+:yfx?sf] ;+:yfut ;'zf;g ;DjlGw lgb]{lzsf @)&$ sf] lgb{]zg g+=@) 
-#_ tyf @)-$_ k|of]hgfy{ k|ltj]bgsf] zf/+z .

-s_ P]g, lgodfjnL tyf lgodfgsf/L lgsfoaf6 ;do ;dodf hf/L ePsf lgb]{zg tyf lgb]{lzsf adf]lhd ug'{ kg]{ s'/f kfngf eP÷gePsf]M 
kfngf ePsf] .

-v_ lgodgsf/L lgsfon] O{hfht hf/L ubf{ tf]s]sf zt{x? kfngf eP÷gePsf]M Kffngf ul/Psf] .

-u_ lgodgsf/L lgsfon] ;+:yfsf] lgodg, lgl/If0f jf ;'kl/j]If0f ubf{ ;DjlGwt ;+:yfnfO{ lbPsf] lgb]{zg M Kffngf ePsf] .

-3_ kl5Nnf] jflif{s÷ljz]if ;fwf/0f ;ef ePsf] ldlt M ldlt @)*) kf}if @% ut] ;DkGg ePsf] .

-ª_ sd{rf/Lx?sf] ;+/rgf, kbk"lt{, j[lt ljsfz, tflnd, tnj eQf tyf cGo ;'ljwf, xflh/ / ljbf cfrf/ ;+lxtf nufotsf s'/fx? ;d]t ;d]l6Psf 
sd{rf/L ;]jf zt{ ljlgodfjnL÷Joj:yf eP gePsf] M o; sDkgLsf] ;+rfns ;ldltaf6 lg0f{o eO{ sd{rf/Lx?sf] ;+/rgf, kbk"lt{, j[lt ljsfz, 
tflnd tyf cGo ;'ljwf, xflh/ / ljbf cfrf/;+lxtf nufotsf s'/fx? ;d]t ;d]l6Psf sd{rf/L ;]jf zt{ ljlgodfjnL  
-HR & Administrative Manual_ nfu' ePsf] .

-r_ cfly{s k|zf;g ljlgodfjnL eP gePsf] M n]vf ;DjlGw Dofg'cn (Finance Manual) ;+rfns ;ldltjf6 l:js[t  eO{ nfu' ul/Psf] .

-5_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f sfo{ljlw eP÷gePsf] M sDkgLsf] ;+rfns ;ldltaf6 HR & Administrative Manual, Finance Manual, 

Procurement Manual, Information Technology (IT) Policy l:js[t ul/ nfu' ul/Psf] ;fy} jfXo 5'6\6} :jtGq n]vf k/LIfssf] 
lgo'StL ul/ q}dfl;s ?kdf sDkgLsf] cfly{s tyf cGo ultljlwx?sf] k/LIf0f u/fO{ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ dhj'b /fVg] ul/Psf] . 
o;/L jfXo n]vf k/LIfsn] q}dfl;s ?kdf n]vf k/LIf0f u/L pknAw u/fPsf] k|ltj]bgdf n]vf ;DjlGwdf 5nkmn eO{ ;+rfns ;ldltn] lg0f{o 
u/] cg';f/ ug]{ ul/Psf] .  

-h_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLsf nflu s'g} ;ldlt u7g eP÷gePsf], u7g gePsf] eP ;f] sf] sf/0fM cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ;DjlGw 5'6\6} 
;ldlt u7g geP klg dfly j'bf+ g+= -5_ df pNn]v ePsf] k4tL4f/f sfo{ ug]{ ul/Psf] x'gfn] 5'6\6} ;ldltsf] cfjZos dx;'; gul/Psf] .
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;fljsdf sfod ePsf] clws[t k"hL+ / r'Qmf k"hL+df a[4L÷;+;f]wg x'g] x'gfn] sDkgLsf] k|jGw kqsf] bkmf %-s_, -v_, -u_ tyf lgodfjnLsf] lgod %-s_, 
-v_, -3_ / -ª_ df ;+;f]wg ug{ l:js[t ug]{ . 

;+rfns ;ldltn] l;kmfl/; u/] adf]lhd sDkgLsf z]o/wgLx?nfO{ jf]g; z]o/ ljt/0f ug]{ lg0f{o eP cg';f/ sDkgLsf] ;fljssf] clws[t k"FhL / hf/L 
k"FhL+df j[l4 x'g] lg0f{o ;j{ ;Ddltn] ePsf] tklzndf pNn]v eP adf]lhd sDkgLsf] k|jGw kqsf] bkmf %-s_, -v_, -u_ / lgodfjnLsf] lgod %-s_, -v_, 
-3_ / -ª_ df b]xfo cg';f/ ;+;f]wg ug]{ lg0f{o ul/of] . 

lxdfnog l8li6n/L lnld6]8 -ln=g+= &%&_
k|jGw kqsf] bkmf %-s_, %-v_ / %-u_ df sfod ePsf] ;+;f]lwt Joj:yfM 
bkmf %-s_ df sfod ;+;f]lwt Joj:yfM

sDkgLsf] clws[t k"FhL ?=#,%),)),)),))).)) -tLg c/a krf; s/f]8_ x'g]5 . pSt k"FhLnfO{ ?=!)).)) sf b/n] #,%),)),))) -tLg s/f]8 krf; nfv_ yfg 
;fwf/0f z]o/df ljefhg ul/Psf] 5 . xfn lk|km/]G; z]o/ ;DjlGw s'g} Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5}g .

bkmf %-v_ df sfod ;+;f]lwt Joj:yfM  
sDkgLsf] hf/L k"FhL / r'Qmf k"FhL ?=#,)&,#$,)!,*!@.@% -tLg c/j ;ft s/f]8 rf}tL; nfv Ps xhf/ cf7 ;o jfx| k};f krL; dfq_ x'g]5 . 

bkmf %-u_ df sfod ;+;f]lwt Joj:yfM  
sDkgLsf] hf/L k"FhL dWo] #,)&,#$,)!*=!@ yfg ;fwf/0f z]o/df ljefhg ul/Psf] 5 . 

lxdfnog l8li6n/L lnld6]8 -ln=g+= &%&_
lgodfjnLsf] lgod %-s_, %-v_, %-3_ / %-ª_ df sfod ePsf] ;+;f]lwt Joj:yfM

lgodfjnLsf] lgod %-s_ df sfod ;+;f]lwt Joj:yfM 
sDkgLsf] clws[t k"FhL ?=#,%),)),)),))).)) -tLg c/a krf; s/f]8_ x'g]5 . 

lgodfjnLsf] lgod %-v_df sfod ;+;f]lwt Joj:yfM  
sDkgLsf] hf/L k"FhL / r'Qmf k"FhL ?=#,)&,#$,)!,*!@.@% -tLg c/j ;ft s/f]8 rf}tL; nfv Ps xhf/ cf7 ;o jfx| k};f krL; dfq_ x'g]5 . 

lgodfjnLsf] lgod %-3_ df sfod ;+;f]lwt Joj:yfM  
sDkgLn] cfkmgf] hf/L k"FhLnfO{ #,)&,#$,)!*=!@  lsQf ;fwf/0f z]o/ ljefhg u/L hf/L ug]{5 . xfn lk|km/]G; z]o/ ;DjlGw Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5}g . 

lgodfjnLsf] lgod %-ª_ df sfod ;+;f]lwt Joj:yfM 
sDkgLn] tTsfn hf/L u/]sf] k"FhL dWo] #,)&,#$,)!*=!@ lsQf z]o/ ;j{ ;fwf/0f z]o/wgLx?n] u|x0f ug]{5g .
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k|jGw kqsf] bkmf % -s_, -v_ / -u_ df tyf lgodfjnLsf] lgod %-s_, -v_, %-3_, %-ª_ df 
sfod ePsf] ;+zf]wLt Joj:yf ;DjGwdf v8f ul/Psf] tLg dxn] M

;fljsdf ePsf] Joj:yf xfn sfod ul/Psf] Joj:yf sf/0f

k|jGw kqsf] bkmf %-s_ df sfod Joj:yfM
sDkgLsf] clws[t k"FhL ?=#,)),)),)),))).)) 
-tLg c/a_ x'g]5 .  pSt k"FhLnfO{ ?=!)).)) sf 
b/n] #,)),)),))) -tLg s/f]8_ yfg ;fwf/0f  
z]o/df ljefhg ul/Psf] 5 . xfn lk|km/]G; z]o/ 
;DjlGw s'g} Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5}g .

k|jGw kqsf] bkmf %-v_ df sfod 
Joj:yfM sDkgLsf] hf/L k"FhL / r'Qmf k"FhL 
?=@,^&,@%,@#,#!%.)) -b'O{ c/j ;t;¶L s/f]8 
klRr; nfv t]O{; xhf/ tLg ;o kGw| dfq_ x'g]5 .

k|jGw kqsf] bkmf %-u_ df sfod Joj:yfM 
sDkgLsf] hf/L k"FhL dWo] @,^&,@%,@#,#.!% yfg 
;fwf/0f z]o/df ljefhg ul/Psf] 5 . 

lgodfjnLsf] lgod %-s_ df sfod Joj:yfM 
sDkgLsf] clws[t k"FhL ?=#,)),)),)),))).)) 
-tLg c/a_ x'g]5 .

lgodfjnLsf] lgod %-v_ df sfod 
Joj:yfM sDkgLsf] hf/L k"FhL / r'Qmf k"FhL 
?=@,^&,@%,@#,#!%.)) -b'O{ c/j ;t;¶L s/f]8 
klRr; nfv t]O{; xhf/ tLg ;o kGw| dfq_ x'g]5 .  

k|jGw kqsf] bkmf %-s_ df sfod  
;+;f]lwt Joj:yfM sDkgLsf] clws[t 
k"FhL ?=#,%),)),)),))).)) -tLg 
c/a krf; s/f]8_ x'g]5 . pSt k"FhLnfO{ 
?=!)).)) sf b/n] #,%),)),))) -tLg 
s/f]8 krf; nfv_ yfg ;fwf/0f z]o/df 
ljefhg ul/Psf] 5 . xfn lk|km/]G; z]o/ 
;DjlGw s'g} Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5}g .

k|jGw kqsf] bkmf %-v_df sfod ;+;f]lwt 
Joj:yfM sDkgLsf] hf/L k"FhL / r'Qmf k"FhL 
?=#,)&,#$,)!,*!@.@% -tLg c/j ;ft 
s/f]8 rf}tL; nfv Ps xhf/ cf7 ;o 
jfx| ?k}ofF krL; k};f dfq_ x'g]5 . 

k|jGw kqsf] bkmf %-u_  df sfod 
;+;f]lwtM sDkgLsf] hf/L k"FhL dWo] 
#,)&,#$,)!*=!@ yfg ;fwf/0f z]o/df 
ljefhg ul/Psf] 5 . 

lgodfjnLsf] lgod %-s_ df sfod  
;+;f]lwt Joj:yfM sDkgLsf] clws[t 
k"FhL ?=#,%),)),)),))).)) -tLg c/a 
krf; s/f]8_ x'g]5 . 

lgodfjnLsf] lgod %-v_ df sfod  
;+;f]lwt Joj:yfM sDkgLsf] hf/L k"FhL / 
r'Qmf k"FhL ?=#,)&,#$,)!,*!@.@% -tLg 
c/j ;ft s/f]8 rf}tL; nfv Ps xhf/ 
cf7 ;o jfx| ?k}ofF krL; k};f dfq_ 
x'g]5 . 

sDkgLn] jf]g; z]o/ ljt/0f ubf{ 
;fljssf] clws[t k"FhL eGbf 
sDkgLsf] k"FhL j9\g hfg]  
ePsfn] .

Jff]g; z]o/ ljt/0f ubf{ hf/L k"FhL 
j9fpg' kg]{ cfjZoStf ePsf]n] .

Jff]g; z]o/ ljt/0f u/]sf]n]  
;+;f]wg ug{ cfjZos ePsf] .

sDkgLn] jf]gz z]o/ ljt/0f ubf{ 
;fljssf] clws[t k"FhL eGbf 
sDkgLsf] k"FhL j9\g hfg]  
ePsfn] . 

Jff]g; z]o/ ljt/0f u/]sf]n]  
;+;f]wg ug{ cfjZos ePsf] .

qmdzM
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;fljsdf ePsf] Joj:yf xfn sfod ul/Psf] Joj:yf sf/0f

lgodfjnLsf] lgod %-3_ df sfod  
;+;f]lwt Joj:yfM sDkgLn] cfkmgf] 
hf/L k"FhLnfO{ #,)&,#$,)!*=!@  lsQf 
;fwf/0f z]o/ ljefhg u/L hf/L ug]{5 . 
xfn lk|km/]G; z]o/ ;DjlGw Joj:yf  
ul/Psf] 5}g . 

lgodfjnLsf] lgod %-ª_ df sfod  
;+;f]lwt Joj:yfM– sDkgLn] tTsfn hf/L  
u/]sf] k"FhL dWo] #,)&,#$,)!*=!@ lsQf 
z]o/ ;j{ ;fwf/0f z]o/wgLx?n] u|x0f  
ug]{5g .

Jff]g; z]o/ ljt/0f u/]sf]n] 
;+;f]wg ug{ cfjZos ePsf] .

Jff]g; z]o/ ljt/0f u/]sf]n] 
;+;f]wg ug{ cfjZos ePsf] .

lgodfjnLsf] lgod %-3_M sDkgLn] cfkmgf] hf/L 
k"FhLnfO{ @,^&,@%,@#,#=!% lsQf ;fwf/0f  
z]o/ ljefhg u/L hf/L ug]{5 . xfn lk|km/]G; z]o/ 
;DjlGw Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5}g .

lgodfjnLsf] lgod %-ª_M– sDkgLn] tTsfn hf/L 
u/]sf] k"FhL dWo] ?=@,^&,@%,@##=!% lsQf z]o/ 
;j{ ;fwf/0f z]o/wgLx?n] u|x0f ug]{5g .

qmdzM

clvn]Zj/ k|;fb l;+x

;efklt÷cWoIf  

ldltM @)*!.)(.@*

sDkgLsf] 5fk M  

sDkgL ;lrj

ldltM @)*!.)(.@*                                               
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT ASHAD 31, 2081 (JULY 15, 2024)

 Amount in Rs. 

ASSETS      

NON-CURRENT ASSETS      

 a) Property, plant and equipment 3A  520,095,814   492,902,512   484,887,884   458,611,822 

 b) Capital work-in-progress 3B  311,430,554   34,743   311,430,554   34,743 

 c) Intangible assets 3C  1,059,857   1,006,264   1,059,857   1,006,263 

 d) Right to use assets 3D  12,635,108   2,116,239   12,635,108   2,116,239 

 e) Investments -/4  -      101,100,000   101,100,000 

 f) Advance For Investment -/5    10,000,000   -   

 g) Other non-current assets 4/6  43,714,724   42,809,060   43,714,724   42,809,060 

Total non-current assets   888,936,057   538,868,818   964,828,127   605,678,127 

CURRENT ASSETS      

 a) Inventories 5/7  326,155,027   447,224,251   326,155,027   447,224,251 

 b) Financial assets     

 Trade receivables 6/8  216,303   1,962,176,573   216,303   1,962,176,573 

 Cash and cash equivalents 7/9  1,240,060,121   470,101,773   1,239,202,925   469,591,315 

 Other Bank Balances 8/10  1,000,000,000   76,456,007   1,000,000,000   76,456,007 

 Other Financial assets 9/11  14,488,612   4,392,488   14,488,612   4,392,488 

 c) Other current assets 4/6  87,372,232   99,564,519   87,372,232   103,789,339 

 Total current assets   2,668,292,295   3,059,915,611   2,667,435,099   3,063,629,973

TOTAL ASSETS  3,557,228,352   3,598,784,429   3,632,263,226   3,669,308,100 

   GROUP     COMPANY 

   AS AT  AS AT  AS AT AS AT 

 NOTE GROUP/  ASHAD 31, 2081 ASHAD 31, 2080    ASHAD 31, 2081  ASHAD 31, 2080
  DESCRIPTIONS COMPANY   (JULY 15, 2024) (JULY 16, 2023)   (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023)   

Contd... 
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   GROUP     COMPANY 

   AS AT  AS AT  AS AT AS AT 

 NOTE GROUP/  ASHAD 31, 2081 ASHAD 31, 2080    ASHAD 31, 2081  ASHAD 31, 2080
  DESCRIPTIONS COMPANY   (JULY 15, 2024) (JULY 16, 2023)   (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023)   

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES      

EQUITY      

a) Equity     

 Share capital 10/12  2,672,523,315   2,429,566,650   2,672,523,315   2,429,566,650 

b)  Other equity     

 Reserves and surplus 11/13  603,450,963   854,668,290   682,894,227   925,237,160 

Total equity   3,275,974,278   3,284,234,940   3,355,417,542   3,354,803,810 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES      

 a) Financial liabilities     

 Borrowings 12/14  -     -     -     -   

 Lease Payables 13/15  12,405,204   1,742,797   12,405,204   1,742,797 

 b) Deferred tax liabilities 14/16  28,943,492   29,822,338   28,943,492   29,822,338 

Total non-current liabilities   41,348,696   31,565,135   41,348,696   31,565,135 

CURRENT LIABILITIES      

 a) Financial Liabilities     

 Borrowings 12/14  -     -     -     -   

 Lease Payables 13/15  1,281,373   678,287   1,281,373   678,287 

 Trade payables 15/17  30,699,488   115,303,794   30,699,488   115,303,794 

	 Other	financial	liabilities	 16/18	 	70,628,065		 	19,570,609		 	66,223,077		 		19,525,410	

 b) Other current liabilities 17/19  136,160,699   143,461,902   136,157,297    143,461,902  

 c) Current tax liabilities (net) 18/20  1,135,753   3,969,763   1,135,753   3,969,763 

Total current liabilities   239,905,377   282,984,354   235,496,988   282,939,155 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   3,557,228,352   3,598,784,429   3,632,263,226   3,669,308,100 

Contd... 
 Amount in Rs. 

The	accompanying	notes	are	an	integral	part	of	the	consolidated	financial	statements.	
For and on behalf of Himalayan Distillery Limited As per our report of even date

PLACE: Kathmandu

DATE: 8th December, 2024

 Niraj Subedi 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Alina Shrestha 
FINANCE MANAGER

Shanker Raj Pandey 
DIRECTOR  

Santoo Shrestha 
DIRECTOR  

Narendra K. Basnyat 
DIRECTOR  

Yangkila (Sherpa) Ruit
DIRECTOR

Ghanshyam Paudyal
PARTNER 
G. Paudyal & Associates 
Chartered Accountants

Akhileshwar P. Singh 
CHAIRPERSON 

Prakashmani Ghimire 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR  
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

   GROUP     COMPANY 

   FOR THE YEAR ENDED  FOR THE YEAR ENDED FOR THE YEAR ENDED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

 NOTE GROUP/ ASHAD 31, 2081   ASHAD 31 2080    ASHAD 31, 2080  ASHAD 31, 2080
  DESCRIPTIONS COMPANY  (JULY 15, 2024) (JULY 16, 2023)   (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023)   

Revenue from operations 19/21  4,155,236,993   5,654,787,998   4,155,236,993   5,654,787,998 

Less: excise duties   2,073,739,995   2,684,274,403   2,073,739,995   2,684,274,403 

Net sales revenue   2,081,496,998   2,970,513,595   2,081,496,998   2,970,513,595 

Less: cost of goods sold 20/22  737,051,029   1,032,029,081   737,051,029   1,032,029,081 

Less: manufacturing expenses 21/23  121,157,047   169,021,316   121,157,047   169,021,316 

Gross profit   1,223,288,922   1,769,463,198   1,223,288,922   1,769,463,198 
Total income from operations   1,223,288,922   1,769,463,198   1,223,288,922   1,769,463,198 

Employee	benefit	expenses	 22/24	 	190,033,598		 	230,866,395		 	190,033,598		 	230,866,395	

Administration and other expenses 23/25  71,734,352   73,655,411   71,521,720   73,435,700 

Selling and distribution expenses 24/26  478,503,632   526,633,722   478,503,632   526,633,722 

Operating profit   483,017,341   938,307,670   483,229,974   938,527,381 
Non Operating Income 25/27  57,722,260   10,508,372   66,384,021   10,508,372 

Depreciation and amortisation   52,193,107   50,488,080   52,193,107   50,488,080 

Finance costs 26/28  1,343,656   4,510,304   1,343,656   4,510,304 

Profit before tax   487,202,838   893,817,658   496,077,231   894,037,369 
Income tax expenses     

Current tax 27/29  130,270,079   230,655,503   130,270,079   230,655,503 

Deferred tax 27/29  (878,846)  (2,575,177)  (878,846)  (2,575,177)

Prior Period Tax Expenses   1,637,269   5,433,212   1,637,269   5,433,212 

Profit for the year   356,174,336   660,304,119   365,048,730   660,523,830 

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Contd... 

 Amount in Rs. 
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Contd... 

   GROUP     COMPANY 

   FOR THE YEAR ENDED  FOR THE YEAR ENDED FOR THE YEAR ENDED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

 NOTE GROUP/ ASHAD 31, 2081   ASHAD 31 2080    ASHAD 31, 2080  ASHAD 31, 2080
  DESCRIPTIONS COMPANY  (JULY 15, 2024) (JULY 16, 2023)   (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023)   

Other comprehensive income     
Items	that	will	not	be	reclassified	to	profit	or	loss:		 	 	 	

(i)	Remeasurements	of	Defined	Benefit	Obligations	 -				 	-				 	-				 	-			

(ii) Income tax credit/(charge) relating to these items  -     -     -     -   

Other comprehensive income   -     -     -     -   
Total comprehensive income for the year   356,174,336   660,304,119   365,048,730   660,523,830 

Profit is attributable to:     
Owners of Himalayan Distillery Limited   356,174,336   660,304,119   365,048,730   660,523,830 

Non - Controlling Interests   -     -     -     -   

     356,174,336   660,304,119   365,048,730   660,523,830 

Other comprehensive income is attributable to:     
Owners of Himalayan Distillery Limited   -     -     -     -   

Non - Controlling Interests   -     -     -     -   

     -     -     

Total comprehensive income is attributable to:     
Owners of Himalayan Distillery Limited   356,174,336   660,304,119   365,048,730   660,523,830 

Non - Controlling Interests   -     -     

     356,174,336   660,304,119   365,048,730   660,523,830 

Earning	per	equity	share	(face	value	of	Rs.	100	each)	 	 	 	 	

Basic	EPS	 28/30	 	13.33		 	24.71		 	13.66		 	24.72	

Diluted	EPS	 28/30	 	13.33		 	24.71		 	13.66		 	24.72	

 Amount in Rs. 

The	accompanying	notes	are	an	integral	part	of	the	consolidated	financial	statements.
For and on behalf of Himalayan Distillery Limited As per our report of even date

PLACE: Kathmandu

DATE: 8th December, 2024

 Niraj Subedi 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Alina Shrestha 
FINANCE MANAGER

Shanker Raj Pandey 
DIRECTOR  

Santoo Shrestha 
DIRECTOR  

Narendra K. Basnyat 
DIRECTOR  

Yangkila (Sherpa) Ruit
DIRECTOR

Ghanshyam Paudyal
PARTNER 
G. Paudyal & Associates 
Chartered Accountants

Akhileshwar P. Singh 
CHAIRPERSON 

Prakashmani Ghimire 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR  
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 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  For the year ended ashad 31, 2080 (july 16, 2023)

   GROUP     COMPANY 

   FOR THE YEAR ENDED  FOR THE YEAR ENDED FOR THE YEAR ENDED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

  ASHAD 31, 2081   ASHAD 31, 2080    ASHAD 31, 2081  ASHAD 31, 2080
  DESCRIPTIONS   (JULY 15, 2024) (JULY 16, 2023)   (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023)   

A  CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES      
	 Profit	before	tax			 	487,202,838		 	893,817,658		 	496,077,231		 	894,037,369	
      

 Adjustments for :      
 Depreciation and amortisation   52,193,107   50,488,080   52,193,107   50,488,080 

	 Asset	Write	Off		 	 	 843,639		
 (Gain)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)  (975,174)  (718,865)  (9,636,935)  (718,865)

 Gain/(loss) on Disposal of Right to Use Assets  -     (598,968)  -     (598,968)

 Interest expense  1,343,656   4,510,304   1,343,656   4,510,304 

	 Operating	profit	before	working	capital	changes		 	539,764,427		 	947,498,209		 	540,820,699		 	947,717,921	
      

 Adjustments for :      

 (Increase)/decrease in inventory  121,069,223   (239,896,779)  121,069,223   (239,896,779)

 (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables, loans and 1,979,413,476   (850,040,739)  1,978,377,379   (850,178,668)  
 other assets  

 Increase/(decrease) in Other Bank Balances   (923,543,993)  (24,609,415)  (923,543,993)  (24,609,415)

 Increase/(decrease) in lease payables      

 Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, (93,405,647)  (25,765,932)  (97,768,838)  (25,761,245)  
 other liabilities and provisions  

 Increase/(decrease) in Other Financial Assets   (10,096,124)  136,683   (10,096,124)  136,683 

 Cash generated from operation  1,613,201,362   (192,677,974)  1,608,858,346   (192,591,503)
      

 Reversal of Provision for Tax   -     1,518,066   -     1,518,066 

 Income tax paid   (134,741,357)  (235,814,582)  (134,741,357)  (235,814,582)

 Net cash from operating activities   1,478,460,004   (426,974,490)  1,474,116,989   (426,888,019)
      

 B   CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES      

 Purchase of property, plant and equipment (354,159,548)  (16,109,470)  (348,619,631)  (16,109,474)  
 & intangible assets  

 Sale of property, plant and equipment   1,866,731   2,076,493   10,323,092   2,076,493 

 Disposal of ROU Assests      

 Investment in Equity instrument of subsidiaries  -     -     (10,000,000)  -   

 Net cash generated from / (used in) investing   (352,292,817)  (14,032,977)  (348,296,539)  (14,032,981)  
 activities  

Contd... 

 Amount in Rs. 
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   GROUP     COMPANY 

   FOR THE YEAR ENDED  FOR THE YEAR ENDED FOR THE YEAR ENDED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

  ASHAD 31, 2081   ASHAD 31, 2080    ASHAD 31, 2081  ASHAD 31, 2080
  DESCRIPTIONS   (JULY 15, 2024) (JULY 16, 2023)   (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023)   

C  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES      

 Increase/(decrease) in short term loan   -     -     -     -   

 Repayment of term loan   -     -     -     -   

 Payment of Lease Liabliity   (1,144,338)  (563,863)  (1,144,339)  (563,863)

 Dividend paid   (353,720,845)  (148,835,701)  (353,720,845)  (148,835,701)

 Interest paid   (1,343,656)  (4,510,304)  (1,343,656)  (4,510,304)

	 Net	cash	generated	from	/	(used	in)	financing	 
 activities  (356,208,839)  (153,909,868)  (356,208,839)  (153,909,868)

      

 Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 769,958,348   (594,917,336)  769,611,610   (594,830,869)

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year   470,101,773   1,065,019,110   469,591,315   1,064,422,185 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  1,240,060,121   470,101,773   1,239,202,925   469,591,315 

      

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:      

 Cash on hand 57,163   83,166   55,555   81,958 

 Balance with banks in current accounts 1,240,002,958   470,018,608   1,239,147,370   469,509,358 

 Total 1,240,060,121   470,101,773   1,239,202,925   469,591,315 

Contd...  Amount in Rs. 

The	accompanying	notes	are	an	integral	part	of	the	consolidated	financial	statements.
For and on behalf of Himalayan Distillery Limited As per our report of even date

PLACE: Kathmandu

DATE: 8th December, 2024

 Niraj Subedi 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Alina Shrestha  
FINANCE MANAGER

Shanker Raj Pandey 
DIRECTOR  

Santoo Shrestha 
DIRECTOR  

Narendra K. Basnyat 
DIRECTOR  

Yangkila (Sherpa) Ruit
DIRECTOR

Ghanshyam Paudyal
PARTNER 
G. Paudyal & Associates 
Chartered Accountants

Akhileshwar P. Singh 
CHAIRPERSON 

Prakashmani Ghimire 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR  
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

   GROUP    COMPANY 

 EQUITY AND RESERVES  TOTAL EQUITY AND RESERVES TOTAL
 SHARE CAPITAL   RETAINED    SHARE CAPITAL   RETAINED  
  EARNINGS   EARNINGS

Balance as at  Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022) 1,518,479,156   1,255,781,515   2,774,260,671   1,518,479,156   1,326,130,673   2,844,609,829 

Profit	for	the	year	 -				 	660,304,119		 	660,304,119		 	-				 	660,523,830		 	660,523,830	

Reversal of Provision for Tax  1,518,066   1,518,066    1,518,066   1,518,066 

Other comprehensive income (OCI)  - net of tax -     -     -     -     -     -   

Final dividend paid -     (151,847,916)  (151,847,916)  -     (151,847,916)  (151,847,916)

Issue of bonus shares  911,087,494   (911,087,494)  -     911,087,494   (911,087,494)  -   

Balance as at  Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023) 2,429,566,650   854,668,291   3,284,234,940   2,429,566,650   925,237,160   3,354,803,810 

Profit	for	the	year	 -				 	356,174,336		 	356,174,336		 	-				 	365,048,730		 	365,048,730	

Reversal of Provision for Tax  -     -     -     -     -     -   

Other comprehensive income (OCI)  - net of tax -     -     -     -     -     -   

Final dividend paid  -     (364,434,998)  (364,434,998)  -     (364,434,998)  (364,434,998)

Issue of bonus shares  242,956,665   (242,956,665)  -     242,956,665   (242,956,665)  -   

Balance as at  Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)  2,672,523,315   603,450,964   3,275,974,278   2,672,523,315   682,894,227   3,355,417,542 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED ASHAD 31, 2081 (JULY 15, 2024)

 Amount in Rs. 

The	accompanying	notes	are	an	integral	part	of	the	consolidated	financial	statements.
For and on behalf of Himalayan Distillery Limited

Retained earnings:      
Represents	the	cumulative	profits	of	the	Group	and	can	be	distributed	/	utilized	by	the	Group.      

As per our report of even date

PLACE: Kathmandu

DATE: 8th December, 2024

 Niraj Subedi 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Alina Shrestha  
FINANCE MANAGER

Shanker Raj Pandey 
DIRECTOR  

Santoo Shrestha 
DIRECTOR  

Narendra K. Basnyat 
DIRECTOR  

Yangkila (Sherpa) Ruit
DIRECTOR

Ghanshyam Paudyal
PARTNER 
G. Paudyal & Associates 
Chartered Accountants

Akhileshwar P. Singh 
CHAIRPERSON 

Prakashmani Ghimire 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR  
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GROUP OVERVIEW
Himalayan	Distillery	Ltd.	(hereinafter	referred	to	as	“the	
Company”) is a public limited company having its registered 

office	at	Lipani	Birta,	Parsa,	Nepal.	The	Company	together	
with its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as 

“the	Group”)	is	engaged	in	production	and	distribution	of	
liquor.	

These	financial	statements	are	approved	for	issue	by	the	
Company’s board of directors on 08th December 2024

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
This	note	provides	a	list	of	the	significant	accounting	policies	
adopted	in	the	preparation	of	these	financial	statements.	
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years 

presented,	unless	otherwise	stated.

1.1  Basis of preparation of financial statements

a.	 Statement	of	compliance 

	 These	financial	statements	have	been	prepared	in	 
 all material aspects in accordance with requirements of 

 Company Act, 2063 of Nepal and applicable Nepal 

 Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) and the relevant 

	 presentation	requirements	thereof.	

b.	 Historical	cost	convention 

	 These	financial	statements	are	prepared	in	accordance 

 with the historical cost convention, except for certain 

 items that are measured at fair values, as explained in 

	 the	accounting	policies	below.

c.	 Current	V/S	Non-current	classification:	 
	 All	assets	and	liabilities	have	been	classified	as	current 
 or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating 

 cycle and other criteria set out in NAS 1 - Presentation 

 of Financial Statements based on the nature and the 

 time between the acquisition of assets for processing 

	 and	their	realization	in	cash	and	cash	equivalents.

The	Group	has	classified	the	assets	as	current	when:

n Expected	to	be	realized	or	intended	to	be	sold	or	 
	 consumed	in	normal	operating	cycle. 
n Expected	to	be	realized	within	twelve	Month. 
n Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being  

 exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve  

 months after the reporting period; 

n Held	primarily	for	the	purpose	of	the	trading.

All	other	assets	are	classified	as	non-current.

The	Group	has	classified	the	liability	as	current	when:

n It expects to be settled in normal operating cycle; 

n It is due to be settled within twelve months after the  

 reporting period;

n There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of  

 the liability for at least twelve months after reporting  

 period; 

n Held	primarily	for	the	purpose	of	the	trading.

The	Group	has	classified	all	other	liabilities	as	non-current.

Deferred	tax	assets/	liabilities	are	classified	as	non-	current.

d.	 Functional	and	presentation	currency 

	 The	financial	statements	are	presented	in	Nepalese	 
	 Rupee	(Rs.),	which	is	the	functional	and	presentation	 
	 currency	of	the	Group.	Amounts	in	the	financial	 
	 statements	are	rounded	off	to	the	nearest	rupee.

1.2 Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has 

control.	The	Group	controls	an	entity	when	the	Group	
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its 

involvement	with	the	entity	and	has	the	ability	to	affect	those	
returns through its power to direct the relevant activities 

of	the	entity.	Subsidiaries	are	fully	consolidated	from	the	
date	on	which	control	is	transferred	to	the	Group.	They	are	
deconsolidated	from	the	date	that	control	ceases.

The	Group	combines	the	financial	statements	of	its	
subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of assets, 

liabilities,	equity,	income	and	expenses.	All	intergroup	assets	
and	liabilities,	equity,	income,	expenses	and	cash	flows	
relating to transaction between companies of the Group 

are	eliminated	in	full	on	consolidation.	Unrealized	gains	on	
transactions	between	Group	companies	are	eliminated.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of 

subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated 

statement	of	financial	position,	consolidated	statement	
of	profit	and	loss	and	other	comprehensive	income	and	
consolidated	statement	of	changes	in	equity	respectively.
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1.3 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less 

depreciation,	and	impairment	loss,	if	any.	Cost	includes	
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of 

an	item	of	property,	plant	and	equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying 

amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 

only	when	it	is	probable	that	future	economic	benefits	
associated	with	the	item	will	flow	to	the	Group	and	the	
cost	of	the	item	can	be	measured	reliably.	The	carrying	
amount of any component accounted for as a separate 

asset	is	derecognised	when	replaced.	All	other	repairs	and	
maintenance	expenses	are	charged	to	statement	of	profit	or	
loss	during	the	reporting	period	in	which	they	are	incurred.

The cost of property, plant and equipment which are not 

ready for their intended use till the date of statement of 

financial	position,	are	disclosed	under	capital	work-in-
progress.

Disposals and derecognition
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised 

upon	disposal	or	when	no	future	economic	benefits	are	
expected	to	arise	from	the	continuing	use	of	asset.	Any	
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an 

item of property, plant and equipment is determined as 

the	difference	between	the	sales	proceeds	and	the	carrying	
amount of the property, plant and equipment and is 

recognised	in	the	statement	of	profit	or	loss.

Depreciation method, estimated useful lives and residual 
value
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method 

over	their	useful	lives.	The	estimated	useful	lives	of	property,	
plant and equipment is as follows:

Assets Useful lives (years)
Building 

 Buildings RCC frame structure 60 years

 Buildings other than RCC frame structure 30 years

 Factory buildings 30 years

 Fences 5 years

 Others (including temporary structures) 3 years

Leasehold improvements 9-10 years

Computers 3 - 6 years

Office equipment 5 - 10 years
Electrical installations 10 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 5 - 10 years

Plant and machinery 
 Production plant 20 - 30 years

 Other machinery and equipment 3 - 15 years
Other assets 5 years

Freehold	land	is	not	depreciated.

Residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation 

are	reviewed	at	each	financial	year	end	and	adjusted	if	
appropriate.

Impairment 
Property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment 

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 

that	the	carrying	amount	may	not	be	recoverable.	An	
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the 

asset's	carrying	amount	exceeds	its	recoverable	amount.	
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value 

less	costs	of	disposal	and	value	in	use.	For	the	purposes	of	
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest 

levels	for	which	there	are	separately	identifiable	cash	inflows	
which	are	largely	independent	of	the	cash	inflows	from	
other	assets	or	groups	of	assets	(cash-generating	units).	
Non-financial	assets	that	suffered	impairment	are	reviewed	
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each 

reporting	period.

1.4 Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that future 

economic	benefits	that	are	attributable	to	the	asset	will	
flow	to	the	Group	and	the	cost	of	the	asset	can	be	measured	
reliably.	Intangible	asset	acquired	separately	are	measured	
at	cost.	Cost	includes	expenditure	that	is	directly	attributable	
to	the	acquisition	of	an	item	of	intangible	assets.	Following	
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less 

accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment 

losses,	if	any.
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Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it 

increases	the	future	economic	benefits	embodied	in	the	
specific	asset	to	which	it	relates.	All	other	expenditure	is	
recognised	in	statement	of	profit	or	loss	as	incurred.

Derecognition
Intangible assets are derecognised upon disposal or when 

no	future	economic	benefits	are	expected	from	its	use.	
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset, is 

recognised	in	statement	of	profit	or	loss	in	the	year	the	asset	
is	derecognised.

Useful economic lives and amortisation 
The useful economic life of an intangible asset is 

considered	finite	where	the	right	to	such	asset	is	limited	to	
a	specified	period	of	time	by	contract	or	by	the	likelihood	
of	technological	obsolescence.	Intangible	assets	with	finite	
lives are amortised using the straight-line method to write 

down the cost over its estimated useful economic lives and is 

recognised	in	statement	of	profit	or	loss.

Capitalized	software	and	websites	are	amortized	over	a	
period	of	five	years,	as	estimated	by	the	management.

The amortisation method, useful lives and residual values 

are	reviewed	at	the	end	of	each	financial	year	and	adjusted	if	
appropriate.

Impairment
At	each	statement	of	financial	position	date,	these	assets	are	
assessed	for	indication	of	impairment.	In	the	event	that	an	
asset’s carrying amount being exceeds than its recoverable 

amount, the assets are considered to be impaired and are 

written	down	immediately.

1.5 Non-Current Assets held for sale
Non	current	assets	are	classified	as	held	for	sale	if	the	
carrying amount will be recovered by the Group principally 

through a sale transaction rather than through continuing 

use.	This	condition	is	considered	to	be	met	only	when	the	
asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition 

and	the	sale	is	highly	probable.	

Non	current	asset	classified	as	held	for	sale	are	measured	
at the lower of the carrying amount and fair value less 

costs	to	sell.	Impairment	loss	is	recognized	for	any	initial	or	
subsequent write down of the asset to fair value less costs 

to	sell.	Gain	due	to	any	subsequent	increases	in	fair	value	
less costs to sell of an asset is recognised, but not in excess 

of	any	cumulative	impairment	loss	previously	recognised.	
A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the 

sale of such non-current assets is recognised at the date of 

de-recognition.

1.6  Financial instruments, financial assets and 
financial liabilities

Financial	assets	and	financial	liabilities	are	recognised	when	
the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of 

the relevant instrument and are initially measured at its 

fair	value	plus	or	minus,	in	the	case	of	financial	assets	or	
liabilities	not	at	fair	value	through	profit	or	loss,	transaction	
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue 

of	financial	assets	and	financial	liabilities.

Classification
The	Group	classifies	its	financial	assets	in	the	following	
measurement categories:

n  those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either   

	 through	other	comprehensive	income,	or	through	profit	 
 or loss), and

n  those	measured	at	amortised	cost.

The	classification	depends	on	the	Group’s	business	model	
for	managing	the	financial	assets	and	the	contractual	terms	
of	the	cash	flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are 

either	recorded	in	a	statement	of	profit	or	loss	or	other	
comprehensive	income.

The	Group	reclassifies	financial	assets	when	and	only	when	
its	business	model	for	managing	those	assets	changes.

a. Financial assets
Financial assets include advances, trade receivables and 

cash	or	cash	equivalents	and	other	bank	balances.	Such	
assets are initially recognised at transaction price when 

the	Group	becomes	party	to	contractual	obligations.	The	
transaction price includes transaction costs unless the asset 

is	being	measured	at	fair	value	through	statement	of	profit	
or	loss	and	other	comprehensive	income.

Subsequent measurement
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised 

cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or 

fair	value	through	profit	or	loss	on	the	basis	of	both	(a)	the	
entity’s	business	model	for	managing	the	financial	assets	
and	(b)	the	contractual	cash	flow	characteristics	of	the	
financial	asset.
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Financial	assets	are	classified	as	those:	

i. Measured at amortised cost.
A	financial	asset	is	measured	at	amortised	cost,	if	it	is	held	
solely	for	collection	of	cash	flows	arising	from	payments	of	
principal	and	interest.

Advances, trade receivables and cash or cash equivalents 

and	other	bank	balances	are	classified	for	measurement	at	
amortised	cost.

ii.  Measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVOCI)
A	financial	asset	is	measured	at	FVOCI,	if	it	is	held	with	
an	objective	to	collect	contractual	cash	flows	and	selling	
such	financial	asset	and	the	contractual	cash	flows	are	
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 

outstanding.	It	is	subsequently	measured	at	fair	value	
with fair value movements recognised in the other 

comprehensive income (OCI), except for the recognition of 

impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign 

exchange	gains	and	losses	which	are	recognised	in	profit	
or	loss.	When	the	financial	asset	is	derecognised,	the	
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is 

reclassified	from	equity	to	profit	or	loss	and	recognised	in	
other	gains	or	losses.	Interest	income	from	these	financial	
assets is included in other non operating income using the 

effective	interest	method.

iii. Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or 

FVOCI	are	measured	at	fair	value	through	profit	or	loss.	
Interest income or foreign exchange gains or loss from these 

financial	assets	is	included	in	other	operating	income.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether a 

financial	asset	(or	a	group	of	financial	assets)	held	at	
amortised	cost	and	financial	assets	that	are	measured	at	fair	
value through other comprehensive income are impaired 

based on evidence or information that is available without 

undue	cost	or	effort.	Expected	credit	losses	are	assessed	
and loss allowances is recognised if the credit quality of the 

financial	asset	has	deteriorated	significantly	since	initial	
recognition.	Losses	arising	from	impairment	are	recognised	
in	the	statement	of	profit	or	loss.

Derecognition of financial assets
Financial assets are derecognised when the right to 

receive	cash	flows	from	the	assets	has	expired,	or	has	been	
transferred, and the Group has transferred substantially all 

of	the	risks	and	rewards	of	ownership.

Income recognition
Interest income is recognised in the consolidated statement 

of	profit	or	loss	using	the	effective	interest	method.

b.  Financial liabilities
Borrowings,	trade	payables	and	other	financial	liabilities	are	
initially recognised at the value of the respective contractual 

obligations.	They	are	subsequently	measured	at	amortised	
cost.	Any	discount	or	premium	on	redemption	/	settlement	
is	recognised	in	the	statement	of	profit	or	loss	as	finance	
cost	over	the	life	of	the	liability	using	the	effective	interest	
method	and	adjusted	to	the	liability	figure	disclosed	in	the	
statement	of	financial	position.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is 

extinguished, that is, when the contractual obligation is 

discharged,	cancelled	or	expired.

Offsetting financial instruments
Financial	assets	and	financial	liabilities	are	offset,	and	the	
net	amount	is	reported	in	the	statement	of	financial	position	
if	there	is	a	currently	enforceable	legal	right	to	offset	the	
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on 

a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 

simultaneously.

1.7 Inventories

Inventories	are	stated	at	the	lower	of	cost	and	net	realizable	
value.	Cost	of	inventories	is	determined	on	first-in	first-
out	(FIFO)	basis.	Cost	comprises	all	costs	of	purchase,	cost	
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 

inventories	to	their	present	location	and	condition.	Net	
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for 

inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs 

necessary	to	make	the	sale.

Raw material, packaging materials and bottles, stores and 

spares: 

Cost includes cost of purchase and other cost incurred 

in bringing the inventories to their present location and 

conditions.	

Finish goods and semi finished goods: 
Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and 

proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the 

normal operating capacity but excludes depreciation on 

plant	and	machinery.	

Stock in trade: 
Cost includes cost of purchase and other assets incurred 
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in bringing the inventories to their present location and 

condition.

1.8 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amount due from customers for 

goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course 

of	business.	These	are	classified	as	current	assets,	if	
collection is expected within twelve months after the 

reporting	period.	Where	the	collection	is	expected	
after twelve months after the reporting period, they are 

presented	as	non-current	assets.

1.9 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash 

flows,	cash	and	cash	equivalents	includes	cash	in	hand,	
balances with banks that are readily convertible and 

fixed	deposit	with	original	maturity	of	less	than	3	months	
to	known	amounts	of	cash	and	which	are	subject	to	an	
insignificant	risk	of	changes	in	value.

Bank overdrafts that form an integral part of the Group’s 

cash management are included as a component of cash 

and cash equivalent for the purpose of the statement of 

cash	flows.

1.10 Other Bank Balances

Other bank balances include bank deposits with an 

original maturity of less than 12 months but more than 

3 months, Bank balances on current accounts towards 

unpaid	dividend.

1.11 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of 

transaction	costs	incurred.	Borrowings	are	subsequently	
measured	at	amortised	cost.	Any	difference	between	the	
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the repayable 

amount	is	recognised	in	statement	of	profit	or	loss	over	
the	period	of	the	borrowings	using	the	effective	interest	
method.

1.12 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services 

provided	to	the	Group	prior	to	the	end	of	financial	year	
which	are	unpaid.	The	amounts	are	unsecured	and	are	
usually	paid	as	per	credit	period.	Trade	and	other	payables	
are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not 

due	within	12	months	after	the	reporting	period.	They	are	

recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently 

measured	at	amortised	cost	using	the	effective	interest	
method.

1.13  Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 

received or receivable net of returns, discounts and 

value	added	taxes.	Revenue	from	the	sale	of	products	is	
recognised at a point in time when control of the products 

is	transferred	to	the	customer	and	there	is	no	unfulfilled	
obligation	that	could	affect	the	customer’s	acceptance	
of	the	products.	The	gross	revenue	of	the	Group	includes	
excise duty but excludes value added tax (VAT) collected 

on the behalf of the government and net revenue excludes 

duties	collected		on	the	behalf	of	the	government.

Sale of products
Revenue from sale of products is recognised at the 

point	of	time	when	the	significant	risks	and	reward	of	
ownership of the products has been transferred to the 

customer, usually on delivery of the products and there is 

no	unfulfilled	obligation	that	could	affect	the	customers’	
acceptance	of	the	products.	Net	Revenue	from	sale	of	
product is measured at the amount of transaction price, 

net of returns and allowances, discounts and value added 

tax	(VAT).

Royalty income
The Group provides a license to manufacture its product 

in exchange for a royalty fee which is based on sales made 

to	the	customers.	Royalty	income	is	recognised	in	terms	
of the respective contracts upon sale of products by the 

franchisees.

Interest Income 

Interest	income	from	financial	assets	is	recognized	when	
it	is	probable	that	the	economic	benefits	will	flow	to	
the Group and the amount of income can be measured 

reliably.	Interest	income	is	included	under	the	head	“non	
operating	income	“	in	the	statement	of	profit	or	loss.,

Rental income 

Policy for recognition of revenue from operating lease is 

described	in	note	1.14.

1.14 Leases

Leases	are	classified	as	finance	lease	whenever	the	terms	
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 

of	ownership	to	the	lessee.	All	other	leases	are	classified	
as	operating	leases.
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Group as lessor
Rental income from operating lease is recognised on 

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless 

the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected 

general	inflation	to	compensate	for	the	lessor’s	expected	
inflationary	cost	increases.

Group as lessee
The	Group,	as	a	lessee,	recognizes	a	right	of	use	asset	
and a lease liability for its leasing arrangements, as the 

contract	conveys	the	right	to	control	the	use	of	an	identified	
asset.	The	contract	conveys	the	right	to	control	the	use	of	
an	identified	asset,	as	it	involves	the	use	of	an	identified	
asset and the Group has substantially all of the economic 

benefits	from	use	of	the	asset	and	has	right	to	direct	the	
use	of	the	identified	asset.	The	cost	of	the	right	of	use	asset	
shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement 

of	the	lease	liability	adjusted	for	any	lease	payments	made	
at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct 

costs	incurred.	The	right-of-use	assets	is	subsequently	
measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, 

accumulated	impairment	losses,	if	any	and	adjusted	for	
any	remeasurement	of	the	lease	liability.	The	right-of-use	
assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from 

the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or 

useful	life	of	right-of-use	asset.	The	Group	measures	the	
lease liability at the present value of the lease payments 

that	are	not	paid	at	the	commencement	date	of	the	lease.	
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate 

implicit	in	the	lease,	if	that	rate	can	be	readily	determined.	
If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses 

an	incremental	borrowing	rate.	For	short-term	and	low	
value	leases,	the	Group	recognizes	the	lease	payments	as	an	
operating	expense	on	a	systematic	basis	over	the	lease	term.

In addition, the carrying amount of the lease liability is 

remeasured	if	there	is	modification;	a	change	in	lease	term,	
a change in lease payments in case of early termination 

of	the	lease,	the	Group	derecognize	lease	liability	and	
ROU	Assets	to	reflect	the	full	termination	of	the	lease	and	
recognize	gain	and	loss	on	the	termination	of	the	lease.	in	
profit	and	loss	account.

1.15 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the 

functional currency using the exchange rates at the date 

of	the	transactions.	Foreign	exchange	gains	and	losses	
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and 

from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities 

denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange 

rates	are	recognised	in	statement	of	profit	or	loss.

1.16 Employee benefits

a. Short-term obligations
Expenses	in	respect	of	short-term	benefits	are	recognised	
on the basis of the amount paid or payable during which 

services	are	rendered	by	the	employees.	Liabilities	for	salary	
and allowances that are expected to be settled wholly within 

twelve	months	after	the	end	of	the	financial	year	in	which	
the employees render the related services are recognised in 

respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting 

period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid 

when	the	liabilities	are	settled.

b. Defined contribution plan
These	are	plans	in	which	the	Group	pays	pre-defined	
amounts to publicly administered funds as per local 

regulations and does not have any legal or informal 

obligation	to	pay	additional	sums.	These	comprise	
of contributions to the social security fund with the 

government on account of provident fund, social security 

fund	and	gratuity.	The	Group’s	payments	to	the	defined	
contribution	plans	are	recognised	as	employee	benefit	
expenses	when	they	are	due.

1.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the 

acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 

are capitalised during the period of time that is required 

to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or 

sale.	Qualifying	assets	are	assets	that	necessarily	take	a	
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use 

or	sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in a statement of 

profit	or	loss	in	the	period	in	which	they	are	incurred.

1.18 Income tax

Income	tax	comprises	of	current	tax	and	deferred	tax.		
Current	tax	in	the	statement	of	profit	or	loss	and	other	
comprehensive income is provided as the amount of tax 

payable in respect of taxable income for the period using 

tax rates and tax laws applicable during the period, together 

with	any	adjustment	to	tax	payable	in	respect	of	previous	
years.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability 

method,	on	temporary	differences	arising	between	the	tax	
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in 

the	financial	statements.	Deferred	income	tax	is	determined	
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially 
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enacted by the end of the reporting period and are 

expected to apply when the related deferred income tax 

asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is 

settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible 

temporary	differences	and	unused	tax	losses	only	if	it	is	
probable that the future taxable amounts will be available 

to	utilise	those	temporary	differences	and	losses.

Deferred	tax	assets	and	liabilities	are	offset	when	there	is	
a	legally	enforceable	right	to	offset	current	tax	assets	and	
liabilities.	Current	tax	assets	and	tax	liabilities	are	offset	
where	the	entity	has	a	legally	enforceable	right	to	offset	
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the 

asset	and	settle	the	liability	simultaneously.

Income tax, in so far as it relates to items disclosed under 

other comprehensive income or equity, are disclosed 

separately under other comprehensive income or equity, 

as	applicable.

1.19 Dividend distribution

Dividends paid are recognised in the period in which the 

interim dividends are approved by the board of directors 

or	in	respect	of	the	final	dividend	when	approved	by	
shareholders.

1.20 Earnings per share

a. Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the 

profit	or	loss	attributable	to	ordinary	shareholders	of	the	
Group by weighted average number of ordinary shares 

outstanding	during	the	financial	year,	adjusted	for	bonus	
elements	in	equity	shares	issued	during	the	year.

b. Diluted earnings per share
Diluted	earnings	per	share	is	determined	by	adjusting	
the	profit	or	loss	attributable	to	ordinary	shareholders	
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares 

outstanding	for	the	effects	of	all	dilutive	potential	
ordinary shares, which comprise of share options 

granted on convertible preference shares, debentures 

or	to	employees.	Since,	the	Group	does	not	have	any	
convertible instrument and has not granted any options 

to its employees, diluted earnings per share is considered 

the	same	as	basic	earnings	per	share.

1.21 Segmental information

The Group is engaged in the business of manufacture 

and	sale	of	liquor.	The	executive	committee	of	the	Group	
(being the chief operating decision maker) assesses 

performance and allocates resources for the business 

of the Group as a whole and hence the management 

considers Group’s business activities as a single 

operating segment and no segment disclosures have 

been	made	in	these	financial	statements.

1.22 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present 

legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, 

and	it	is	probable	that	an	outflow	of	resources	will	be	
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be 

reliably	estimated.	The	carrying	amounts	of	provisions	
are	reviewed	at	each	date	of	statement	of	financial	
position	and	adjusted	to	reflect	the	current	best	estimate.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the 

management’s best estimate of the expenditure required 

to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting 

period.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where 

there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that 

may	probably	not	require	an	outflow	of	resources	or	
an obligation for which the future outcome cannot be 

ascertained	with	reasonable	certainty.	When	there	is	a	
possible or a present obligation where the likelihood of 

outflow	of	resources	is	remote,	no	provision	or	disclosure	
is	made.	

2. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
The	preparation	of	financial	statements	in	conformity	
with	NFRS	requires	management	to	make	judgements,	
estimates	and	assumptions	that	affect	the	application	
of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of 

assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets 

and	liabilities	at	the	date	of	the	financial	statements,	and	
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during 

the	year.	Actual	results	could	differ	from	those	estimates.	
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 

on	an	ongoing	basis.	Revisions	to	accounting	estimates	
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is 

revised	if	the	revision	affects	only	that	period,	they	
are recognised in the period of the revision and future 

periods	if	the	revision	affects	both	current	and	future	
periods.
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The followings are the key assumptions concerning the 

future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at 

the	end	of	the	reporting	period	that	may	have	a	significant	
risk	of	causing	a	material	adjustment	to	the	carrying	
amounts	of	assets	and	liabilities	within	the	next	financial	
year.

a. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
As	described	in	the	significant	accounting	policies,	the	
Group reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant 

and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each 

reporting	period.	

b. Leases
The Group determines the lease term as non-cancellable 

term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an 

option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be 

exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate 

the	lease,	if	it	is	reasonably	certain	not	to	be	exercised.	The	
Group	applies	judgement	and	considers	all	relevant	factors	
that create an economic incentive in evaluating whether 

it is reasonably certain to exercise the option to renew or 

terminate	the	lease.	After	the	commencement	date,	the	
Group	reassess	the	lease	term	if	there	is	a	significant	event	
or change in circumstances that is within its control and 

affects	its	ability	to	exercise	or	not	to	exercise	the	option	to	
renew	or	terminate.	The	Group	cannot	readily	determine	
the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses 

its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease 

liabilities.	The	IBR	is	the	rate	of	interest	that	the	Group	
would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a 

similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a 

similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic 

environment.	The	IBR	requires	estimate	when	no	observable	
rates	are	available	or	when	they	need	to	be	adjusted	to	reflect	
the	terms	and	conditions	of	the	lease.	The	Group	estimates	
the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest 

rates),	when	available	and	makes	entity-specific	estimates,	
wherever	required.

c. Tax contingencies and provisions
Significant	management	judgement	is	required	to	
determine the amounts of tax contingencies and provisions, 

including amount expected to be paid/recovered for 

uncertain	tax	positions.

d. Impairment of investments carried at cost and non-
financial assets. 
Investments	carried	at	cost	and	non-financial	assets	
such as property, plant and equipment are evaluated for 

recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances 

indicate	that	their	carrying	amounts	may	not	be	recoverable.	
A	significant	management	judgement	is	required	to	
determine the recoverable amount and the impairment loss, 

if	any.

e. Provision for expected credit loss on trade receivables 
The	measurement	of	expected	credit	loss	reflects	a	
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money 

and	the	best	available	forward-looking	information.	The	
correlation between historical observed default rates, 

forecast economic conditions and expected credit loss is 

a	significant	estimate.	The	amount	of	expected	credit	loss	
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecasted 

economic	conditions.	The	Group’s	historical	credit	loss	
experience and forecast of economic conditions may not be 

representative	of	the	actual	default	in	the	future.	The	Group	
has not provided any provision for expected credit loss on 

trade	receivables.
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3.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS ,  
INTANGIBLE ASSETS & RIGHT TO USE ASSETS
 GROUP

    COST   

PARTICULARS OPENING  ADDITIONS WITHDRAWALS AS AT ASHAD 31, 2080 OPENING FOR THE  YEAR  ON WITHDRAWALS UP TO ASHAD 31, 2080 ASHAD 31, 2080 ASHAD 32, 2079
   BALANCE  AND  ADJUSTMENTS (JULY 16, 2023) BALANCE  AND  ADJUSTMENTS (JULY 16, 2023) (JULY 16, 2023) (JULY 16, 2022)

3A. Property, plant and equipment           
Freehold lands  47,915,506   21,501,000   -     69,416,506    

Leasehold Improvements  -     4,370,557   -     4,370,557  

Buildings  202,658,599   1,670,421   2,084,842   202,244,178  

Computers  8,309,945   5,572,535   184,673   13,697,808  

Office	equipment	 	14,018,038		 	3,247,262		 	3,198,772		 	14,066,528		 	10,951,930		 	1,090,293		 	3,198,724		 	8,843,498		 	5,223,030		 	3,066,107	
Electrical Installations  26,292,050   497,442   316,434   26,473,057  

Furniture	and	fixtures	 	3,232,015		 	3,025,497		 	-				 	6,257,513		 	2,787,007		 	138,249		 	-				 	2,925,256		 	3,332,256		 	445,008	
Vehicles  15,096,898   20,824,074   4,683,807   31,237,166  

Plant and machinery  896,315,167   17,283,806   2,084,003   911,514,971  

Other Assets  1,975,760   133,000   47,221   2,061,539  

Total  1,215,813,979   78,125,594   12,599,752   1,281,339,821  
3B. Capital work-in-progress  34,743   311,395,811    311,430,554  
3C. Intangible assets      
Brand Software  100,000     100,000  

Nimble PMS Software 50%  -     75,000    75,000  

HDL Server Software  -     240,000    240,000  

HDL Website  319,500     319,500  

BIG IP Firewall License  800,000     800,000  

ERP Software  2,471,438     2,471,438  

Fixed Asset Software  100,000     100,000  

Total  3,790,938   315,000   -     4,105,938  
3D. Right to Use Assets  6,079,374   12,426,215   16,383   18,489,206  

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024) 

3.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS ,  
INTANGIBLE ASSETS & RIGHT TO USE ASSETS

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 15, 2023) 

 GROUP

    COST   

PARTICULARS OPENING  ADDITIONS WITHDRAWALS AS AT ASHAD 32, 2079 OPENING FOR THE  YEAR  ON WITHDRAWALS UP TO ASHAD 32, 2079 ASHAD 32, 2079 ASHAD 31, 2078
   BALANCE  AND  ADJUSTMENTS (JULY 16, 2022) BALANCE  AND  ADJUSTMENTS (JULY 16, 2022) (JULY 16, 2022) (JULY 15, 2021)

3A. Property, plant and equipment           
Freehold lands  47,915,506     47,915,506  

Buildings  198,420,468   4,238,130    202,658,599  

Computers  7,631,523   1,352,221   673,799   8,309,945  

Office	equipment	 	13,500,330		 	517,708		 	 	14,018,038		 	9,603,504		 	1,348,425		 	 	10,951,930		 	3,066,108		 	3,896,825	
Electrical Installations  24,966,375   1,325,674    26,292,050  

Furniture	and	fixtures	 	3,185,015		 	47,000		 	 	3,232,015		 	2,658,158		 	128,849		 	 	2,787,007		 	445,008		 	526,857	
Vehicles  19,908,326   1,746,342   6,557,769   15,096,898  

Plant and machinery  893,611,360   2,820,195   116,388   896,315,167  

Other Assets  1,934,760   41,000    1,975,760  

Total  1,211,073,664   12,088,271   7,347,956   1,215,813,979  
3B. Capital work-in-progress  -     34,743   -     34,743    
3C. Intangible assets      
Brand Software  100,000     100,000  

HDL Website   319,500    319,500  

BIG IP Firewall License  800,000     800,000  

ERP Software  2,471,438     2,471,438  

Fixed Asset Software  100,000     100,000  

Total  3,471,438   319,500   -     3,790,938  
3D. Right to Use Assets  14,734,828   -     8,655,454   6,079,374  
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   DEPRECIATION     CARRYING AMOUNT

PARTICULARS OPENING  ADDITIONS WITHDRAWALS AS AT ASHAD 31, 2080 OPENING FOR THE  YEAR  ON WITHDRAWALS UP TO ASHAD 31, 2080  AS AT ASHAD 31, 2080 AS AT ASHAD 32, 2079
   BALANCE  AND  ADJUSTMENTS (JULY 16, 2023) BALANCE  AND  ADJUSTMENTS (JULY 16, 2023) (JULY 16, 2023) (JULY 16, 2022)

3A. Property, plant and equipment           
 -     -   -     -     69,416,506   47,915,506 

 -     45,935   -     45,935   4,324,622  

 98,548,222   7,723,177   1,425,271   104,846,127   97,398,051   104,110,376 

 5,259,481   1,174,516   184,664   6,249,333   7,448,475   3,050,464 

Office	equipment	 	14,018,038		 	3,247,262		 	3,198,772		 	14,066,528		 	10,951,930		 	1,090,293		 	3,198,724		 	8,843,498		 	5,223,030		 	3,066,107	
 20,732,457   1,217,011   281,480   21,667,989   4,805,068   5,559,592 

Furniture	and	fixtures	 	3,232,015		 	3,025,497		 	-				 	6,257,513		 	2,787,007		 	138,249		 	-				 	2,925,256		 	3,332,256		 	445,008	
 10,221,933   2,176,726   4,683,801   7,714,857   23,522,308   4,874,966 

 572,473,524   36,461,384   1,887,037   607,047,871   304,467,100   323,841,644 

 1,936,912   13,447   47,218   1,903,140   158,399   38,848 

 722,911,464   50,040,738   11,708,195   761,244,006   520,095,814   492,902,512 
 -     -     -     -     311,430,554   34,743 

     
 99,999     99,999   1   1 

 -     1,068    1,068   73,932   -   

 -     16,438    16,438   223,562   -   

 175   63,900    64,075   255,425   319,325 

 160,437   160,000    320,437   479,563   639,563 

 2,471,433   -      2,471,433   4   5 

 52,630   20,000    72,630   27,370   47,370 

 2,784,674   261,406   -     3,046,081   1,059,857   1,006,264 
 3,963,135   1,890,963    5,854,098   12,635,108   2,116,239 

 Amount in Rs. 

   DEPRECIATION     CARRYING AMOUNT

PARTICULARS OPENING  ADDITIONS WITHDRAWALS AS AT ASHAD 32, 2079 OPENING FOR THE  YEAR  ON WITHDRAWALS UP TO ASHAD 32, 2079  AS AT ASHAD 32, 2079 AS AT ASHAD 31, 2078
   BALANCE  AND  ADJUSTMENTS (JULY 16, 2022) BALANCE  AND  ADJUSTMENTS (JULY 16, 2022) (JULY 16, 2022) (JULY 15, 2021)

3A. Property, plant and equipment           
 -     -      -     47,915,506   47,915,506 

 90,364,575   8,183,647    98,548,222   104,110,377   108,055,894 

 5,181,767   751,510   673,797   5,259,481   3,050,465   2,449,756 

Office	equipment	 	13,500,330		 	517,708		 	 	14,018,038		 	9,603,504		 	1,348,425		 	 	10,951,930		 	3,066,108		 	3,896,825	
 19,109,722   1,622,735    20,732,457   5,559,592   5,856,653 

Furniture	and	fixtures	 	3,185,015		 	47,000		 	 	3,232,015		 	2,658,158		 	128,849		 	 	2,787,007		 	445,008		 	526,857	
 13,502,042   2,015,675   5,295,785   10,221,933   4,874,966   6,406,284 

 536,946,665   35,547,605   20,747   572,473,524   323,841,644   356,664,694 

 1,932,866   4,046    1,936,912   38,849   1,894 

 679,299,300   49,602,492   5,990,328   722,911,464   492,902,515   531,774,364 
 -     -     -     -   34,743   -   

     
 99,999     99,999   1   1 

 -     175    175   319,325   -   

 437   160,000    160,437   639,563   799,563 

 2,471,433     2,471,433   4   4 

 32,630   20,000    52,630   47,370   67,370 

 2,604,500   180,175   -     2,784,674   1,006,263   866,938 
 3,257,722   705,413    3,963,135   2,116,239   11,477,106 
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3.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS ,  
INTANGIBLE ASSETS & RIGHT TO USE ASSETS
 COMPANY

    COST   

PARTICULARS OPENING  ADDITIONS WITHDRAWALS AS AT ASHAD 31, 2081 OPENING FOR THE  YEAR  ON WITHDRAWALS UP TO ASHAD 31, 2081 ASHAD 31, 2081 ASHAD 31, 2080
   BALANCE  AND  ADJUSTMENTS (JULY 15, 2024) BALANCE  AND  ADJUSTMENTS (JULY 15, 2024) (JULY 15, 2024) (JULY 16, 2023)

3A. Property, plant and equipment           
Freehold lands  13,624,813   -     -     13,624,813  
Buildings  198,420,468   4,238,130   -     202,658,599  
Computers  7,631,523   1,352,221   673,799   8,309,945  
Office	equipment	 	13,500,330		 	517,708		 	-				 	14,018,038		 	9,603,504		 	1,348,425		 	-				 	10,951,930		 	3,066,108		 	3,896,825	
Electrical Installations  24,966,375   1,325,674   -     26,292,050  
Furniture	and	fixtures	 	3,185,015		 	47,000		 	-				 	3,232,015		 	2,658,158		 	128,849		 	-				 	2,787,007		 	445,008		 	526,857	
Vehicles  19,908,326   1,746,342   6,557,769   15,096,898  
Plant and machinery  893,611,360   2,820,195   116,388   896,315,167  
Other Assets  1,934,760   41,000   -     1,975,760  
Total  1,176,782,971   12,088,271   7,347,956   1,181,523,286  
B. Capital work-in-progress  -     34,743   -     34,743  
C. Intangible assets      
Brand Software  100,000   -     -     100,000  
HDL Website  -     319,500   -     319,500  
BIG IP Firewall License  800,000   -     -     800,000  
ERP Software  2,471,438   -     -     2,471,438  
Fixed Asset Software  100,000   -     -     100,000    
Total  3,471,438   319,500   -     3,790,938  
D. Right to use assets  14,734,828   -     8,655,454   6,079,374  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023) 

3.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS ,  
INTANGIBLE ASSETS & RIGHT TO USE ASSETS
 COMPANY

    COST   

PARTICULARS OPENING  ADDITIONS WITHDRAWALS AS AT ASHAD 31, 2081 OPENING FOR THE  YEAR  ON WITHDRAWALS UP TO ASHAD 31, 2081 ASHAD 31, 2081 ASHAD 31, 2080
   BALANCE  AND  ADJUSTMENTS (JULY 15, 2024) BALANCE  AND  ADJUSTMENTS (JULY 15, 2024) (JULY 15, 2024) (JULY 16, 2023)

3A. Property, plant and equipment           
Freehold lands  13,624,813   21,222,000   638,239   34,208,574    
Leasehold Improvements  -     4,370,557   -     4,370,557  
Buildings  202,658,599   1,670,421   2,084,842   202,244,178  
Computers  8,309,945   5,572,535   184,673   13,697,808  
Office	equipment	 	14,018,038		 	3,247,262		 	3,198,772		 	14,066,528		 	10,951,930		 	1,090,293		 	3,198,724		 	8,843,498		 	5,223,030		 	3,066,108	
Electrical Installations  26,292,050   497,442   316,434   26,473,057  
Furniture	and	fixtures	 	3,232,015		 	3,025,497		 	-				 	6,257,513		 	2,787,007		 	138,249		 	-				 	2,925,256		 	3,332,256		 	445,008	
Vehicles  15,096,898   20,824,074   4,683,807   31,237,166  
Plant and machinery  896,315,167   17,283,806   2,084,003   911,514,971  
Other Assets  1,975,760   133,000   47,221   2,061,539  
Total  1,181,523,286   77,846,595   13,237,991   1,246,131,890  
3B. Capital work-in-progress  34,743   311,395,811    311,430,554  
3C. Intangible assets      
Brand Software  100,000     100,000  
Nimble PMS Software 50%  -     75,000    75,000  
HDL Server Software  -     240,000    240,000  
HDL Website  319,500     319,500  
BIG IP Firewall License  800,000     800,000  
ERP Software  2,471,438     2,471,438  
Fixed Asset Software  100,000     100,000  
Total  3,790,938   315,000   -     4,105,938  
3D. Right to Use Assets  6,079,374   12,426,215   16,383   18,489,206  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024) 
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   DEPRECIATION     CARRYING AMOUNT

PARTICULARS OPENING  ADDITIONS WITHDRAWALS AS AT ASHAD 31, 2081 OPENING FOR THE  YEAR  ON WITHDRAWALS UP TO ASHAD 31, 2081  AS AT ASHAD 31, 2081 AS AT ASHAD 31, 2080
   BALANCE  AND  ADJUSTMENTS (JULY 15, 2024) BALANCE  AND  ADJUSTMENTS (JULY 15, 2024) (JULY 15, 2024) (JULY 16, 2023)

3A. Property, plant and equipment           
 -     -     -     -     13,624,813   13,624,813 

 90,364,575   8,183,647   -     98,548,222   104,110,377   108,055,894 
 5,181,767   751,510   673,797   5,259,481   3,050,465   2,449,756 

Office	equipment	 	13,500,330		 	517,708		 	-				 	14,018,038		 	9,603,504		 	1,348,425		 	-				 	10,951,930		 	3,066,108		 	3,896,825	
 19,109,722   1,622,735   -     20,732,457   5,559,592   5,856,653 

Furniture	and	fixtures	 	3,185,015		 	47,000		 	-				 	3,232,015		 	2,658,158		 	128,849		 	-				 	2,787,007		 	445,008		 	526,857	
 13,502,042   2,015,675   5,295,785   10,221,933   4,874,966   6,406,284 

 536,946,665   35,547,605   20,747   572,473,524   323,841,644   356,664,694 
 1,932,866   4,046   -     1,936,912   38,849   1,894 

 679,299,300   49,602,492   5,990,328   722,911,464   458,611,822   497,483,671 
 -     -     -     -     34,743   -   

     
 99,999   -     -     99,999   1   1 

 -     175   -     175   319,325   -   
 437   160,000   -     160,437   639,563   799,563 

 2,471,433   -     -     2,471,433   4   4 
 32,630   20,000   -   52,630   47,370   67,370 

 2,604,500   180,175   -     2,784,674   1,006,263   866,938 
 3,257,722   705,413   -     3,963,135   2,116,239   11,477,106 

   DEPRECIATION     CARRYING AMOUNT

PARTICULARS OPENING  ADDITIONS WITHDRAWALS AS AT ASHAD 31, 2081 OPENING FOR THE  YEAR  ON WITHDRAWALS UP TO ASHAD 31, 2081  AS AT ASHAD 31, 2081 AS AT ASHAD 31, 2080
   BALANCE  AND  ADJUSTMENTS (JULY 15, 2024) BALANCE  AND  ADJUSTMENTS (JULY 15, 2024) (JULY 15, 2024) (JULY 16, 2023)

3A. Property, plant and equipment           
 -     -     -     -   34,208,574   13,624,813 
 -     45,935   -     45,935   4,324,622   -   

 98,548,222   7,723,177   1,425,271   104,846,127   97,398,051   104,110,377 
 5,259,481   1,174,516   184,664   6,249,333   7,448,475   3,050,465 

Office	equipment	 	14,018,038		 	3,247,262		 	3,198,772		 	14,066,528		 	10,951,930		 	1,090,293		 	3,198,724		 	8,843,498		 	5,223,030		 	3,066,108	
 20,732,457   1,217,011   281,480   21,667,989   4,805,068   5,559,592 

Furniture	and	fixtures	 	3,232,015		 	3,025,497		 	-				 	6,257,513		 	2,787,007		 	138,249		 	-				 	2,925,256		 	3,332,256		 	445,008	
 10,221,933   2,176,726   4,683,801   7,714,857   23,522,308   4,874,966 

 572,473,524   36,461,383   1,887,037   607,047,870   304,467,101   323,841,644 
 1,936,912   13,447   47,218   1,903,140   158,399   38,849 

 722,911,464   50,040,737   11,708,195   761,244,005   484,887,884   458,611,822 
 -     -     -     -     311,430,554   34,743 

     
 99,999     99,999   1   1 

 -     1,068    1,068   73,932   -   
 -     16,438    16,438   223,562   -   

 175   63,900    64,075   255,425   319,325 
 160,437   160,000    320,437   479,563   639,563 

 2,471,433   -      2,471,433   4   4 
 52,630   20,000    72,630   27,370   47,370 

 2,784,674   261,406   -     3,046,081   1,059,857   1,006,263 
 3,963,135   1,890,963    5,854,098   12,635,108   2,116,239 

 Amount in Rs. 
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-/4.	INVESTMENTS	 	 	 	 	
INVESTMENTS	IN	EQUITY	INSTRUMENTS	 	 	 	 	
In subsidiary (at cost unless otherwise stated)     
 Himalayan Fisheries Limited   81,100,000   81,100,000  
	 (	811,000	nos.	of	ordinary	shares	of	 
	 Rs.	100	each	,	fully	paid	up)	 	 	

 Himalayan Multi Agro Limited  
	 (500,000	nos.	of	ordinary	shares	of	Rs.	100	each	,		 	 	 20,000,000		 	20,000,000 
	 Rs.	40	paid	up)	

Total   101,100,000   101,100,000 

-/5.	ADVANCE	FOR	INVESTMENT	 	 	 	 	
 Advance for Investment in Himalayan Multi Agro Ltd   10,000,000   -    
	 (500,000	nos.	of	ordinary	shares	of	Rs.	100	each,	 
	 Rs.	20	advance	for	share)	 	 	 	

Total   10,000,000   -   

4/6. OTHER ASSETS     
NON-CURRENT     
  Advance for property, plant and equipment 6,166,582   5,260,917   6,166,582   5,260,917 

  Deposits with statutory authorities - for appeals 37,548,142   37,548,142   37,548,142   37,548,142 

Total 43,714,724   42,809,060   43,714,724   42,809,060 

CURRENT     
 Advance for goods and services  1,447,250   3,648,327   1,447,250   3,648,327 

 Employee advances 253,289   522,248   253,289   522,248 

 Advance with statutory authorities 37,468,310   65,857,122   37,468,310   65,857,122 

 Prepaid expenses 7,048,366   3,825,756   7,048,366   3,825,756 

 Others 41,155,016   25,711,067   41,155,016   29,935,887 

 Total 87,372,232   99,564,519   87,372,232   103,789,339 

 GROUP COMPANY 

   AS AT   AS AT   AS AT   AS AT 

  ASHAD 31, 2081   ASHAD 31, 2080   ASHAD 31, 2081   ASHAD 31, 2080 

DESCRIPTIONS  (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023)   (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023) 

 Amount in Rs. 
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5/7.	INVENTORIES	 	 	 	 	
At lower of cost and net realisable value    

Raw materials  103,217,951   104,632,084   103,217,951   104,632,084 

Packing and other materials  61,506,268   125,358,419   61,506,268   125,358,419 

Semi	finished	goods	 	28,342,464		 	41,206,831		 	28,342,464		 	41,206,831	
Finished goods  103,995,910   153,471,123   103,995,910   153,471,123 

Stores and consumables  25,634,200   22,379,531   25,634,200   22,379,531 

Promotional materials  3,458,234   176,262   3,458,234   176,262 

Total  326,155,027   447,224,251   326,155,027   447,224,251 

6/8.	TRADE	RECEIVABLES	 	 	 	 	
Unsecured, considered good  216,303   1,962,176,573   216,303   1,962,176,573 

Total  216,303   1,962,176,573   216,303   1,962,176,573 

7/9.	CASH	AND	CASH	EQUIVALENTS	 	 	 	 	
Cash on hand  57,163   83,166   55,555   81,958 

Balances with banks    

In current accounts  1,240,002,958   470,018,608   1,239,147,370   469,509,358 

Total  1,240,060,121   470,101,773   1,239,202,925   469,591,315 

8/10.	OTHER	BANK	BALANCES	 	 	 	 	
Fixed Deposits with banks   1,000,000,000   75,000,000   1,000,000,000   75,000,000 

Dividend Account with banks  -     1,456,007   -     1,456,007 

Total  1,000,000,000   76,456,007   1,000,000,000   76,456,007 

9/11.	OTHER	FINANCIAL	ASSETS	 	 	 	 	
Margin deposits  5,830,758   3,569,287   5,830,758   3,569,287 

Sundry deposits  8,587,787   823,201   8,587,787   823,201 

Forward Contract  70,067   -     70,067   -   

Total  14,488,612   4,392,488   14,488,612   4,392,488 

 GROUP COMPANY 

   AS AT   AS AT   AS AT   AS AT 

  ASHAD 31, 2081   ASHAD 31, 2080   ASHAD 31, 2081   ASHAD 31, 2080 

DESCRIPTIONS  (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023)   (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023) 

 Amount in Rs. 
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10/12.  SHARE CAPITAL    
 Authorised     
	 (2080-81:	230000,000	nos.	of	ordinary	shares	 3,000,000,000		 	2,500,000,000		 	3,000,000,000		 	2,500,000,000	 
	 of	Rs.	100	each)		

	 (2079-80	:	25,000,000	nos.	of	ordinary	shares	 
	 of	Rs.	100	each)		 	 	 	 	

 Issued     

	 	(2080-81	:	26,725,233.15			nos.	of	ordinary	shares	 2,672,523,315		 	2,429,566,650		 	2,672,523,315		 	2,429,566,650	 
	 of	Rs.	100	each)		 	

	 	(2079-80	:24,295,666.50			nos.	of	ordinary	shares	 
	 of	Rs.	100	each)		 	 	 	 	

 Subscribed and paid up     

	 	(2080-81	:	26,725,233.15			nos.	of	ordinary	shares	 2,672,523,315		 	2,429,566,650		 	2,672,523,315		 	2,429,566,650	 
	 of	Rs.	100	each)		 	

	 (2079-80	:24,295,666.50			nos.	of	ordinary	shares	 
	 of	Rs.	100	each)		 	 	 	 	

 Total 2,672,523,315   2,429,566,650   2,672,523,315   2,429,566,650 

a.	Reconciliation	of	number	of	shares	outstanding:	 	 	 	 	

	 At	the	beginning	of	the	year	 24,295,666.50	 15,184,791.56	 24,295,666.50	 15,184,791.56	

 Add: shares issued during the year -  - - -   

	 Add:	bonus	shares	issued	during	the	year	 	2,429,566.65	 9,110,874.94		 2,429,566.65	 9,110,874.94	

 At the end of the year 26,725,233.15 24,295,666.50 26,725,233.15 24,295,666.50

 GROUP COMPANY 

   AS AT   AS AT   AS AT   AS AT 

  ASHAD 31, 2081   ASHAD 31, 2080   ASHAD 31, 2081   ASHAD 31, 2080 

DESCRIPTIONS  (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023)   (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023) 

 Amount in Rs. 

b. Rights, preference and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The	Company	has	one	class	of	equity	shares	having	a	face	value	of	Rs.	100	per	share.	Each	holder	of	the	equity	shares	is	entitled	
to	one	vote	per	share.	The	dividend	proposed	by	the	board	of	directors	is	subject	to	the	approval	of	the	shareholders	in	the	
ensuing	annual	general	meeting,	except	in	the	case	of	interim	dividend.	 	 	 	
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11/13. RESERVES AND SURPLUS    
Retained earnings  603,450,963   854,668,290   682,894,227   925,237,160 

Total  603,450,963   854,668,290   682,894,227   925,237,160 

12/14. BORROWINGS     
NON-CURRENT     

 Due to banks    

 Term loan  -     -     -     -   

 Less: current maturities of term loan  -     -     -     -   

 Total  -     -     -     -   

CURRENT     

 Due to banks    

 Short term and demand loan  -     -     -     -   

 Bank overdraft  -     -     -     -   

 Current maturities of term loan  -      -     -   

 Total  -     -     -     -   

13/15. LEASE PAYABLES     
NON-CURRENT     

 Lease Payables  13,686,577   2,421,084   13,686,577   2,421,084 

 Less: current maturities of lease payables  (1,281,373)  (678,287)  (1,281,373)  (678,287)

 Total  12,405,204   1,742,797   12,405,204   1,742,797 

CURRENT     

 Current maturities of lease payables  1,281,373   678,287   1,281,373   678,287 

 Total  1,281,373   678,287   1,281,373   678,287 

14/16.	DEFERRED	TAX	LIABILITIES	(NET)	 	 	 	

 Deferred tax liabilities     
 On property, plant and equipment 31,115,544  32,996,402  31,115,544 32,996,402 

 On Right to use assets 3,221,953  539,641 3,221,953 539,641 

  On Forward Contract  17,867  - 17,867 -   

   34,355,364  33,536,043 34,355,364 33,536,043 

 Deferred tax assets

 On Derivative Financial Liability 45,480 - 45,480 -   

 On corporate social responsibility 1,876,315   3,096,329 1,876,315 3,096,329 

 On Lease Liability 3,490,077 617,376  3,490,077  617,376 

   5,411,872  3,713,705 5,411,872  3,713,705 

Total 28,943,492   29,822,338 28,943,492 29,822,338 

 GROUP COMPANY 

   AS AT   AS AT   AS AT   AS AT 

  ASHAD 31, 2081   ASHAD 31, 2080   ASHAD 31, 2081   ASHAD 31, 2080 

DESCRIPTIONS  (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023)   (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023) 

 GROUP COMPANY 

   AS AT   AS AT   AS AT   AS AT 

  ASHAD 31, 2081   ASHAD 31, 2080   ASHAD 31, 2081   ASHAD 31, 2080 

DESCRIPTIONS  (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023)   (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023) 

 Amount in Rs. 

 Amount in Rs. 
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MOVEMENT IN DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES / (ASSETS) BALANCES

  GROUP    COMPANY 

 Opening Recognized in   Recognized  Closing   Opening Recognized in Recognized Closing 
 balance profit or loss  in OCI  balance balance profit or loss in OCI balance

Deferred tax liabilities         

On property, plant and equipment 32,996,402   (1,880,858)  -     31,115,544   32,996,402   (1,880,858)  -     31,115,544 

On right to use Assets 539,641   2,682,312    3,221,953   539,641   2,682,312    3,221,953 

On Forward Contract  -     17,867    17,867   -     17,867    17,867 

Total deferred tax liabilities 33,536,043   819,321   -     34,355,364   33,536,043   819,321   -     34,355,364 

Deferred tax (assets)         

On Derivative Financial Liability -     (45,480)  -     (45,480)  -     (45,480)  -     (45,480)

On corporate social responsibility (3,096,329)  1,220,014   -     (1,876,315)  (3,096,329)  1,220,014   -     (1,876,315)

On Lease Liability (617,376)  (2,872,701)   (3,490,077)  (617,376)  (2,872,701)   (3,490,077)

Total deferred tax (assets) (3,713,705)  (1,698,167)  -     (5,411,872)  (3,713,705)  (1,698,167)  -     (5,411,872)

Deferred tax liabilities - Net 29,822,338   (878,846)  -     28,943,492   29,822,338   (878,846)  -     28,943,492

Deferred tax liabilities         

On property, plant and equipment 35,518,268   (2,521,866)  -     32,996,402   35,518,268   (2,521,866)  -     32,996,402 

On right to use Assets 2,926,662   (2,387,021)   539,641   2,926,662   (2,387,021)   539,641 

Total deferred tax liabilities 38,444,930   (4,908,887)  -     33,536,043   38,444,930   (4,908,887)  -     33,536,043 

Deferred tax (assets)         

On Derivative Financial Liability (172,791)  172,791   -     -     (172,791)  172,791   -     -   

On corporate social responsibility  (2,753,585)  (342,744)  -     (3,096,329)  (2,753,585)  (342,744)  -     (3,096,329)

On Lease Liability (3,121,039)  2,503,663    (617,376)  (3,121,039)  2,503,663    (617,376)

Total deferred tax (assets) (6,047,415)  2,333,710   -     (3,713,705)  (6,047,415)  2,333,710   -     (3,713,705)

Deferred tax liabilities - Net 32,397,515   (2,575,177)  -     29,822,338   32,397,515   (2,575,177)  -     29,822,338 

a. For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

b. For the year ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

 Amount in Rs. 

 Amount in Rs. 

  GROUP    COMPANY 

 Opening Recognized in   Recognized  Closing   Opening Recognized in Recognized Closing 
 balance profit or loss  in OCI  balance balance profit or loss in OCI balance
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Contd... 

15/17. TRADE PAYABLES     
Trade payables for goods and services  30,699,488   115,303,794   30,699,488   115,303,794 

Total  30,699,488   115,303,794   30,699,488   115,303,794 

16/18. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES     
CURRENT     

 Payable for property, plant and equipment  45,240,018   3,396,577   45,240,018   3,396,577 

	 Employee	benefits	payable	 	9,921,416		 	11,017,737		 	9,921,416		 	11,017,737	

 Payable to provident and other funds  2,160,485   2,051,863   2,160,485   2,051,863 

 Others  13,306,146   3,104,432   8,901,158   3,059,233 

Total  70,628,065   19,570,609   66,223,077   19,525,410 

17/19. OTHER LIABILITIES     
CURRENT     

 Advance collected from customers  30,988,314   140,591   30,988,314   140,591 

 Statutory dues  4,292,672   4,748,664   4,289,270   4,748,664 

 Employees' bonus  55,119,692   99,337,485   55,119,692   99,337,485 

	 Staff	Welfare	Fund	 	1,971,836		 	1,376,762		 	1,971,836		 	1,376,762	

 Unpaid dividend  36,430,086   25,715,934   36,430,086   25,715,934 

 Corporate social responsibility  7,358,099   12,142,466   7,358,099   12,142,466 

Total  136,160,699   143,461,902   136,157,297   143,461,902 

18/20. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES / ADVANCE INCOME TAX (NET)     
 Provision for income tax  130,270,079   230,655,503   130,270,079   230,655,503 

 Less: advance tax  (129,134,326)  (226,685,740)  (129,134,326)  (226,685,740)

Total  1,135,753   3,969,763   1,135,753   3,969,763 

19/21. GROSS REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS     
Local sales  4,137,643,332   5,578,926,968   4,137,643,332   5,578,926,968 

Export sales  -     -     -     -   

Royalty income  17,593,662   75,861,030   17,593,662   75,861,030 

Total  4,155,236,993   5,654,787,998   4,155,236,993   5,654,787,998 

20/22.	COST	OF	GOODS	SOLD	 	 	 	 	

Raw materials consumed  335,654,958   595,329,428   335,654,958   595,329,428 

Packing and auxillary materials consumed  318,318,522   445,366,573   318,318,522   445,366,573 

Purchase of Stock-in-trade  -     -     -     -   

Cost of raw material sold  20,737,969   81,129,914   20,737,969   81,129,914 

Change	in	semi	finished	goods	and	finished	goods	 	 	 	

Opening stock    

Semi	finished	goods	 	41,206,831		 	4,316,644		 	41,206,831		 	4,316,644	

Finished goods  153,471,123   100,564,476   153,471,123   100,564,476 

    194,677,954   104,881,120   194,677,954   104,881,120 

 GROUP COMPANY 

   AS AT   AS AT   AS AT   AS AT 

  ASHAD 31, 2081   ASHAD 31, 2080   ASHAD 31, 2081   ASHAD 31, 2080 

DESCRIPTIONS  (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023)   (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023) 

 Amount in Rs. 
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Closing stock    

Semi	finished	goods	 	28,342,464		 	41,206,831		 	28,342,464		 	41,206,831	

Finished goods  103,995,910   153,471,123   103,995,910   153,471,123 

    132,338,374   194,677,954   132,338,374   194,677,954 

Total change in semi finished goods and finished goods  62,339,580   (89,796,834)  62,339,580   (89,796,834)
Total  737,051,029   1,032,029,081   737,051,029   1,032,029,081 

21/23. MANUFACTURING EXPENSES     
 Power and fuel  6,160,907   5,293,711   6,160,907   5,293,711 

 Blending and distillation charges  88,682,557   121,748,626   88,682,557   121,748,626 

 Repair and maintenance  10,747,483   18,512,290   10,747,483   18,512,290 

 Wages and service charges  15,566,100   21,512,467   15,566,100   21,512,467 

 Other expenses  -     1,954,222   -     1,954,222 

 Total  121,157,047   169,021,316   121,157,047   169,021,316

22/24. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES     
 Salary and allowances  114,261,306   112,594,115   114,261,306   112,594,115 

 Contribution to provident fund and social security fund  11,849,880   10,916,535   11,849,880   10,916,535 

	 Staff	welfare	expenses	 	4,690,120		 	4,226,630		 	4,690,120		 	4,226,630	

 Earned leave  4,112,598   3,791,630   4,112,598   3,791,630 

 Employees' bonus  55,119,692   99,337,485   55,119,692   99,337,485 

 Total  190,033,598   230,866,395   190,033,598   230,866,395

23/25. ADMINISTRATION AND OTHER EXPENSES     
 Annual general meeting expenses  412,626   390,346   412,626   390,346 

 Repair and maintenance  6,161,824   7,189,579   6,161,824   7,189,579 

	 Office	expenses	 	2,782,218		 	3,802,946		 	2,780,554		 	3,800,034	

 Travelling and conveyance  4,027,247   3,653,918   4,027,247   3,653,918 

 Charity and donations  203,535   151,011   203,535   151,011 

 Corporate social responsibility expenses  3,650,487   6,605,238   3,650,487   6,605,238 

 Audit fees  495,200   495,200   450,000   450,000 

 Rent  1,174,800   3,331,545   1,174,800   3,331,545 

 Rates and taxes  12,996,955   7,446,418   12,861,387   7,311,218 

 Power and fuel  6,095,564   9,373,380   6,095,564   9,373,380 

 Meeting fees  1,595,000   1,167,000   1,595,000   1,167,000 

 Communication, postage and courier  3,521,022   1,977,091   3,508,221   1,954,691 

 Printing and stationery  829,741   1,121,779   829,741   1,121,779 

 Professional fees  3,537,433   5,556,460   3,520,033   5,542,460 

 Training expenses  866,429   136,842   866,429   136,842 

 Security and other service expenses  10,726,701   10,766,768   10,726,701   10,766,768 

 Insurance  5,337,130   5,254,478   5,337,130   5,254,478 

 Bank charges  635,301   1,908,522   635,301   1,908,522 

 Guest entertainment  1,967,952   2,088,603   1,967,952   2,088,603 

 Laboratory and sample expenses  414,324   798,655   414,324   798,655 

 Foreign exchange loss  22,437   396,108   22,437   396,108 

 GROUP COMPANY 

   AS AT   AS AT   AS AT   AS AT 

  ASHAD 31, 2081   ASHAD 31, 2080   ASHAD 31, 2081   ASHAD 31, 2080 

DESCRIPTIONS  (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023)   (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023) 

 Amount in Rs. 

Contd... 

Contd... 
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 Exchange loss on forward contract  108,285   43,525   108,285   43,525 

	 Asset	Write	Off	 	4,172,141		 	-				 	4,172,141		 	-			

 

 Total  71,734,352   73,655,411   71,521,720   73,435,700 

24/26. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSE     
 Trade promotion  254,183,910   269,907,640   254,183,910   269,907,640 

 Marketing promotion  167,807,425   204,608,825   167,807,425   204,608,825 

 Insurance  288,292   642,836   288,292   642,836 

 Delivery expense  56,224,004   51,474,421   56,224,004   51,474,421 

 Total  478,503,632   526,633,722   478,503,632   526,633,722 

25/27. OTHER OPERATING INCOME     
 Rent Income  60,000   60,000   60,000   60,000 

 Gain/(loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)  975,174   718,865   9,636,935   718,865 

 Gain/(loss) on Disposal of Right to Use Assets  -     598,968   -     598,968 

 Interest Income  54,666,800   8,715,183   54,666,800   8,715,183 

 Other income  2,020,286   415,356   2,020,286   415,356 

 Total  57,722,260   10,508,372   66,384,021   10,508,372 

26/28. FINANCE COSTS     
 Interest expense:    

 On borrowing from banks measured at amortised cost    

 On term loan  -     -     -     -   

 On short term and working capital loan  14,623   4,253,048   14,623   4,253,048 

 On Lease Liability  1,329,033   257,257   1,329,033   257,257 

 Total  1,343,656   4,510,304   1,343,656   4,510,304 

27/29. TAX EXPENSES     
A.	AMOUNT	RECOGNISED	IN	PROFIT	OR	LOSS	 	 	 	 	

 Current tax    

 Income tax for the year  130,270,079   230,655,503   130,270,079   230,655,503 

 Income tax related to previous years  1,637,269   5,433,212   1,637,269   5,433,212 

 Total current tax  131,907,348   236,088,715   131,907,348   236,088,715 

 Deferred tax    

 Deferred tax for the year  (878,846)  (2,575,177)  (878,846)  (2,575,177)

 Total deferred tax  (878,846)  (2,575,177)  (878,846)  (2,575,177)
 Total  131,028,502   233,513,538   131,028,502   233,513,538 

B.	AMOUNT	RECOGNISED	IN	OTHER	 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME     

 The tax (charge)/credit arising on income and expenses  
 recognised in other comprehensive income is as follows:    

	 On	items	that	will	not	be	reclassified	to	profit	or	loss	 	 	 	  
	 Remeasurements	of	Defined	Benefit	Obligations	 	-				 	-				 	-				 	-			

 Total  -     -     -     -   

 GROUP COMPANY 

   AS AT   AS AT   AS AT   AS AT 

  ASHAD 31, 2081   ASHAD 31, 2080   ASHAD 31, 2081   ASHAD 31, 2080 

DESCRIPTIONS  (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023)   (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023) 

 Amount in Rs. 

Contd... 

Contd... 
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C.	RECONCILIATION	OF	INCOME	TAX	EXPENSE	 
AND ACCOUNTING PROFIT     

	 Profit	before	tax	 	487,202,838		 	893,817,658		 	496,077,231		 	894,037,369	

	 Income	tax	at	the	applicable	rate	of	25.50%	 	124,236,724		 	227,913,615		 	126,499,694		 	227,979,529	

	 Tax	effect	of	amounts	which	are	not	deductible	/	 	 	 	  
 (included) in calculating taxable income:    

 Non-deductible expense  3,763,300   2,675,974   3,770,385   2,675,974 

 Taxable loss not recognised   65,914   

	 Taxable	Gain	not	recognized	 	2,208,749		 	 	

 Interest paid  54,221    -    

 Income tax recognised in profit or loss  130,262,994   230,655,503   130,270,079   230,655,503 
28/30. EARNINGS PER SHARE     
 The company discloses basic and diluted earnings per share  
	 (EPS)	for	its	ordinary	shares.	 	 	 	

	 Basic	EPS	is	calculated	by	dividing	the	profit	or	loss	 
 attributable to ordinary shareholders of the company by     
 the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding  
	 during	the	period.	 	 	 	

	 Diluted	EPS	is	determined	by	adjusting	the	profit	or	loss	 
 attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted      
	 average	number	of	ordinary	shares	outstanding	for	the	effects	 
 of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which comprise share  
 options granted on convertible preference shares, debentures  
	 or	to	employees.	 	 	 	

 Since, the company does not have any convertible instruments  
 and has not granted any options to its employees, diluted  
	 EPS	is	considered	the	same	as	basic	EPS.	 	 	 	

	 Profits	attributed	to	equity	holders	of	the	Company		 	356,174,336		 	660,304,119		 	365,048,730		 	660,523,830	

 Weighted average number of shares  26,725,233   24,295,667   26,725,233   24,295,667 

	 Basic	and	diluted	earnings	per	share	 	13.33		 	27.18		 	13.66		 	27.19	

	 The	company	issued	6,507,767.81	numbers	of	shares	as	 
	 fully	paid	up	bonus	shares	during	the	financial	year.		 	 	 	

	 The	effect	of	such	issue	on	earning	per	share	of	previous	 
 year 2077-78 has been restated as follows:    

	 Profits	attributed	to	equity	holders	of	the	Company		 	-				 	660,304,119		 	-				 	660,523,830	

 Weighted average number of shares  -     26,725,233   -     26,725,233 

	 Restated	Basic	and	diluted	earnings	per	share	 	-				 	24.71		 	-				 	24.72	

 GROUP COMPANY 

   AS AT   AS AT   AS AT   AS AT 

  ASHAD 31, 2081   ASHAD 31, 2080   ASHAD 31, 2081   ASHAD 31, 2080 

DESCRIPTIONS  (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023)   (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023) 

 Amount in Rs. Contd... 

29. Subsidiaries
The	subsidiaries	(which	along	with	Himalayan	Distillery	Ltd.,	the	parent,	constitute	the	Group)	considered	in	the	preparation	of	
these	consolidated	financial	statements	are:

NAME PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP INTEREST PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP INTEREST
 AS AT ASHAD 31, 2081 (JULY 15, 2024) AS AT ASHAD 31, 2080 (JULY 16, 2023)

Himalayan	Multi	Argo	Ltd.	 100	 100

Himalayan	Fisheries	Ltd.	 100	 100
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30. Dividend
For	The	Year	Asadh	31,2081,	(July	15,2024),	the	board	of	directors	proposed	for	dividend	of	20%	of	the	paid-up	share	capital	
amounting	to	Rs.	Rs.	534,504,663	which	consists	of	15%	bonus	shares	amounting	to	Rs.	400,878,497.25	and	5%	final	cash	dividend	
amounting	to	Rs.	133,626,165.75	(inclusive	of	dividend	tax).

For	the	Year	Ashadh	31,2080,	(July	16,2023),	the	board	of	directors	proposed	for	dividend	of	25%	of	the	paid-up	share	capital	
amounting	to	Rs.	607,391,662.50	which	consists	of	10%	bonus	shares	amounting	to	Rs.	242,956,665.00	and	15%	final	cash	
dividend	amounting	to	Rs.	364,434,997.50	(inclusive	of	dividend	tax).

31. Non-current assets classified as held for sale.
The	Group	has	not	classified	any	assets	as	held	for	sale	in	the	current	fiscal	year.	

32. Financial instrument and related disclosures

a. Capital management.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide 

returns	for	the	shareholders	and	benefits	for	other	stakeholders	through	optimization	of	debt	and	equity	balance.	The	Group	
monitors	the	return	on	capital	employed	based	on	asset	turnover	and	profitability	ratio.

The	Group	is	not	subject	to	any	capital	adequacy	norms	under	regulations	presently	in	force.

b.	Category	of	financial	instrument

  AS AT ASHAD 31, 2081   AS AT ASHAD 31, 2080 
   (JULY 15, 2024)   (JULY 16, 2023) 
 CARRYING   FAIR    CARRYING    FAIR  
   VALUE   VALUE   VALUE   VALUE 

Financial assets         

Measured at amortized cost         
Trade receivables   2,16,303   2,16,303  1,962,176,573 1,962,176,573

Cash and cash equivalents & other Bank Balances  2,24,00,60,121  2,24,00,60,121  546,557,780 546,557,780

Other Financial Asset  1,44,88,612   1,44,88,612   43,92,488   43,92,488 

Total financial assets  2,25,47,65,035  2,25,47,65,035  2,51,31,26,841  2,51,31,26,841 
Financial liabilities – measured at amortized cost     
Borrowings  - - - -

Lease payables   1,36,86,577   1,36,86,577  2,421,083 2,421,083

Trade payables   3,06,99,488   3,06,99,488  115,303,794 115,303,794

Other	financial	liabilities		 	7,06,28,065		 	7,06,28,065		 	1,95,70,609		 	1,95,70,609	

Total financial liabilities   11,50,14,129   11,50,14,129   13,72,95,487   13,72,95,487 

Amount	in	Rs.

c.	Financial	risk	management
The	Group	has	a	system-based	approach	to	risk	management	with	policies	and	procedures	and	internal	financial	controls	aimed	
at	identification,	evaluation	and	management	of	key	financial	risks	(such	as	market	risks,	credit	risks	and	liquidity	risks)	that	
may	arise	as	a	consequence	of	its	business	operations	as	well	as	its	investing	and	financing	activities.	Accordingly,	the	Group’s	
risk	management	framework	has	the	objective	of	ensuring	that	such	risks	are	managed	within	acceptable	and	approved	risk	
parameters	in	a	consistent	manner	and	in	compliance	with	applicable	regulation.	
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 FAIR VALUE AS AT ASHAD 31, 2080 AS AT ASHAD 32, 2079  
 HIERARCHY (LEVEL) (JULY 16, 2023) (JULY 16, 2022)

Financial liabilities   

Measured at amortized cost   
 Borrowings 3  

 Lease payables 3 1,36,86,577 24,21,083

Total financial liabilities  1,36,86,577 24,21,083

Amount	in	Rs.

Market	risk
Market	risk	is	the	risk	that	the	fair	value	of	future	cash	flows	of	a	financial	instrument	will	fluctuate	because	of	changes	in	
market	prices,	such	as	interest	rate,	foreign	exchange	rates,	and	equity	prices,	and	will	affect	the	Group’s	income	or	the	value	of	
its	holdings	of	financial	instruments.	

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s short-term/demand loan 

with	variable	interest	rates.	The	balance	of	term	loans	at	the	end	of	the	year	is	Rs.	Nil	(2079-80:	Rs.	Nil)	and	short-term	and	
demand	loan	is	Rs.	Nil	(2079-80:	Rs.	Nil).	The	Group	manages	its	interest	rate	risk	by	monitoring	and	managing	cash	flows	and	
negotiating	favorable	rates	on	borrowings	and	deposits.

If	interest	rates	had	been	higher/lower	by	50	basis	points	and	all	other	variables	were	held	constant,	the	profit	before	tax	for	the	
year	would	decrease/increase	by	Rs	96	(2079-80:	Rs.	1,69,306).

The	Group	undertakes	transactions	denominated	in	foreign	currency,	mainly	Indian	Rupees	which	are	not	subject	to	the	risk	of	
exchange	rate	fluctuations.

The	Group	is	not	an	active	investor	in	equity	markets.

Liquidity	risk
The	Group’s	current	assets	aggregate	to	Rs.	2,66,82,92,295	(2079-80:	Rs.	3,05,99,15,611)	including	cash	and	cash	equivalent	and	
other	bank	balances	of	Rs.	2,24,00,60,121	(2079-80:	Rs.	54,65,57,780)	against	the	aggregate	current	liabilities	of	Rs.	23,98,98,292		
(2079-80:	Rs		28,29,84,354)	including	term	loan	maturing	within	one	year	from	the	reporting	date	of	Rs.	Nil	(2079-80:	Rs.	Nil).

Further	the	Group	has	access	to	undrawn	borrowing	facilities	from	banks	of	Rs.	375,000,000	(2079-80:	Rs.	375,000,000)	as	at	the	
reporting	date.	In	such	circumstances,	liquidity	risk	or	the	risk	that	the	Group	may	not	be	able	to	settle	or	meet	its	liabilities	as	
they	become	due	does	not	exist.

Credit	risk	management
Credit	risk	is	the	risk	of	financial	loss	to	the	Group	if	a	customer	or	counter	party	to	a	financial	instrument	fails	to	meet	its	
contractual	obligations	and	arises	principally	from	the	Group’s	trade	receivables.

The	Group	extends	credit	to	its	customers	keeping	in	view	its	business	interest	in	accordance	with	the	Group’s	credit	policy.	
Exceptions are managed and approved by appropriate authorities, after due consideration of the counterparty’s credentials and 

financial	capacity,	trade	practices	and	prevailing	business	and	economic	conditions.	The	Group’s	exposure,	as	on	the	reporting	
date,	net	of	loss	allowance	stood	at	Rs.	NIL	(2079-80:	Rs.	NIL).

The	Group	carries	other	financial	assets,	such	as	balances	with	banks	and	other	receivables.	Bank	deposits	are	held	with	
commercial	banks	having	a	strong	financial	position	and	taking	into	account	the	experience	of	the	Group	over	time,	the	counter	
party	risk	attached	to	such	assets	is	considered	insignificant.

d. Fair value

The	following	presents	the	fair	value	hierarchy	of	financial	assets	and	liabilities	measured	at	fair	value	on	a	recurring	basis:
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The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, current portion of loans, current portion of 

borrowings, trade payables and due to employees and other parties are the same as their fair values, due to their short-term 

nature.

An explanation of each level is provided below:

Level 1:	Level	1	hierarchy	includes	financial	instruments	measured	using	quoted	prices.	This	includes	listed	equity	instruments	
that	have	quoted	price.	The	fair	value	of	all	equity	instruments	which	are	traded	on	the	stock	exchanges	is	valued	using	the	
closing	price	as	at	the	reporting	date.

Level 2:	The	fair	value	of	financial	instruments	that	are	not	traded	in	an	active	market	is	determined	using	valuation	techniques	
which	maximize	the	use	of	observable	market	data	and	rely	as	little	as	possible	on	entity-specific	estimates.	If	all	significant	
inputs	required	to	fair	value	an	instrument	are	observable,	the	instrument	is	included	in	level	2.

Level 3:	If	one	or	more	of	the	significant	inputs	is	not	based	on	observable	market	data,	the	instrument	is	included	in	level	3.

33. Related party disclosures
Names of related parties and description of relationship

a.	Subsidiary
n Himalayan Multi Agro Limited (100%) 

n Himalayan Fisheries Limited (100%)

b.	Companies	in	which	the	investor	(including	close	member	of	family)	has	significant	influence
n	Jawalakhel	Group	of	Industries	Pvt.	Ltd. 
n	JGI	Distribution	Pvt.	Ltd. 
n	Rolling	River	Distillers	Pvt.	Ltd. 
n	Asian	Distillery	Pvt.	Ltd. 
n	Food	and	Beverage	Technology	Research	Centre	Pvt.	Ltd. 
n	Vijay	Distillery	Pvt.	Ltd. 
n	R	&	R	Suppliers	Pvt.	Ltd. 
n	Raj	Brewery	Pvt.	Ltd. 
n	Majestic	Ventures	P.	Ltd.

c.	Key	management	personnel
n	Mr.	Akhileshwor	Prasad	Singh	 Chairman 

n	Mr.	Narendra	Kumar	Basnyat	 Director 

n	Mr.	Shanker	Raj	Pandey		 	 Director 

n	Mr.	Santoo	Shrestha	 	 Director 

n	Mrs.	Yankeela	(Sherpa)	Ruit	 Director	 
n	Mr.	Prakashmani	Ghimire	 Independent	Director 

n	Mr.	Niraj	Subedi		 	 Chief	Executive	Officer
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  FOR THE YEAR ENDED
 ASHAD 31, 2081 ASHAD 31, 2080
 (JULY 16, 2024) (JULY 16, 2023)

Sale of goods  

	 	JGI	Distribution	Pvt.	Ltd.	 4,34,78,87,831		 5,501,923,577
	 Rolling	River	Distillers	Pvt.	Ltd.	 9,82,34,606		 289,816,362
	 Food	&	Beverage	Technology	Research	Centre	Pvt.	Ltd.	 -	 92,886
	 Vijay	Distillery	Pvt.	Ltd.	 19,90,80,869		 472,852,116
Purchase of goods  

	 Rolling	River	Distillers	Pvt.	Ltd.	 	23,55,101		 18,878
	 Food	&	Beverage	Technology	Research	Centre	Pvt.	Ltd.	 	15,49,18,103		 261,638,804
	 Vijay	Distillery	Pvt.	Ltd.	 	-			 	 2,711,785
Purchase of services  

	 Food	&	Beverage	Technology	Research	Centre	Pvt.	Ltd.	 	10,01,95,385		 137,069,944
	 JGI	Distribution	Pvt.	Ltd.	 	38,36,09,000		 370,274,415
Royalty income  

	 Rolling	River	Distillers	Pvt.	Ltd.	 	1,66,83,730		 44,681,906
	 Vijay	Distillery	Pvt.	Ltd.	 	31,97,107		 41,041,058
Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment  

	 Vijay	Distillery	Pvt.	Ltd.	 	71,534		 131,520
 Himalayan Multi Agro Limited  93,00,000  

	 Food	&	Beverage	Technology	Research	Centre	Pvt.	Ltd.	 81,360	
Reimbursement of Expenses  

	 JGI	Distribution	Pvt.	Ltd.	 3,12,46,727	 34,769,734
Advance Given  

 Himalayan Multi Agro Limited (HMAL) 1,26,396 1,27,689

 Advance For Share - HMAL 1,00,00,000 -

 Himalayan Fisheries Limited 9,172 10,2340

Purchase of Property Plant & Equipment  

	 Vijay	Distillery	(P)	Ltd.	 4,52,000	 -
Dividend Paid  

				Food	&	Beverage	Technology	Research	Centre	Pvt.	Ltd.	 8,97,41,925		 157,048,369
	 Majestic	Ventures	Pvt.	Ltd.	 1,46,47,500		 25,633,125
	 R	&	R	Suppliers	Pvt.	Ltd.	 7,22,49,975		 126,437,455

Amount	in	Rs.Summary of the transactions with related parties

  FOR THE YEAR ENDED
 ASHAD 31, 2081 ASHAD 31, 2080
 (JULY 16, 2024) (JULY 16, 2023)

Trade receivables    
	 JGI	Distribution	Pvt.	Ltd.	 (30,482,281)	 1,960,892,905
	 Rolling	River	Distillers	Pvt.	Ltd.	 -	 -	
	 Jawalakhel	Group	of	Industries	Pvt.	Ltd.	 -	 -
	 Food	&	Beverage	Technology	Research	Centre	Pvt.	Ltd.	 -	 (65,012,207)
	 Vijay	Distillery	Pvt.	Ltd.	 -	 -	
Advances   

 Himalayan Multi Agro Limited 24,02,224  22,75,828

 Himalayan Fisheries Limited 19,58,164  19,48,992

Amount	in	Rs.Summary of the transactions with related parties

Transaction	with	key	management	personnel

Meeting	fees	paid	to	chairman	and	directors	during	the	year	amount	to	Rs.	15,95,000	(2079-80:	Rs.	11,67,000).	Cash	Dividend	of	Rs	
1,775,340	(2079-80:	7,39,725)	and	dividend	in	the	form	of	bonus	shares	amounting	to	Rs	1,183,560	(2079-80:	Rs.	44,38,350)	were	
also	paid	during	the	year.
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NAMES SALARY AND OTHER BENEFITS

Mr.	Niraj	Subedi	(CEO)	 72,25,799

Amount	in	Rs.

NATURE FISCAL YEAR AUTHORITY  ASHAD 31,2081 (15, JULY 2024)  ASHAD 31,2080 (16, JULY 2023)
   CONTINGENT DEPOSIT FOR  CONTINGENT  
   LIABILITIES  LIABILITIES 
   AS PER ASSESSMENT  APPEAL (RS.) AS PER ASSESSMENT  DEPOSIT FOR 
   ORDER (RS.)  ORDER (RS.) APPEAL (RS.)

VAT 2058/59 Supreme Court 291,696 97,232 291,696 97,232

VAT 2061/62 Supreme Court - 1,023,000 2,045,999 1,023,000

VAT 2068/69 Inland Revenue 30,167,129 12,056,000 30,167,129 12,056,000  

   Department 

Excise 2061/62 Supreme Court - 2,777,779 - 2,777,779

Income Tax 2061/62 Supreme Court - 3,659,531 7,319,062 3,659,531

Income Tax 2062/63 Supreme Court 1,159,150 579,620 1,159,150 579,620

Income Tax 2074/75 Inland Revenue 87,663,342 17,355,000 87,663,342 17,355,000  

   Department 

Labor wage 2016 to Till Date Parsa District Court 14,269,885 - 12,062,605 -

Total     133,551,202 37,548,162 140,708,983 37,548,162

Amount	in	Rs.

34. Commitment and contingencies

a. Capital Commitment

Amount	for	contracts	remaining	to	be	executed	on	capital	account	as	on	Ashad	31,	2081	(July	15,	2024)	Rs.	44,685,748.37		(2079-80:	
Rs.	Nil).

b.	Contingent	liabilities
The	company	has	received	a	demand	for	additional	income	tax	from	the	Large	Taxpayers’	Office	for	the	financial	years	2062-
63	and	2074-75,	amounting	to	Rs.	88,822,492	(2079-80:	Rs.	96,141,554),	and	additional	VAT	for	the	financial	years	2058-59	and	
2068-69,	amounting	to	Rs.	30,458,825	(2079-80:	Rs.	32,504,824).	These	matters	are	under	legal	proceedings	with	the	relevant	
authorities.	The	company	has	deposited	Rs.	37,548,142	(2079-80:	Rs.	37,548,142)	as	part	of	the	appeals	for	these	cases.	However,	if	
the	decisions	are	not	in	favor	of	the	company,	additional	fines	and	interest	may	be	charged	on	these	amounts.

During	the	year,	the	company	has	made	provisions	of	Rs.	7,319,062	and	Rs.	355,627	against	income	tax	and	VAT	respectively,	as	
per	the	verdicts	of	Honorable	Supreme	Court	for	the	fiscal	year	2061-62.	However,	the	company	has	not	provisioned	for	potential	
interest	and	fines	that	could	arise	on	these	amounts.

Additionally, the company has received an order from the Labor Court for the payment of compensation to laborers, with the 

estimated	amount	being	Rs.	14,269,885.	However,	the	company	has	obtained	a	stay	order	from	the	Honorable	Supreme	Court.	
Furthermore,	two	laborers	have	filed	petitions	against	their	termination	from	employment	in	the	Labor	Court;	the	liability	
against	these	petitions	has	not	been	estimated.

Meeting	fees	paid	to	Independent	Director	during	the	year	amount	to	Rs	2,40,000	(2079-80:	Rs.	185,000).

Salary	and	Allowance	to	related/key	management	persons                                       

35. Interim Reporting
Interim reports have been publicly reported for each public company in the group, in accordance with the requirement of SEBON 

and	NEPSE.	These	requirements	are	materially	aligned	with	the	requirements	of	NAS	34.	Consolidated	interim	results	have	not	
been	published.
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 PARTICULAR  SCH CURRENT YEAR  PREVIOUS YEAR 

Assets    

Non-Current Assets     

Property, Plant & Equipment   1  30,679,000   21,100,000 

Deferred Tax Assets    -     -   

Total Non-Current Assets    30,679,000   21,100,000 

Current Assets     

Cash & Cash Equivalents  2  822,138   438,269 

Trade & Other Receivables    
Total Current Assets    822,138   438,269 

Total Assets     31,501,138   21,538,269 

Equity & Liabilities    

Equity    

Share Capital  3  20,000,000   20,000,000 

Share Application Money  4  10,000,000   -   

Reserve & Surplus  5  (925,087)  (760,159)

Total Equity    29,074,913   19,239,841 

Current Liabilities    

Trade & Other Payables  6  2,426,225   2,298,428 

Total Current Liabilities    2,426,225   2,298,428 

Total Equity & Liabilities     31,501,138   21,538,269 

Amount	in	Rs.
BALANCE SHEET As on 31 Ashad, 2081 (15 July, 2024)

	Significant	Accounting	Policies	and	Notes	to	Accounts	8
 Schedule 1 to 8 form an integral part of the Financial Statements As per our report of even date

PLACE: Kathmandu

DATE: 4th October, 2024

 JEEVAN PANDAY 
 FINANCE MANAGER 

 SANTOO SHRESTHA 
DIRECTOR  

AKHILESHWAR P. SINGH 
 CHAIRMAN  
  

CA Anoj Kumar Neupane 
PARTNER  
G. Paudyal & Associates 
Chartered Accountants

PRAKASHMANI GHIMIRE
DIRECTOR
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 PARTICULAR  SCH CURRENT YEAR  PREVIOUS YEAR 

Income    
Sales Income    -     -   

Less : Cost of Sales    -     -   

Gross Profit    -     -   
Add:    

 Other Income    -     -   

Less:    

 Administrative Expenses  7  164,928   169,284 

Financial Expenses    -     -   

Depreciation Charges    -     -   

Profit Before Tax    (164,928)  (169,284)
Current Tax    -     -   

Deferred Tax    -     -   

Net Profit/(Loss) After Tax    (164,928)  (169,284)

Amount	in	Rs.
INCOME STATEMENT For the year ended on 31 Ashad, 2081 (15 July, 2024) 

	Significant	Accounting	Policies	and	Notes	to	Accounts	8
 Schedule 1 to 8 form an integral part of the Financial Statements As per our report of even date

PLACE: Kathmandu

DATE: 4th October, 2024

 JEEVAN PANDAY 
 FINANCE MANAGER 

SANTOO SHRESTHA 
DIRECTOR  

AKHILESHWAR P. SINGH 
CHAIRPERSON  

CA Anoj Kumar Neupane 
PARTNER  
G. Paudyal & Associates 
Chartered Accountants

PRAKASHMANI GHIMIRE
DIRECTOR



170 HIMALAYAN DISTILLERY LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RISK REVIEW CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

 PARTICULAR   CURRENT YEAR  PREVIOUS YEAR 

A.Cash Flow From Operating Activities   
	 Net	Profit/(Loss)	after	Tax	 (164,928)	 	(169,284)
  Add: Depreciation Charges  -     -   

  Net Cash Flow Before Changes in Working Capital (164,928)  (169,284)
  Interest Paid -    

  Changes in Working Capital 127,797   126,029 

  Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities 127,797   (43,255)
    

 B.Cash Flow From Investing Activities    
 Sales of Fixed Assets -     -   

  Purchase of Fixed Assets (9,579,000)  -   

  Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities (9,579,000)  -   
    

 C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities   
 Increase/(Decrease) in Share Capital -     -   

 Increase/(Decrease) in Advance for Share Capital  10,000,000   -   

 Increase/(Decrease) in Bank Loans -     -   

  Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities  10,000,000   -   

Net Cash Flow  383,869   (43,255)

Add: Opening Cash & Bank Balance 438,269   481,524 

Closing Cash & Bank Balanace 822,138   438,269 

Amount	in	Rs.
CASH FLOW STATEMENT For the year ended on 31 Ashad, 2081 (15 July, 2024)

	Significant	Accounting	Policies	and	Notes	to	Accounts	8
 Schedule 1 to 8 form an integral part of the Financial Statements As per our report of even date

PLACE: Kathmandu

DATE: 4th October, 2024

 JEEVAN PANDAY 
 FINANCE MANAGER 

SANTOO SHRESTHA 
DIRECTOR  

AKHILESHWAR P. SINGH 
CHAIRPERSON  

CA Anoj Kumar Neupane 
PARTNER  
G. Paudyal & Associates 
Chartered Accountants

PRAKASHMANI GHIMIRE
DIRECTOR
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PARTICULARS EQUITY SHARE SHARE REVALUATION ACCUMULATED TOTAL 
  APPLICATION MONEY RESERVE PROFIT/(LOSS)

Balance	As	on	32.03.2079		 	20,000,000		 	-				 	-				 	(590,875)	 	19,409,125	
	Profit	/	(	Loss	)	for	the	year		 	-				 	-				 	-				 	(169,284)	 	(169,284)
 Issue of Share Capital   -     -     -     -     -   

 Balance As on 31.03.2080   20,000,000   -     -     (760,159)  19,239,841 

	Balance	As	on	01.04.2080		 	20,000,000		 	 	-				 	(760,159)	 	19,239,841	
	Profit	/	(	Loss	)	for	the	year		 	-				 	-				 	-				 	(164,928)	 	(164,928)
 Share Application Money Received on Call   -     10,000,000   -     -     10,000,000 

 Issue of Share Capital   -     -     -     -     -   

 Balance As on 31.03.2081   20,000,000   10,000,000   -     (925,087)  29,074,913 

Amount	in	Rs.
 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY For the Year Ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

As per our report of even date

PLACE: Kathmandu

DATE: 4th October, 2024

 JEEVAN PANDAY 
 FINANCE MANAGER 

 Santoo Shrestha 
DIRECTOR  

Akhileshwar P. Singh 
CHAIRPERSON  

CA Anoj Kumar Neupane 
PARTNER  
G. Paudyal & Associates 
Chartered Accountants

PRAKASHMANI GHIMIRE
DIRECTOR

PARTICULAR  RATE OPENING   ADDITION DURING THE YEAR DISPOSAL TOTAL DEPRECIATION CLOSING 
  BALANCE SHRAWAN MAGH TO BAISAKH    BALANCE
   TO POUSH CHAITRA TO ASADH    

Land    21,100,000     9,579,000    30,679,000    30,679,000 

 Total    21,100,000   -      9,579,000   -     30,679,000    30,679,000 

Amount	in	Rs.
 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT For the year ended on 31 Ashad, 2081 (15 July, 2024) 

 PARTICULAR   CURRENT YEAR  PREVIOUS YEAR 

Cash-in-Hand	(as	certified	by	the	Management	)		 832	 	1,132	
Bank Balances:   
Citizens	Bank	International	Ltd.		 821,306	 	437,137	
Total  822,138  438,269 

Amount	in	Rs.CASH & BANK  

SCHEDULE FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  For the year ended on 31 Ashad, 2081 (15 July, 2024)

Schedule -2 
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 PARTICULAR   CURRENT YEAR  PREVIOUS YEAR 

Authorised Capital   

2,000,000	no.	of	shares	of	Rs.	100	each		 	200,000,000		 	200,000,000	
Issued Capital   

1,000,000	nos.	of	shares	of	Rs.	100	each		 	100,000,000		 	100,000,000	
 Paid Up Capital   

5,00,000	nos.	of	shares	of	Rs.	100	each	Rs.	40	paid	up	 	20,000,000		 	20,000,000	
5,00,000	nos.	of	shares	of	Rs.	100	 
each	Rs.	20	called	up	 	10,000,000		 	-			
Less: Amount Received on call   (10,000,000)  -   

 Total   20,000,000   20,000,000 

Amount	in	Rs.SHARE CAPITAL Schedule -3

 PARTICULAR   CURRENT YEAR  PREVIOUS YEAR 

 Audit Fee   22,600   22,600 

 Legal Expenses   8,700   8,000 

 Notice & Publication Expenses   6,400   11,200 

 Other Expenses   832   1,456 

 Registration & Renewal Expenses   126,396   126,028 

 Total   164,928   169,284 

Amount	in	Rs.ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Schedule -7

 PARTICULAR   CURRENT YEAR  PREVIOUS YEAR 

 PARTICULAR   CURRENT YEAR  PREVIOUS YEAR 

 Amount Received for Share Capital on call   10,000,000   -   

 Total   10,000,000   -   

TDS Payable   1,701   300 

Audit Fee Payable   22,300   22,300 

Other Payable   2,402,224   2,275,828 

Total   2,426,225   2,298,428 

Amount	in	Rs.

Amount	in	Rs.

 SHARE APPLICATION MONEY Schedule -4 

 TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES Schedule -6

 PARTICULAR   CURRENT YEAR  PREVIOUS YEAR 

Profit/(Loss)	upto	Previous	Year		 	(760,159)	 	(590,875)
Profit/(Loss)	for	the	Year		 	(164,928)	 	(169,284)
Total   (925,087)  (760,159)

Amount	in	Rs. RESERVE & SURPLUS Schedule -5
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 PARTICULAR  SCH CURRENT YEAR  PREVIOUS YEAR 

Assets    

Non-Current Assets     

Property, Plant & Equipment   1  82,519,250   82,519,250 

Deferred Tax Assets    -     -   

Total Non-Current Assets    82,519,250   82,519,250 

Current Assets     

Cash & Cash Equivalents  2  35,058   72,189 

Trade & Other Receivables    

Total Current Assets    35,058   72,189 

Total Assets     82,554,308   82,591,439 

Equity & Liabilities    

Equity    

Share Capital  3  81,100,000   81,100,000 

Reserve & Surplus  4  (527,857)  (480,153)

Total Equity    80,572,143   80,619,848 

Current Liabilities    

Trade & Other Payables  5  1,982,165   1,971,592 

Total Current Liabilities    1,982,165   1,971,592 

Total Equity & Liabilities     82,554,308   82,591,439 

Amount	in	Rs.

BALANCE SHEET As on 31 Ashad, 2081 (15 July, 2024) 

	Significant	Accounting	Policies	and	Notes	to	Accounts	7
 Schedule 1 to 7 form an integral part of the Financial Statements As per our report of even date

PLACE: Kathmandu

DATE: 4th October, 2024

 JEEVAN PANDAY 
 FINANCE MANAGER 

SANTOO SHRESTHA 
DIRECTOR  

AKHILESHWAR P. SINGH 
CHAIRPERSON  

CA Anoj Kumar Neupane 
PARTNER  
G. Paudyal & Associates 
Chartered Accountants

PRAKASHMANI GHIMIRE
DIRECTOR
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 PARTICULAR  SCH CURRENT YEAR  PREVIOUS YEAR 

Income    
Sales Income    -     -   

Less : Cost of Sales    

Gross Profit    -     -   
Add:    

 Other Income    -     -   

Less:    

  Administrative Expenses  6  47,704   50,428 

Financial Expenses    -     -   

Depreciation Charges    -     -   

Profit Before Tax    (47,704)  (50,428)
Current Tax    -     -   

Deferred Tax    -     -   

Net Profit/(Loss) After Tax    (47,704)  (50,428)

Amount	in	Rs.
INCOME STATEMENT For the Year Ended 31 Ashad, 2081 (15 July, 2024) 

	Significant	Accounting	Policies	and	Notes	to	Accounts	7
 Schedule 1 to 7 form an integral part of the Financial Statements As per our report of even date

PLACE: Kathmandu

DATE: 4th October, 2024

 JEEVAN PANDAY 
 FINANCE MANAGER 

SANTOO SHRESTHA 
DIRECTOR  

AKHILESHWAR P. SINGH 
CHAIRPERSON  

CA Anoj Kumar Neupane 
PARTNER  
G. Paudyal & Associates 
Chartered Accountants

PRAKASHMANI GHIMIRE
DIRECTOR
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 PARTICULAR   CURRENT YEAR  PREVIOUS YEAR 

A.Cash Flow From Operating Activities   
		 Net	Profit/(Loss)	after	Tax			 	(47,704)	 	(50,428)
  Add: Depreciation Charges   -     -   

  Net Cash Flow Before Changes in Working Capital   (47,704)  (50,428)
  Interest Paid   -     -   

  Changes in Working Capital   10,573   7,216 

  Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities   (37,131)  (43,212)
  

 B.Cash Flow From Investing Activities   
 Sales of Fixed Assets   -     -   

  Purchase of Fixed Assets   -     -   

  Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities   -     -   
  

 C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities   
  Increase/(Decrease) in Share Capital   -     -   

  Increase/(Decrease) in Bank Loans   -     -   

  Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities   -     -   
  

  Net Cash Flow    (37,131)  (43,212)

 Add: Opening Cash & Bank Balance   72,189   115,401 

 Closing Cash & Bank Balanace   35,058   72,189 

Amount	in	Rs.
CASH FLOW STATEMENT  For the Year Ended 31 Ashad, 2081 (15 July, 2024)

	Significant	Accounting	Policies	and	Notes	to	Accounts	7
 Schedule 1 to 7 form an integral part of the Financial Statements As per our report of even date

PLACE: Kathmandu

DATE: 4th October, 2024

 JEEVAN PANDAY 
 FINANCE MANAGER 

SANTOO SHRESTHA 
DIRECTOR  

AKHILESHWAR P. SINGH 
CHAIRPERSON  

CA Anoj Kumar Neupane 
PARTNER  
G. Paudyal & Associates 
Chartered Accountants

PRAKASHMANI GHIMIRE
DIRECTOR



178 HIMALAYAN DISTILLERY LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RISK REVIEW CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

PARTICULARS EQUITY SHARE SHARE REVALUATION ACCUMULATED TOTAL 
  PREMIUM RESERVE PROFIT/(LOSS)

Balance As on 31.03.2079  81,100,000   -     -     (429,725)  80,670,275 

Profit	/	(	Loss	)	for	the	year	 	-				 	 	-				 	(50,428)	 	(50,428)
Issue of Share Capital  -     -     -     -     -   

Balance	As	on	32.03.2080	 	81,100,000		 	-				 	-				 	(480,153)	 	80,619,848	
Balance As on 01.04.2080  81,100,000   -     -     (480,153)  80,619,848 

Issue of Share Capital  -     -     -     -     -   

Profit	/	(	Loss	)	for	the	year	 	-				 	-				 	-				 	(47,704)	 	(47,704)
Balance As on 31.03.2081  81,100,000   -     -     (527,857)  80,572,143 

Amount	in	Rs.

 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY For the Year Ended 31 Ashad, 2081 (15 July, 2024)

	Significant	Accounting	Policies	and	Notes	to	Accounts	7
 Schedule 1 to 7 form an integral part of the Financial Statements As per our report of even date

PLACE: Kathmandu

DATE: 4th October, 2024

 JEEVAN PANDAY 
 FINANCE MANAGER 

 Santoo Shrestha 
DIRECTOR  

Akhileshwar P. Singh 
CHAIRPERSON  

CA Anoj Kumar Neupane 
PARTNER  
G. Paudyal & Associates 
Chartered Accountants

PRAKASHMANI GHIMIRE
DIRECTOR
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PARTICULAR  RATE OPENING   ADDITION DURING THE YEAR DISPOSAL TOTAL DEPRECIATION CLOSING 
  BALANCE SHRAWAN MAGH TO BAISAKH    BALANCE
   TO POUSH CHAITRA TO ASADH    

 Land    82,519,250       82,519,250    82,519,250 

 Total    82,519,250   -     -     -     -     82,519,250    82,519,250 

Amount	in	Rs.
 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT For the Year Ended 31 Ashad, 2081 (15 July, 2024)

 PARTICULAR   CURRENT YEAR  PREVIOUS YEAR 

 PARTICULAR   CURRENT YEAR  PREVIOUS YEAR 

 PARTICULAR   CURRENT YEAR  PREVIOUS YEAR 

 PARTICULAR   CURRENT YEAR  PREVIOUS YEAR 

 PARTICULAR   CURRENT YEAR  PREVIOUS YEAR 

Cash-in-Hand	(as	certified	by	the	Management	)		 	776		 	76	
Bank Balances:   
Citizens	Bank	International	Ltd.		 	34,282		 	72,113	
Total   35,058   72,189 

 Authorised Capital   

	15,00,000	no.	of	shares	of	Rs.	100	each		 	150,000,000		 	150,000,000	
 Issued Capital   

	15,00,000	no.	of	shares	of	Rs.	100	each		 	150,000,000		 	150,000,000	
 Paid Up Capital   

	8,11,000	no.	of	shares	of	Rs.	100	each		 	81,100,000		 	81,100,000	
 Total   81,100,000   81,100,000 

Profit/(Loss)	upto	Previous	Year		 	(480,153)	 	(429,725)
Profit/(Loss)	for	the	Year		 	(47,704)	 	(50,428)
Total   (527,857)  (480,153)

TDS Payable   1,701   300 

Audit Fee Payable   22,300   22,300 

Other Payable   1,958,164   1,948,992 

Total   1,982,165   1,971,592 

Audit Fee   22,600   22,600 

Legal Expenses   8,700   6,000 

Notice & Publication Expenses   6,401   11,200 

Other Expenses   832   1,456 

Registration & Renewal Expenses   9,172   9,172 

Total   47,704   50,428 

Amount	in	Rs.

Amount	in	Rs.

Amount	in	Rs.

Amount	in	Rs.

Amount	in	Rs.

CASH & BANK  

SHARE CAPITAL

RESERVE & SURPLUS

TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES 

 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

SCHEDULE FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  For the Year Ended 31 Ashad, 2081 (15 July, 2024)

Schedule -2

Schedule -3

Schedule -4

Schedule -5

Schedule -6
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08
INVESTOR'S RELATIONSHIP

HDL is a prominent company on the Nepal Stock Exchange that has 

consistently provided high returns to its shareholders. Despite a significant 
decline in the NEPSE Index, the company's stock prices have remained robust. 

HDL delivered a remarkable 100% dividend for three consecutive years 

from FY 2018/19 to FY 2020/21. In FY 2021/22, it distributed a total of 70% in 

dividends (60% as bonus shares and 10% as cash), followed by a 25% dividend 

in FY 2022/23 (10% bonus and 15% cash). For FY 2023/24, HDL has announced 

a total dividend of 20% (15% bonus and 5% cash). The company maintains 

over Rs. 2 billion in its bank balance and minimal receivables, indicating a 

strong liquidity position and a healthy financial relationship with its channel 
partners. Its impressive performance over the years has established HDL as 

a key player in driving the manufacturing sector index. Currently, there are 

26,725,233.15 fully paid-up shares listed on the Nepal Stock Exchange, which 

will increase to 30,734,018.12 upon approval of the dividends by the AGM. 

STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RISK REVIEW CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
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HDL's	stock	price	rose	from	Rs.	1,599	in	FY	
2019/20	to	Rs.	5,512	by	the	end	of	FY	2020/21	
when	the	NEPSE	Index	reached	2,883.	Even	after	
a	significant	drop	in	the	NEPSE	Index	to	2,009,	
HDL's	stock	price	remained	stable	at	Rs.	3,410	in	
FY	2021/22.	The	NEPSE	Index	further	declined	to	
2,097	while	HDL's	stock	price	held	at	Rs.	2,248	by	
the	end	of	FY	2022/23.	However,	in	FY	2023/24,	
HDL's	stock	price	fell	to	Rs.	1,384	despite	an	
increase	in	the	NEPSE	Index	to	2,240. 

MARKET CAPITALIZATION 

HDL shares have consistently been among the 

most	sought-after	stocks	in	the	market.	Over	
the	past	five	years,	while	the	overall	market	
capitalization	of	NEPSE	grew	from	Rs.	1,793	
billion	to	Rs.	3,554	billion,	reflecting	a	CAGR	
of	19%,	HDL's	market	capitalization	surged	
from	Rs.	9	billion	to	Rs.	37	billion,	showcasing	
an impressive CAGR of 42% during the same 

period.
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CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL ECONOMY

   DESCRIPTION    FY 2076-77   FY 2077-78   FY 2078-79   FY 2079-80   FY 2080-81 

 Total Revenue    2,406   3,773   4,064   2,971   2,081 
 Excise     2,384   2,808   3,524   2,684   2,074 

  VAT    854   832   783   535   404 

  Custom    79   43   64   100   45 

  TDS    35   62   89   88   50 

  Income Tax    90   421   378   223   130 

  Total Tax    3,442   4,167   4,838   3,630   2,703 

In Million

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL ECONOMY 
In the review period, HDL made a total of Rs. 2,703 million as a tax contribution to the Government of Nepal which is a 
clear testament to the Company’s adherence to compliance and respect for local regulations and provisions. The various 

categories under which the Company made tax contributions to the Government of Nepal for the last 5 fiscal years have 
been presented in the following table:

Award of Excellence provided by Madhesh 

Province for Leading Tax Payer 2022.

Silver Award in manufacturing category for 

National Best Presented Annual Report 2022.
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YEAR UNPAID/UNCLAIMED  
  DIVIDEND AMOUNT (IN RS.)

 SHAREHOLDER’S NAME  TOTAL HOLDING  %

2015-16 1,027,300 
2016-17	 913,440.00
2017-18	 805,103.30
2017-18	(Interim)	 2,621,605.84
2018-19	 2,010,057.50
2019-20	 6,213,577.50
2020-21	 4,094,070.00
2021-22	 3,664,993.84
2022-23	 15,079,938.50
Total 36,430,086.48

	 Rahisha	Shah	Shrestha	 	9,922,126		 37.13%
 Food & Beverages Technology  

	 Research	Center	Pvt.	Ltd.	 	3,948,644		 14.77%
	 R.	and	R.	Suppliers	Pvt.	Ltd.	 	3,178,998		 11.90%
	 Majestic	Ventures	Pvt.	Ltd.	 	644,490		 2.41%
	 Other	General	Public	Shareholders	 	9,030,975		 33.79%
 Total  26,725,233  100.00%

Data as on end of  Asadh 2081

Unclaimed/Unpaid 
Dividends
At the end of FY 2023-24, HDL had a total of Rs. 

36,430,086.48, as the unclaimed dividend which is in 

the custody of its Registrat To Shares (RTS)- Nabil Invest 

Banking Limited. Further details of the same are provided in 

the following table: 

The Unclaimed Dividend amount from FY 2015-16 to FY 2017-18 has 
been transfer to invester protection fund in December 2024.

 YEAR  MAXIMUM MINIMUM CLOSING NUMBER OF TRADED TRADING DAYS 
  (IN NPR)   (IN NPR)   (IN NPR)  TRADES SHARES QTY

2018-19 2,070 1,197 1,670 2,813 476,947 198
2019-20 1,989 1,123 1,599 27,445 3,303,414 175
2020-21 5,916 1,595 5,512 110,092 7,401,311 245
2021-22 7,938 2,825 3,410 162,867 5,042,125 239
2022-23 4,323 1,807 2,248 155,994 5,404,769 235
2023-24 2,389 1,140 1,384 138,539 5,646,444 229

Share Prices

SHARE MARKET TREND  
AND SHARE PRICE HISTORY   

In the review period of 2023-24, a total of 5,646,444 

units of HDL shares were traded in the secondary 

market	in	a	period	of	229	days.	In	this	period,	the	
Maximum	Share	Price	remained	Rs.	2,389,	the	
Minimum	Share	Price	stood	at	Rs.	1,140	and	the	Closing	
Price	stood	at	Rs.	1,384.	Further	the	trend	of	HDL’s	
share	prices	and	traded	quantity	over	the	last	five	fiscal	
years has been presented below:

Shareholders' with more than 1% holding in 
the company 

STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RISK REVIEW CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION (PER SHARE) in  Percentage
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Shareholders 
Enquiries and 
Communication

Archival 
Policy

Communication to Shareholders
 HDL regularly interacts with the shareholders 

through various modes of communication such as its 

notice and publications by publishing in newspapers 

and	through	its	website	www.himalayandistillery.com.	
The quarterly and annual reports of the company 

are published in the national daily newspaper and in 

the	official	website	of	the	company	to	impart	timely	
information about the performance of the company 

to	its	shareholders.	The	reports	are	also	reported	to	
the regulatory authorities such as Securities Board of 

Nepal	(SEBON)	and	Nepal	Stock	Exchange	(NEPSE).

Redressal of Shareholder’s Complaint
The company has appointed a grievance handling 

officer	to	address	any	complaints,	queries	and	
correspondence	related	to	HDL.	Shareholders	can	
file	any	queries	at	Nabil	Investment	Banking	Limited,	
Share	Registrar	or	to	the	Grievance	handling	officer	at	
the address mentioned below:

Company has an archival policy which is a set of 

guidelines, procedures, and practices that the 

company follows to manage, preserve, and maintain 

its records and documents of historical & legal 

significance.	It	outlines	the	rules	and	principles	
governing the creation, retention, storage, retrieval, 

and	disposal	of	both	physical	and	digital	records.

Nabil Investment Banking Limited

3rd	Floor,	Central	Plaza
Narayanchaur,	Naxal,	Kathmandu
Email:	info@nabilinvest.com.np 

Tel.:	+977	01	4511604/01	4511733,	Ext:	117/152

Or,

Grievance	Handling	Officer
Mr.	Keshab	Sigdel
Jawalakhel, Lalitpur, Nepal

Email:	info@himalayandistillery.com
P.O.	BOX:	23521
Tel.:	+977	01	522028/01	5438239

PRODUCTS & SERVICES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INVESTOR'S RELATIONSHIP DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

VALUE ADDED STATEMENT
PARTICULARS  FY 2080-81  % FY 2080-81  FY 2079-80  % FY 2079-80

Value Generated:    
Sales (Gross of Excise Duty)  4,155,237  148%  5,654,788  146%

Less: Cost of Bought in Materials & Services  (1,406,638) (50%)  (1,799,953) (47%)

Value Added from Operations  2,748,599    3,854,835  
Add:	Other	Income	 	66,384		 2.4%	 	10,508		 0.3%
Gross Value Added  2,814,983  100%  3,865,344  100%
Value Applied:    
Towards Employees  190,034  7%  230,866  6%

Towards	Directors	 	1,595		 0.1%	 	1,167		 0.0%
Towards Government  2,204,768  78%  2,917,788  75%

Towards Shareholders  607,392  22%  1,062,935  27%

Towards	Providers	of	Finance	 	1,344		 0.0%	 	4,510		 0.1%
Towards Entity  (190,150) (7%)  (351,923) (9%)

Gross Value Added  2,814,983  100%  3,865,344  100%

In Thousands
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INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT
Unaudited Statement of Financial Position for the Quarter Ended on 30th Ashwin 2081 

 PARTICULARS  THIS QUARTER PREVIOUS QUARTER CORRESPONDING 
  END  END (PUBLISHED) PREVIOUS YEAR   
     QUARTER END  

ASSETS   

NON-CURRENT ASSETS   

   a) Property, plant and equipment  476,025,084   484,408,460   454,259,417 

   b) Capital work-in-progress  349,025,371   311,370,909   2,756,477 

   c) Intangible assets  981,676   836,328   944,127 

   d) Right to use assets  12,183,952   13,835,899   14,059,190 

   e) Investments  111,100,000   101,100,000   101,100,000 

   f) Other non-current assets  66,659,027   43,714,724   37,548,142 

Total Non-Current Assets  1,015,975,110   955,266,320   610,667,354 

CURRENT ASSETS   

   a) Inventories  447,031,984   326,561,976   344,124,536 

   b) Financial assets   

        Trade receivables  11,358,817   216,307   2,473,615,122 

        Cash and cash equivalents  1,555,263,044   1,239,202,925   88,988,825 

        Other bank balances  1,200,000,000   1,000,000,000   275,000,000 

   c) Other current assets  151,574,080   112,372,476   97,350,167 

Total current assets  3,365,227,925   2,678,353,685   3,279,078,650 

TOTAL ASSETS  4,381,203,035   3,633,620,005   3,889,746,004 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   

EQUITY   

   a) Equity   

           Share capital  2,672,523,315   2,672,523,315   2,429,566,650 

   b) Other equity   

Reserves and surplus  889,647,548   670,899,158   1,030,436,551 

Total Equity  3,562,170,863   3,343,422,473   3,460,003,201 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES   

   a) Financial liabilities   

           Borrowings  -     -     -   

           Lease Payables  12,010,656   13,406,371   13,388,159 

   b) Deferred tax liabilities  28,177,501   20,735,029   28,626,768 

Total Non-Current Liabilities  40,188,157   34,141,400   42,014,927 

CURRENT LIABILITIES   

   a) Financial Liabilities   

           Borrowings  -     -     -   

           Trade payables  400,174,305   77,027,726   75,214,302 

											Other	financial	liabilities	 	104,554,630		 	64,371,482		 	64,201,966	
           Lease Payables   1,371,096   1,469,988   1,185,674 

   b) Other current liabilities  205,683,095   108,871,872   210,955,539 

   c) Current tax liabilities (net)  67,060,888   4,315,063   36,170,395 

Total Current Liabilities  778,844,014   256,056,131   387,727,877 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  4,381,203,035   3,633,620,005   3,889,746,004 

Amount in Rs.

STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RISK REVIEW CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
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 PARTICULARS UP TO THIS UP TO PREVIOUS CORRESPONDING 
  QUARTER  QUARTER (PUBLISHED) PREVIOUS YEAR   
     QUARTER END  

Gross revenue from operations  1,486,614,583   4,155,236,993   971,815,391 

Less: excise duties  752,069,982   2,073,739,995   478,706,343 

Net sales revenue  734,544,601   2,081,496,998   493,109,048 

Less: cost of goods sold  265,353,073   731,193,605   176,949,869 

Less: manufacturing expenses  43,624,833   118,615,410   28,011,932 

Gross Profit  425,566,695   1,231,687,984   288,147,247   
Employee	benefit	expenses	 	68,670,358		 	186,719,865		 	52,206,365	
Administration and other expenses  21,819,711   104,625,186   17,278,045 

Selling and distribution expenses  70,420,085   474,402,342   68,292,565 

Operating Profit   264,656,541   465,940,591   150,370,273 
Non operating income  17,291,332   64,442,963   5,911,269 

Depreciation and amortisation  14,259,827   52,248,590   12,748,209 

Finance costs  326,384   1,375,422   358,872 

Profit Before Tax  267,361,662   476,759,542   143,174,461 
Income tax expenses  68,490,309   123,705,882   37,975,067 

Profit For The Year  198,871,353   353,053,660   105,199,394 

Other comprehensive income   
Items	that	will	not	be	reclassified	to	profit	or	loss:	 	 	
(i)	Remeasurements	of	Defined	Benefit	Obligations	 	-				 	-				 	-			
(ii) Income tax credit/(charge) relating to these items  -     -     -   

Other comprehensive income  -     -     -   
Total comprehensive income for the year  198,871,353   353,053,660   105,199,394 
Earning per equity share  

(face	value	of	Rs.	100	each)	 	 	
Basic	EPS*	 	29.77		 	13.21		 	15.75	
Diluted	EPS*	 	29.77		 	13.21		 	15.75		
Other Financial Ratios:   
PE	Ratio	 	45.86		 	104.77		 	117.94	
Net	Worth	Per	Share	 	133.29		 	125.10		 	142.41	
Liquidity	Ratio	 	4.32		 	10.46		 	8.46	

Notes:
-	 Account	heads	have	been	re-grouped/re-classified	wherever	necessary	so	as	to	comply	with	the	Nepal	Financial	Reporting	Standards	(NFRS)	 	

- EPS has been annualized wherever necessary   

-	Corresponding	Previous	Year's	Basic	&	Diluted	EPS	has	been	restated	to	reflect	the	effect	of	issuance	of	Bonus	Shares		 	 	

Amount in Rs.

INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT
Unaudited Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the Quarter Ended on 30th Ashwin 2081
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09
DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

HDL has appointed J.G.I. Distribution Pvt. Ltd. (JGIDPL) as 

its National Distributor (ND), responsible for managing the 

nationwide distribution of its products. The ND operates through 

a vast network that includes a total of 15,214 distributors, 

wholesalers, and retailers throughout the country. ND’s 

distribution system is organized into eight primary zones, 

with two located in the Kathmandu Valley and six in other 

regions. Each zone encompasses specific areas; for example, 
Valley-1 consists of Kathmandu West South, Bhaktapur, Banepa, 

Barabishe, Chairkot, and Lalitpur, while Valley-2 includes 

Kathmandu East, Kathmandu West North, Nuwakot, and 

Dhading.

STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RISK REVIEW CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
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This	zonal	framework	is	designed	to	enhance	logistics	
and	ensure	effective	supply	chain	management	for	HDL	
products.	The	ND	collaborates	with	97	distributors	and	
2,330	wholesalers	across	all	zones,	with	the	highest	
concentrations	found	in	zones	1,	3,	and	5.	Additionally,	
there are 12,787 retailers responsible for delivering 

products	directly	to	consumers.	Among	all	zones,	
the	Kathmandu	Valley	generates	the	highest	sales	
figures,	while	zone	4	has	the	lowest.	A	comprehensive	
breakdown	of	each	zone	can	be	found	in	the	
accompanying table:

STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RISK REVIEW CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Operation Route to market
Eastern Nepal Western Nepal

 ZONES VALLEY ZONE 1 ZONE 2 ZONE 3 ZONE 4 ZONE 5 ZONE 6 TOTAL  

 Sales Contribution 38% 13% 19% 11% 4% 9% 6% 100%

 Distributor 19 15 17 13 7 14 12 97

 Wholesalers 359 463 357 427 131 430 163 2330

	 Off	trade	 3146	 300	 157	 188	 444	 261	 584	 5080
 On trade 2478 936 624 795 770 1186 918 7707

 Manpower Sales 31 8 9 6 7 9 9 79

Total Distributor 97

Channel Classification 
Wholesale 2330

Modern	Off	Trade(MOFT)	 650
Liquor Store 3503

Traditional	Off	Trade(TOFT)	 927
High End(HE) 142

Bar & Restaurant(B& R) 6412

Hospitality 1153

SALES & DISTRIBUTION EMPLOYEE

Territory Managers   9
Sales Executives    79
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